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General Notice No. 724 of 2019

LEGAL SUPPLEMENT

The undermentioned Act and Government 
Notices are published in the Legal Supplement to 
this number of the Government Gazette:

The Mental Health Care (Amendment) Act 
2019.

(Act No. 2 of 2019)

The Ombudsperson for Financial Services 
(Sworn Statement) Regulations 2019.

(Government Notice No. 64 of 2019)

The Rodrigues Consumer Protection (Control 
of Price of Taxable and Non-taxable Goods) 
(Amendment No. 9) Regulations 2019.

(Government Notice No. 65 of 2019)

The District Council of Black River (Fees for 
Classified Trades) Regulations 2019.

(Government Notice No. 66 of 2019)

The District Council of Moka (Fees, Dues & 
other charges for Classified Trades) Regulations.

(Government Notice No. 67 of 2019)

Prime Minister’s Office, 
Port Louis.

This 13th April, 2019.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 725 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land hereinafter described, 
situate at Poudre d’Or Hamlet in the district of 
Riviere du Rempart for the public purpose of 
constructing the ‘Forbach - Bel Air’ East Coast 
Trunk Road.

DESCRIPTION
Portion No. 61A (PIN 1310050095) being all 

that remains of a portion of land of an original 

extent of four thousand two hundred and forty 
five and ninety seven hundredths square metres 
(4245.97m2) has been found to be of an extent of 
nine hundred and eighty square metres (980m2) 
after survey [after compulsory acquisition of two 
portions of land by Government of the extents 
of 428 m2 and 2780m2 by virtue of 2 Notices 
given under Section 8 of the Land Acquisition 
Act registered and transcribed in Volume TV 
9216/16 and TV 9213/5 respectively] belonging to 
Mr. Bhodraz RAMDHEAN bom on 19/08/1968 
holding I.D. No. R190868050261A and 
Mrs. Iranee SUJEEUN bom on 22 July 1976 
holding I.D. No. S2207760802511, spouse of 
Mr. Bhodraz RAMDHEAN, married under the 
system of legal community of goods, as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume T.V 8199/49 is 
bounded as follows:-

• Towards the North East by the property 
of Mr. Premchand RAMKURRUN and 
Mr. Harrykrishna RAMKURRUN on 
seventy five metres and fifteen centimetres 
(75.15m).

• Towards the South East by State Land 
[Portion No. 75, TV 9212/16] on twenty 
seven metres and ninety centimetres 
(27.90m).

• Towards the South West by State Land 
[Portion No. 61, TV 9213/5] on seventy 
metres and fifteen centimetres (70.15m).

The whole as more fully shown on plan ‘Land 
Acquisition at Poudre D’Or Hamlet’ registered 
at the Cadastre Unit, Ministry of Housing and 
Lands as ACQ/75/000367 and drawn up by 
Mr. Navinchandra LUCHOO, Government Land 
Surveyor on 14.06.2017.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation.
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Date: 25/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 726 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land, hereinafter described, 
situate at Belvedere in the district of Flacq for the 
public purpose of the construction of an access 
road to Belvedere Football Ground.

DESCRIPTION

The said portion of land being PORTION No. 1 
of an extent of forty and eighty four hundredths 
square metres (40.84 m2) [PIN 1426200430] 
is excised from a portion of land of an original 
extent of four hundred and thirty eight and fifty 
hundredths square metres (438.50 m2) belonging to 
Mr. Anwar Hossen MOIDEEN bom on 01/02/1960 
ID No. M0102601401312 as evidenced by a deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 8691/41 and is bounded 
as follows:

Towards the North West by a common road 
three metres and ninety centimetres (3.90m) wide 
on a developed length measuring five metres and 
fifty centimetres (5.50 m).

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Anwar Hossen MOIDEEN on 
seventeen metres and seventy three centimetres 
(17.73m).

Towards the South East by Portion No. 2 as 
morefully described on the plan below on two 
metres and ten centimetres (2.10 m).

Towards the South West by a common road 
three metres and ninety centimetres (3.90 m) 
wide on thirteen metres and fifteen centimetres 
(13.15 m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit of the Ministry of 

Housing and Lands as ACQ/75/000514 drawn up 
by Mr. Zafrullah-bin-Ismet SOOKIA Government 
Land Surveyor on the twentieth day of December 
two thousand and eighteen.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 18/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 727 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land, hereinafter described, 
situate at Belvedere in the district of Flacq for the 
public purpose of the construction of an access 
road to Belvedere Football Ground.

DESCRIPTION

The said portion of land being PORTION No. 2 
of an extent of forty seven and thirty two hundredths 
square metres (47.32 m2) [PIN 1426200431] 
is excised from a portion of land of an original 
extent of four thousand two hundred and forty 
two square metres (4,242 m2) belonging to Heirs 
of late Mrs. Bibi Maimoon DUSSAYE who 
was bom on 28/02/1921 as evidenced by a deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 3531/20 and by an 
affidavit of succession transcribed in Volume 
TV 5603/60 and is bounded as follows:

Towards the North West by Portion No. 1 as 
morefully described on the plan below on two 
metres and ten centimetres (2.10 m).
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Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs of late Mrs. Bibi Maimoon 
DUS SAYE on twenty one metres and eighty two 
centimetres (21.82 m).

Towards the South East by Portion No. 3 as 
morefully described on the plan below on two 
metres and twenty six centimetres (2.26 m).

Towards the South West by a common road 
three metres and ninety centimetres (3.90 m) wide 
on twenty one metres and eighty two centimetres 
(21.82 m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit of the Ministry of 
Housing and Lands as ACQ/75/000515 drawn up 
by Mr. Zafrullah-bin-Ismet SOOKIA Government 
Land Surveyor on the twentieth day of December 
two thousand and eighteen.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 18/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower, 
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 728 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land, hereinafter described, 
situate at Belvedere in the district of Flacq for the 
public purpose of the construction of an access 
road to Belvedere Football Ground.

DESCRIPTION

The said portion of land being 
PORTION No. 3 of an extent of eighty five and 
ninety three hundredths square metres (85.93m2) 
[PIN 1426200432] is excised from a portion of land 
of an original extent of two thousand one hundred 
and forty eight square metres (2,148 m2) belonging 
to Mrs. Mariame Bibi Ahmade MAMADE ALLY 
bom on 30/09/1954 ID No. M3009540132001 
as evidenced by a deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 2150/97 and is bounded as follows:

Towards the North West partly by a common 
road three metres and ninety centimetres (3.90 m) 
wide and partly by Portion No. 2 as morefully 
described on the plan below on three metres and 
ninety centimetres (3.90m).

Towards the North East by the surplus of 
land belonging to Mrs. Mariame Bibi Ahmade 
MAMADE ALLY on twenty one metres and eight 
centimetres (21.08 m).

Towards the South East by Portion No. 4 as 
morefully described on the plan below on four 
metres and twenty five centimetres (4.25 m).

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common road three metres and ninety centimetres 
(3.90m) wide on twenty one metres and eighteen 
centimetres (21.18 m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit of the Ministry of 
Housing and Lands as ACQ/75/000516 drawn up 
by Mr. Zafrullah-bin-Ismet SOOKIA Government 
Land Surveyor on the twentieth day of December 
two thousand and eighteen.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 18/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower, Ebene.
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Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 729 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land, hereinafter described, 
situate at Belvedere in the district of Flacq for the 
public purpose of the construction of an access 
road to Belvedere Football Ground.

DESCRIPTION

The said portion of land being PORTION No. 4 
of an extent of ninety four and seventeen hundredths 
square metres (94.17 m2) [PIN 1426200433] 
is excised from a portion of land of an original 
extent of two thousand and fifty square metres 
(2,050 m2) belonging to Mrs. Mariame Bibi 
Ahmade MAMADE ALLY bom on 30/09/1954 
ID No. M3009540132001 as evidenced by a deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 2150/97 and is bounded 
as follows:

Towards the North West by Portion No. 3 as 
morefully described on the plan below on four 
metres and twenty five centimetres (4.25 m).

Towards the North East by the surplus of 
land belonging to Mrs. Mariame Bibi Ahmade 
MAMADE ALLY on twenty one metres and five 
centimetres (21.05m).

Towards the South East partly by Portion 
No. 5 as morefully described on the plan below 
and partly by a common road three metres and 
ninety centimetres (3.90 m) wide on four metres 
and sixty nine centimetres (4.69 m).

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common road three metres and ninety centimetres 
(3.90 m) wide on twenty one metres and eighteen 
centimetres (21.18 m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit of the Ministry of 
Housing and Lands as ACQ/75/000517 drawn up 
by Mr. Zafrullah-bin-Ismet SOOKIA Government 
Land Surveyor on the twentieth day of December 
two thousand and eighteen.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 18/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 730 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land, hereinafter described, 
situate at Belvedere in the district of Flacq for the 
public purpose of the construction of an access 
road to Belvedere Football Ground.

DESCRIPTION

The said portion of land being PORTION No. 5 
of an extent of forty nine square metres (49.00m2) 
[PIN 1426200434] is excised from a portion of land 
of an original extent of fifty square perches (0A50P) 
belonging to Mr. Radha Krishna BOOJHAWON 
bom on 27/10/1954 ID No. B2710541404810 
married to Mrs. Doomowtee GAONJUR bom on 
05/02/56 ID No. G0502560500670 as evidenced 
by a deed transcribed in Volume TV 1307/71 and 
is bounded as follows:

Towards the North West by Portion No. 4 as 
morefully described on the plan below on four 
metres and nineteen centimetres (4.19 m).

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Radha Krishna BOOJHAWON 
on eleven metres and twenty three centimetres 
(11.23 m).
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Towards the South East by Portion No. 6 as 
morefully described on the plan below on four 
metres and fifty three centimetres (4.53 m).

Towards the South West by the axis of a common 
road three metres and ninety centimetres (3.90m) 
wide on eleven metres and fifty nine centimetres 
(11.59 m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit of the Ministry of 
Housing and Lands as ACQ/75/000511 drawn up 
by Mr. Zafrullah-bin-Ismet SOOKIA Government 
Land Surveyor on the twenty eighth day of 
December two thousand and eighteen.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 18/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower, 
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 731 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land, hereinafter described, 
situate at Belvedere in the district of Flacq for the 
public purpose of the construction of an access 
road to Belvedere Football Ground.

DESCRIPTION

The said portion of land being PORTION No. 6 
of an extent of fifty one and fifty nine hundredths 
square metres (51.59 m2) [PIN 1426200436] 
is excised from a portion of land of an original 
extent of fifty square perches (0A50P) belonging 

to Mr. Rajcoomar BOOJHAWON bom on 
04/07/1952 ID No. B0407521402690 married to 
Mrs. Semantee LAULLOOA bom on 17/01/56 
ID No. LI 701560300468 as evidenced by a deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 1307/69 and is bounded 
as follows:

Towards the North West by Portion No. 5 as 
morefully described on the plan below on four 
metres and fifty three centimetres (4.53 m).

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Rajcoomar BOOJHAWON on 
eleven metres and one centimetre (11.01 m).

Towards the South East partly by Portion 
No. 7 as morefully described on the plan below 
and partly by a common road three metres and 
ninety centimetres (3.90 m) wide on four metres 
and eighty one centimetres (4.81 m).

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common road three metres and ninety centimetres 
(3.90 m) wide on eleven metres and four 
centimetres (11.04 m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit of the Ministry of 
Housing and Lands as ACQ/75/000513 drawn up 
by Mr. Zafrullah-bin-Ismet SOOKIA Government 
Land Surveyor on the twenty eighth day of 
December two thousand and eighteen.

The plan may be inspected by the public at 
the Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing 
and Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office 
hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 18/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene.
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Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 732 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land, hereinafter described, 
situate at Belvedere in the district of Flacq for the 
public purpose of the construction of an access 
road to Belvedere Football Ground.

DESCRIPTION

The said portion of land being PORTION No. 7 
of an extent of one hundred and nine and six 
hundredths square metres (109.06m2) [PIN 
1426200437] is excised from a portion of land of 
an original extent of five hundred and eighty nine 
and ninety hundredths square metres (589.90m2) 
belonging to Ms. Beebee Rehana DINALLY 
bom on 28/10/1967 ID No. D2810671405397 
for the bare ownership and to Mrs. Houssenbee 
BHAUKAURALLY bom on 15/12/1939 ID 
No. B1512393100292 for the usufruct as evidenced 
by a deed transcribed in Volume TV 3690/75 
and as per an affidavit of succession transcribed 
in Volume TV 7895/52 and is bounded as 
follows:

Towards the North West by Portion No. 6 as 
morefully described on the plan below on three 
metres and fifty three centimetres (3.53m).

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Ms. Beebee Rehana DINALLY 
and to Mrs. Houssenbee BHAUKAURALLY on 
three (3) lines, the first a straight line measuring 
sixteen metres and thirty centimetres (16.30m), the 
second a developed length measuring nine metres 
and sixty seven centimetres (9.67m) and the third 
a straight line measuring two metres and eighty 
seven centimetres (2.87m).

Towards the South East by Gulzar Emadina 
Street on seven metres and fifty three centimetres 
(7.53m).

Towards the South West by a common road 
three metres and ninety centimetres (3.90m) wide 
on twenty seven metres and forty three centimetres 
(27.43m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit of the Ministry of 
Housing and Lands as ACQ/75/000512 drawn up 
by Mr. Zafrullah-bin-Ismet SOOKIA Government 
Land Surveyor on the twenty eighth day of 
December two thousand and eighteen.

The plan may be inspected by the public at 
the Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing 
and Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office 
hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation. ' : rj (

!b
Date: 18/03/2019

‘ f

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication ,

General Notice No. 733 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Petite Riviere, 
in the district of Black River for the public purpose 
of the Construction of A1-A3 Link Road.

DESCRIPTION

PortionNo.l(SeriaINo.l4) [PIN: 1714730105] 
of an extent of eight hundred and eighty and fifty 
nine hundredths square metres (880.59m2) is 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of fifty 
six square perches (0A56P) or two thousand three 
hundred and sixty three and sixty nine hundredths 
square metres (2363.69 m2) belonging to GAMMA 
CIVIC LTD (formerly known as RANDABEL & 
SONS LIMITED) holder of a business registration 
number C06001228 as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 1231/31 and is bounded 
as follows:-
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Towards the East by the surplus of land on two 
lines measuring thirty metres and one centimetre 
(30.01m) and seventy three metres and seventy 
seven centimetres (73.77m) respectively.

Towards the South by the surplus of land on 
four metres and ninety nine centimetres (4.99m).

Towards the West by Cremation Road on eighty 
six metres and sixty six centimetres (86.66m) and 
on a developed length measuring thirteen metres 
and fifty two centimetres (13.52m) respectively.

Towards the North by a common road (tarred) 
on fifteen metres and ninety three centimetres 
(15.93m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000508, 
drawn up by R. K. Baboolall, Land Surveyor on 
07/12/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at 
the Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing 
and Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office 
hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 14/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower, 
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 734 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Petite Riviere, 
in the district of Black River for the public purpose 
of the Construction of A1-A3 Link Road.

DESCRIPTION

PortionNo.2(SerialNo.l5) [PIN: 1714280408] 
of an extent of five hundred and eighty nine and 
forty nine hundredths square metres (589.49m2) 
is excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
one arpent (1A00P) or four thousand two hundred 
and twenty and eighty seven hundredths square 
metres (4220.87m2) belonging to by GAMMA 
CIVIC LTD (formerly known as RAND ABEL & 
SONS LIMITED) holder of a business registration 
number C06001228 as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 5630/17 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North by a common road (tarred) 
on two lines measuring twenty five metres and 
forty nine centimetres (25.49m) and six metres 
and thirty centimetres (6.30m) respectively.

Towards the East by Cremation Road on sixty 
six metres and forty nine centimetres (66.49m).

Towards the South by Portion No. 3 (Serial 
No. 16) of the plan mentioned below on five metres 
and twenty four centimetres (5.24m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on two 
lines measuring fifty four metres and forty eight 
centimetres (54.48m) and thirty metres and thirty 
four centimetres (30.34m) respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000508, 
drawn up by R.K Baboolall, Land Surveyor on 
07/12/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 14/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower, 
Ebene.
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Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 735 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Petite Riviere, 
in the district of Black River for the public purpose 
of the Construction of A1-A3 Link Road.

DESCRIPTION

PortionNo.3(SerialNo.l6)[PIN:1714280409] 
of an extent of one hundred and thirty five and 
sixty six hundredths square metres (135.66m2) 
is excised from a portion of land being all that 
remains of forty arpents and ninety three square 
perches (40A93P) or seventeen hectares two 
thousand seven hundred and sixty square metres 
(17 ha 2760m2) belonging to MEDINE LTD 
(formerly known as THE MEDINE SUGAR 
ESTATES COMPANY LIMITED) holder of 
business registration number C06000045 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 958/118, IVnt and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the East by Cremation Road on twenty 
six metres and sixty four centimetres (26.64m).

Towards the South by the surplus of land on 
five metres and five centimetres (5.05m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on 
twenty six metres and twenty eight centimetres 
(26.28m).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 2 
(Serial No. 15) of the plan mentioned below on 
five metres and twenty four centimetres (5.24m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000508, 
drawn up by R. K. Baboolall, Land Surveyor on 
07/12/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 

written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 14/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 736 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Petite Riviere, 
in the district of Black River for the public purpose 
of the Construction of A1-A3 Link Road.

DESCRIPTION

PortionNo.4(SerialNo.l7)[PIN:1714680209] 
of an extent of one hundred and twenty three and 
ninety eight hundredths square metres (123.98m2) 
is excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
forty five arpents (45A00P) or eighteen hectares 
and nine thousand nine hundred and thirty nine 
square metres (18 ha 9939m2) belonging to 
CIRCONSTANCE ESTATES LIMITED holder 
of business registration number C06000733 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 530/613, 2° and is bounded as follows:

Towards the North by Chebel Branch Road 
(Bl 06) on seventeen metres and seventy 
centimetres (17.70m).

Towards the North East by an Estate Road on 
a developed length measuring eight metres and 
seventy seven centimetres (8.77m).

Towards the South by the surplus of land 
on thirty two metres and fifty two centimetres 
(32.52m).

Towards the North West by a former railway 
track on a developed length measuring nine metres 
and fifteen centimetres (9.15m).
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The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000508, 
drawn up by R.K Baboolall, Land Surveyor on 
07/12/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 14/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower, Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 737 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Petite Riviere, 
in the district of Black River for the public purpose 
of the Construction of A1-A3 Link Road.

DESCRIPTION

PortionNo.5(SeriaINo.l8)[PIN:1714690151] 
of an extent of two thousand three hundred and 
two and seventy eight hundredths square metres 
(2302.78m2) is excised from a portion of land of 
an extent of one hundred and thirty one arpents 
and twenty five square perches (131A25P) or fifty 
five hectares and three thousand nine hundred 
and eighty nine square metres (55 ha 3989m2) 
belonging to MEDINE LTD (formerly known as 
THE MEDINE SUGAR ESTATES COMPANY 
LIMITED) holder of business registration number 
C06000045 as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 958/118, Int and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North East by land being acquired 
from MEDINE LTD (formerly known as THE 

MEDINE SUGAR ESTATES COMPANY 
LIMITED) on seventy two metres and twenty six 
centimetres (72.26m).

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
on thirty seven metres and three centimetres 
(37.03m).

Towards the South West by Chebel Branch Road 
(B106) on a developed length measuring forty four 
metres and forty nine centimetres (44.49m).

Towards the West by a former railway track on 
a developed length measuring fifty six metres and 
twenty one centimetres (56.21m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000508, 
drawn up by R.K Baboolall, Land Surveyor on 
07/12/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 14/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 738 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Petite Riviere, 
in the district of Black River for the public purpose 
of the Construction of A1-A3 Link Road.

DESCRIPTION
PortionNo.6(SerialNo. 19) [PIN: 1908100091] 

of an extent of two hundred and forty and forty two 
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hundredths square metres (240.42m2) is excised 
from a portion of land of an extent of four arpents 
and sixty four square perches (4A64P) or nineteen 
thousand five hundred and eighty four and eighty 
four hundredths square metres (19584.84m2) 
belonging to MEDINE LTD (formerly known as 
THE MEDINE SUGAR ESTATES COMPANY 
LIMITED) holder of business registration number 
C06000045 as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 376/255 and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North by the surplus of land on 
twenty metres and seventy seven centimetres 
(20.77m).

Towards the East by a common road of three 
metres and ninety centimetres (3.90m) wide on a 
developed length measuring seventeen metres and 
forty three centimetres (17.43m).

Towards the South by Chebel Branch Road 
(Bl06) on fourteen metres and thirty two 
centimetres (14.32m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land 
on eleven metres and sixty six centimetres 
(11.66m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000508, 
drawn up by R.K Baboolall, Land Surveyor on 
07/12/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at 
the Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing 
and Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office 
hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 14/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 739 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Petite Riviere, 
in the district of Black River for the public purpose 
of the Construction of A1-A3 Link Road.

DESCRIPTION

PortionNo.7(SerialNo.20)[PIN:1907080062]  
of an extent of one hundred and fifty five and 
sixty one hundredths square metres (155.61m2) 
is excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
forty five arpents (45A00P) or eighteen hectares 
and nine thousand nine hundred and thirty nine 
square metres (18 ha 9939m2) belonging to 
CIRCONSTANCE ESTATES LIMITED holder 
of business registration number C06000733 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 530/613,2° and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by a former railway 
track on five metres and sixty one centimetres 
(5.61m).

Towards the South by the surplus of land on 
forty three metres and eighty centimetres (43.80m).

Towards the West by the surplus of land on 
three metres and forty nine centimetres (3.49m).

Towards the North by Chebel Branch Road 
(Bl06) on thirty nine metres and seventy 
centimetres (39.70m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000508, 
drawn up by R.K Baboolall, Land Surveyor on 
07/12/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at 
the Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing 
and Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office 
hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
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the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 14/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 740 of 2019

the land acquisition act
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Coromandel 
in the district of Plaines Wilhems for the public 
purpose of the construction of Al-Ml Link 
Road.

DESCRIPTION
Portion No. 1 (Serial No. 79) [PIN: 

171 4140263] of an extent of eleven and three 
hundredths square metres (11.03 m2) is excised 
from a portion of land being all that remains of one 
thousand four hundred and twenty one and twenty 
five hundredths square metres (1421.25m2) after 
excision of a plot of land of an extent of ninety 
square metres (90m2) acquired compulsorily 
by State of Mauritus by virtue of a notice of 
Section 8 of the Land Acquisition Act registered 
and transcribed as per volume number TV 
201507/001128 belonging to NATIONAL REAL 
ESTATE LTD bearing business registration 
number C09088666 as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 7438/50 and is bounded 
as follows:-

Towards the East by surplus of land on two 
lines measuring three metres and sixty three 
centimetres (3.63m) and fifteen metres and twenty 
two centimetres (15.22m) respectively.

Towards the South by Portion No. 2 (Serial 
No. 80) of the plan mentioned below on sixty two 
centimetres (0.62m).

Towards the West by State Land [TV 
20 1 507/001128] on a developed length measuring 

eighteen metres and eighty six centimetres 
(18.86m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000507, 
drawn up by Rajendra Kumar Baboolall, Land 
Surveyor on the 12/12/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 18/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 741 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Coromandel 
in the district of Plaines Wilhems for the public 
purpose of the construction of Al-Ml Link 
Road.

DESCRIPTION
Portion No. 2 (Serial No. 80) [PIN: 

1714140262] of an extent of ten and seventy three 
hundredths square metres (10.73m2) is excised 
from a portion of land being all that remains of 
one thousand five hundred and nineteen and sixty 
seven hundredths square metres (1519.67m2) 
after excision of a plot of land of an extent 
of fifty one square metres (51m2) acquired 
compulsorily by State of Mauritius by virtue of 
a notice of Section 8 of the Land Acquisition Act 
registered and transcribed as per volume number 
TV 201507/000213 belonging to LI SING PAK 
CO LTD holder of business registration number 
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C07004260 as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 4295/2.3 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North by Portion No. 1 (serial 
No. 79) of the plan mentioned below on sixty two 
centimetres (0.62m).

Towards the East by surplus of land on two 
lines measuring ten metres and one centimetre 
(10.01m) and ten metres and forty centimetres 
(10.40m) respectively.

Towards the South by land belonging to 
J&B Contractor CO LTD on one metre and four 
centimetres (1.04m).

Towards the West by State Land [TV 
201507/000213] on a developed length measuring 
twenty metres and forty one centimetres (20.41m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000507, 
drawn up by Rajendra Kumar Baboolall, Land 
Surveyor on the 12/12/2018.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 18/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 742 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that the Government of 
Mauritius intends to acquire compulsorily four (4) 
portions of land, hereinafter described, situate at 

Congomah in the district of Pamplemousses for the 
public purpose of upgrading of Jadoo Bridge.

DESCRIPTION

Serial No. 1 - Portion No. 1 [PIN 1203010190] 
of the extent of seventy five square metres (75m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of the 
extent of three arpents and eighty square perches 
(3A80) or sixteen thousand and thirty nine and 
thirty hundredths square metres (16,039.30m2) 
belonging to “The Hindi Prachahini Sabha” as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V 451/109 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the river reserves 
of Congomah Rivulet on two lines measuring five 
metres and sixty seven centimetres (5.67m) on a 
developed length and five metres and thirty four 
centimetres (5.34m) on a straight line.

Towards the South East by Congomah Public 
Road on ten metres and ninety four centimetres 
(10.94m).

Towards the South West by Belvedere Road on 
a developed length measuring ten metres and fifty 
five centimetres (10.55m).

Towards the North West by the surplus of 
land belonging to “The Hindi Prachahini Sabha” 
on five lines measuring one metre and sixteen 
centimetres (1.16m), four metres and nine 
centimetres (4.09m), two metres and seventy one 
centimetres (2.71m), fourteen metres and thirty 
one centimetres (14.31m) and four metres and 
twenty nine centimetres (4.29m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit as ACQ/75/000522 
and PCR 1052/2019, drawn up by Mr. Rishi 
Kumar Bhekharee, Government Land Surveyor 
on 24/01/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at 
the Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing 
and Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office 
hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days of 
the second publication of this Notice in the Gazette 
a written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
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the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 18/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 743 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that the Government of 
Mauritius intends to acquire compulsorily four (4) 
portions of land, hereinafter described, situate at 
Congomah in the district of Pamplemousses for the 
public purpose of upgrading of Jadoo Bridge.

DESCRIPTION

Serial No. 2 - Portion No. 2 [PIN 1203050148) 
of the extent of two hundred and seventy eight 
square metres (278m2) is to be excised from a 
portion of land of the extent of one arpent and 
fifty square perches (1A50P) or six thousand 
three hundred and thirty one and thirty hundredths 
square metres (6,331.30m2) belonging to Heirs 
Ramchureetur Kissoon and Others as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume T.V 521/245 
and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East partly by the surplus of 
land belonging to Heirs Heeralall Kissoon, partly 
by portion No. 4 described below and partly by 
portion No. 3 described below on twenty seven 
metres and thirty centimetres (27.30m).

Towards the South East partly by a pavement 
running along Congomah Public Road and partly 
by Congomah Public Road on three lines measuring 
three metres and seventy five centimetres (3.75m), 
ninety seven centimetres (0.97m) and eight metres 
and sixty six centimetres (8.66m).

Towards the South West by the river reserves of 
Congomah Rivulet on twenty nine metres and nine 
centimetres (29.09m).

Towards the North West again by the river 
reserves of Congomah Rivulet on seven metres 
and forty nine centimetres (7.49m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit as ACQ/75/000522 
and PCR 1052/2019, drawn up by Mr. Rishi 
Kumar Bhekharee, Government Land Surveyor 
on 24/01/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days of 
the second publication of this Notice in the Gazette 
a written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 18/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower, 
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 744 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that the Government of 
Mauritius intends to acquire compulsorily four (4) 
portions of land, hereinafter described, situate at 
Congomah in the district of Pamplemousses for the 
public purpose of upgrading of Jadoo Bridge.

DESCRIPTION

Serial No. 3 - Portion No. 3 [PIN 1203050149] 
of the extent of eighty one square metres (81m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of the extent 
of fifty square perches (0A50P) or two thousand 
one hundred and ten and forty three hundredths 1 
square metres (2110.43m2) belonging to Mr. Louis 
Gustave Minerve (for bare ownership) and Mr. 
Mylius Minerve (for Usufruct) as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume T.V 1450/19 and 
is bounded as follows: -
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Towards the North East by a pavement running 
along Congomah Public Road on a developed 
length measuring seventeen metres and thirty 
centimetres (17.30m).

Towards the South West by portion No. 2 
described above on nine metres and fourteen 
centimetres (9.14m).

Towards the North West by portion No. 4 
described below on thirteen metres and seventy 
two centimetres (13.72m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit as ACQ/75/000522 
and PCR 1052/2019, drawn up by Mr. Rishi 
Kumar Bhekharee, Government Land Surveyor 
on 24/01/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at 
the Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing 
and Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office 
hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days of 
the second publication of this Notice in the Gazette 
a written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 18/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene.

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 745 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that the Government of 
Mauritius intends to acquire compulsorily four (4) 
portions of land, hereinafter described, situate at 
Congomah in the district of Pamplemousses for the 
public purpose of upgrading of Jadoo Bridge.

DESCRIPTION

Serial No. 4 - Portion No. 4 [PIN 1203050147] 
of the extent of one hundred and ninety seven 

square metres (197m2) is to be excised from two 
contiguous portions of land of twenty five square 
perches (0A25P) or one thousand and fifty five and 
twenty one hundredths square metres (1055.21m2) 
each belonging to Heirs Heeralall Kissoon as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V 487/15 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East partly by Congomah 
Public Road and partly by a pavement running along 
Congomah Public Road on three lines measuring 
twenty nine metres and ninety seven centimetres 
(29.97m), ninety four centimetres (0.94m) and six 
metres and seventy one centimetres (6.71m).

Towards the South East by portion No. 3 
described above on thirteen metres and seventy 
two centimetres (13.72m).

Towards the South West partly by portion No. 2 
described above and partly by the surplus of land 
belonging to Heirs Heeralall Kissoon on three 
metres and sixty two centimetres (3.62m) and 
forty one metres and thirty centimetres (41.30m) 
on a developed length.

Towards the North West by the land belonging 
to Mr. Kumarlall Khoobarry on one metre and 
eighty six centimetres (1.86m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit as ACQ/75/000522 
and PCR 1052/2019, drawn up by Mr. Rishi 
Kumar Bhekharee, Government Land Surveyor 
on 24/01/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at 
the Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing 
and Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office 
hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days of 
the second publication of this Notice in the Gazette 
a written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 18/03/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene.
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General Notice No. 746 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that the Government of 
Mauritius intends to acquire compulsorily ninety 
two (92) portions of land, hereinafter described, 
situate at Belle Vue Pilot and Fond Du Sac in the 
district of Pamplemousses for the public purpose 
of the Construction of drains in the context of 
Flood Mitigation Measures at Fond Du Sac.

DESCRIPTION

Serial No. 30-Portion No. 25 [PIN 1206130075] 
of the extent of one thousand seven hundred and 
twenty square metres (1,720m2) is to be excised 
from a portion of land of four thousand one 
hundred and fifty seven and sixty five hundredths 
square metres (4,157.65m2) belonging to 
Mr. Roodrashen NEEWOOR as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume T.V 1597/162 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide on thirty nine metres 
and sixty three centimetres (39.63m).

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Roodrashen NEEWOOR on 
nine lines measuring six metres and twenty six 
centimetres (6.26m), thirty two metres and ninety 
two centimetres (32.92m), nine metres and four 
centimetres (9.04m), three metres and thirty eight 
centimetres (3.38m), forty metres and twenty one 
centimetres (40.21m), twenty five metres and 
fifty five centimetres (25.55m), seven metres and 
sixteen centimetres (7.16m), twenty two metres 
and sixty eight centimetres (22.68m) and seven 
metres and sixty seven centimetres (7.67m).

Towards the South West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide on thirty five 
metres and eighty two centimetres (35.82m).

Towards the North West by the axis of a 
common and party road 3.66m wide on two lines 
measuring thirty six metres and twenty centimetres 
(36.20m) and seventy five metres and fifty five 
centimetres (75.55m).

The whole as morefully shown on a 
plan registered at the Cadastre Unit as

ACQ/75/000523 and PCR 604/2019, drawn up by 
Mr. Rishi Kumar Bhekharee, Government Land 
Surveyor on 15/02/2019.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days of 
the second publication of this Notice in the Gazette 
a written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

The Hon Ashit Kumar Gungah 
Minister of Industry, Commerce 

and Consumer Protection
Who has been duly assigned in accordance with 

section 62 of the Constitution , the responsibilities 
of the Minister of Housing and Lands by the Acting 
President of the Republic of Mauritius inter-alia-

(a) Land Use including Use of state Lands and 
Pas Geometriques; and

(b) Land Surveys

Date: 29/03/ 2019

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 747 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Petite Riviere 
Noire in the district of Black River for the public 
purpose of the construction of a bus layby and 
bus stop.

DESCRIPTION

The portion of land (PIN 1903010678) of 
an extent of one hundred and twenty four and 
thirty hundredths square metres (124.30m2) is 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
one thousand Arpents (1000A) belonging to 
“Case Noyale Limitee” bearing BRN C06002444 
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as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume TV 7939/23 and is bounded as follows.-

Towards the North by Black River Savanne 
Coast Road (B9) on forty seven metres and seven 
centimetres (47.07m).

Towards the South by the surplus of the land 
belonging to “Case Noyale Limitee” on seven 
lines measuring twenty one metres and forty 
two centimetres (21.42m), four metres and two 
centimetres (4.02m), two metres (2.00m), three 
metres (3.00m), two metres (2.00m), two metres 
and twenty five centimetres (2.25m) and seventeen 
metres and thirty two centimetres (17.32m) 
respectively.

The whole as morefully shown on plan 
registered at the Cadastral Unit as ACQ/75/000320 
drawn up by Mr. Zafrullah-bin-Ismet SOOKIA 
Government Land Surveyor on the twelth day of 
August two thousand and sixteen. The plan may 
be inspected by the public at the Archives Office 
of the Ministry of Housing and Lands, at Ebene 
Tower, Ebene during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette, a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 04.04.2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

General Notice No. 748 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated the 13/10/2014 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 24 (Serial No. 24) [PIN 1420030244] 
situate at St Julien D’Hotman in the district of 
Flacq for the public purpose of constructing a 
bypass in connection with the improvement 

of Moka-Camp de Masque-Flacq Road (A7), 
published in the Government Gazette in its issues 
of the 18/10/2014 and 01/11/2014 under General 
Notices No. 2587 of 2014 and No. 2695 of 2014 
respectively and transcribed on 30/01/2015 in 
Volume TV201501/001073, the words and figures 
“belonging to Mr Lutchmeenarain RAMSOHOK 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed Volume 
TV 595/52” are deleted and replaced by the 
following words and figures “belonging to 
Heirs Lutchmeenarain RAMSOHOK (Late 
Mr Lutchmeenarain RAMSOHOK born on 
26/02/1928 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number R2602281601611) as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 595/52 
and affidavit of succession transcribed in Volume 
TV 9242/51” wherever they appear.

Date: 01.04.2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

General Notice No. 749 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated the 13/10/2014 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 24A (Serial No. 24A) [PIN 1420030245] 
situate at St Julien D’Hotman in the district of 
Flacq for the public purpose of constructing a 
bypass in connection with the improvement 
of Moka-Camp de Masque-Flacq Road (A7), 
published in the Government Gazette in its issues 
of the 18/10/2014 and 01/11/2014 under General 
Notices No. 2586 of 2014 and No. 2694 of 2014 
respectively and transcribed on 30/01/2015 in 
Volume TV201501/001075, the words and figures 
“belonging to Mr Lutchmeenarain RAMSOHOK 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed Volume 
TV 595/52” are deleted and replaced by the 
following words and figures “belonging to 
Heirs Lutchmeenarain RAMSOHOK (Late 



1836 The Mauritius Government Gazette

Mr Lutchmeenarain RAMSOHOK born on 
26/02/1928 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number R2602281601611) as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 595/52 
and affidavit of succession transcribed in Volume 
TV 9242/51” wherever they appear.

Date: 01.04.2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene

General Notice No. 750 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated the 29/09/2008 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 53 (Serial No. 290) [PIN 1204030387] 
situate along Robinson to Rivalland in the district 
of Pamplemousses for the public purpose of 
constructing the Terre Rouge-Verdun-Trianon 
Link Road published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of the 11/10/2008 and 25/10/2008 
under General Notices No. 1886 of 2008 and No. 
1982 of 2008 and transcribed on the 31/12/2008 
in Volume TV 7248/21, the words and figures 
“is excised from a portion of land of an original 
extent of six and eight fifteenths square perches 
(0A06 8/15P) or two hundred and seventy five and 
seventy five hundredths square metres (275.75m2) 
belonging to Mrs Jusmateea RUGHOOA as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume T.V 
814 No. 89” in the description of Portion No. 53 
(Serial No. 290) are hereby deleted and replaced 
by the following words and figures situate at 
Montagne Longue “is excised from a portion of 
land of an original extent of ten and eight fifteenths 
square perches (0A010 8/15P) or four hundred 
and forty four and sixty hundredths square metres 
(444.60m2) belonging to Mr. Heerah BULATOO 
born on 24/05/1955 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number B240555450038D as 

evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
T.V. 1515 No. 47” wherever they appear.

Date: 01.04.2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 751 of 2019

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY.
NATIONAL SOLIDARITY. AND ENVIRONMENT

AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (ENVI­
RONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

DIVISION)

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 
OF EIA REPORT

Notice is hereby given under Section 20 
of the Environment Protection Act 2002 by the 
Department of Environment, Ministry of Social 
Security, National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development (Environment 
and Sustainable Development Division) that an 
application for an EIA Licence has been submitted 
on 28 March 2019 under Section 18(1) of the Act 
for a scheduled undertaking and that the EIA report 
shall be opened for public inspection.

(a) The undertaking concerns the Proposed 
Setting up of a Desalination Plant with a 
nominal production capacity of 150m3/ day 
at the Akasha Villas Complex by Barachois 
Villas Company Ltd

(b) The location of the proposed undertaking is 
at Le Barachois, Tamarin in the district of 
Black River

(c) The report may be inspected during normal 
office working hours (i.e. 08.45 to 12.00 hrs 
and 12.30 hrs to 16.00 hrs) at the Resource 
Centre of the Department of Environment, 
Ground Floor, Ken Lee Tower, Cnr. Barracks 
and St. Georges Streets, Port Louis and at the 
District Council of Black River

The report may also be inspected on the 
Ministry’s website at the following address: 
http://environment. govmu. ore

http://environment._govmu._ore
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(d) Public comments should be submitted in 
writing to the Director of Environment on 
26 April 2019 at latest. The envelope should 
be marked “EIA comments”, on the top left 
hand comer and addressed to:

The EIA Desk
Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security,
National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development 
5th Floor, Ken Lee Tower
Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges Streets 
Port Louis

4 April 2019

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security, 

National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development

First Publication

General Notice No. 752 of 2019

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL SECURITY, NATIONAL 
SOLIDARITY, AND ENVIRONMENT AND 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (ENVIRONMENT 
AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT DIVISION)

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION OF 
EIA REPORT

Notice is hereby given under Section 20 of 
the Environment Protection Act 2002 by the 
Department of Environment, Ministry of Social 
Security, National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development (Environment 
and Sustainable Development Division) that an 
application for an EIA Licence has been submitted 
on 3 April 2019 under Section 18(1) of the Act for 
a scheduled undertaking and that the EIA report 
shall be opened for public inspection.

(a) The undertaking concerns the Proposed 
Setting up of a 4-Star business hotel 
development comprising amongst others, 
28 rooms, restaurants, bar, spa and health 
centre over two adjacent plots of State 
Land and private owned land of an extent 
of 3,909m2 and 1047m2 respectively by 
Generess Hotel Ltd.

(b) The location of the proposed undertaking 
is at Baie du Tombeau in the district of 
Pamplemousses.

(c) The report may be inspected during normal 
office working hours (i.e. 08.45 hrs to 12.00 
hrs and 12.30 hrs to 16.00 hrs) at the Resource 
Centre of the Department of Environment, 
Ground Floor, Ken Lee Tower, Cnr. Barracks 
and St. Georges Streets, Port Louis and at the 
District Council of Pamplemousses.

The report may also be inspected on the 
Ministry’s website at the following address: 
http'.//environment, govmu, org

(d) Public comments should be submitted in 
writing to the Director of Environment on 
3 May 2019 at latest. The envelope should be 
marked “EIA comments”, on the top left hand 
comer and addressed to:

The EIA Desk
Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security,
National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development 
5th Floor, Ken Lee Tower
Cnr. Barracks and St Georges Streets
Port Louis

11 April 2019

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Social Security, 

National Solidarity, and Environment 
and Sustainable Development

General Notice No. 753 of 2019

POLICE NOTICE

Traffic arrangement along Brabant Street, 
Port Louis

By virtue of authority conferred upon me by 
Section 25(3)(4) of the Police Act 1974 and Section 
181 of the Road Traffic Act, traffic arrangements 
as hereunder will be made as from 15 April 2019 
with a view to improve the traffic flow:

As from 15.30 hrs to 18.00 hrs on weekdays.

(i) Brabant Street from its junction with 
Deschartes Street up to its junction with 
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Maupin Street will be converted in a two 
way Street. The extreme left lane of that 
stretch of the road, when facing La Butte, 
will be reserved for vehicles proceeding 
towards Bell Village;

(ii) Vehicles proceeding from La Butte towards 
Lord Kitchner Street will not be authorized 
to use the extreme right lane of Brabant 
Street during the aforesaid hours;

(iii) Vehicles emerging from Ruisseau Creole 
Street and D’Entrecasteaux Street and 
proceeding towards Lord Kitchner Street 
will, therefore, engage the middle lane of 
Brabant Street during the aforesaid hours;

(iv) Vehicles emerging from Caudan Street and 
De Conti Street, when turning to the left, 
will engage the extreme left lane when 
proceeding towards Lord Kitchner Street 
during the aforesaid hours.

2. JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS

Non compliance with these traffic arrangements 
will entail judicial proceedings.

The cooperation and understanding of the public 
would be much appreciated.

11.04.2019

K. M. Nobin, PMSM 
Commissioner of Police

Office of the Commissioner of Police
Police Headquarters 

Line Barracks
Port Louis

General Notice No. 754 of 2019

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF FLACQ

SALE BY AUTHORITY OF JUSTICE

On the Friday the 26th day of April 2019 at 10.30 
of the clock in the forenoon in the yard of Flacq 
District Court, I, the undersigned Senior Court 
Usher, together with Mr. Goburdhun, Court usher, 
will sell by Public Auction to the highest bidder 
and for cash the following forfeited Articles as 
per an Order dated 11th March 2019, made by the 
Senior District Magistrate of the above Court:

List of Articles:

One alloy, 15 sabres, 14 knives, 2 cutters, 
2 electric pumps, 2 gas cylinders, 1 screwdriver, 
1 rattan basket, 1 crowbar, 1 electronic scale, 
1 Hachette, 8 bottles of rum-Goodwill, 3 bottles 
of whisky, 10 bottles of wine, 2 spring balances, 
5 pints of beer, 10 bottles of beer, 1 bottle of 
champagne, 1 mobile phone, 3 packs of beer, 
perfumes, 1 bottle of Black Horse, 1 metal rod, 1 
crash helmet.

The above-mentioned articles will be displayed 
one hour before the sale.

Dated at Flacq District Court this 8th April 2019.

Mahomed Nasser Akbar
Senior Court Usher in andfor 

the District Court of Flacq 
and in charge of sale.

General Notice No. 755 of 2019

COMMUNIQUE

THE JUDICIARY

Transfer of Savanne District Court

NOTICE is hereby given that, pursuant to an 
Order made by the Honourable Chief Justice on 
5th April 2019 in virtue of Section 95 of the Courts 
Act, the District Magistrate of Savanne will hold 
sittings to hear all cases and for the dispatch of 
court business within the jurisdiction of Savanne 
District Court, and that all services pertaining 
thereto will henceforth be provided in the premises 
of Ex-SIFB building situated at Royal Road, 
Souillac (near old Savanne District Court), as from 
Thursday 2nd May 2019.

The public is also notified that the normal court 
business will continue to be from 9.00 a.m. to 
3.30 p.m. on weekdays and from 9.00 a.m. to Noon 
on Saturdays.

Dated this 5th April 2019.

R. D. DABEE 
Master and Registrar
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General Notice No. 756 of 2019

COMMUNIQUE

THE JUDICIARY

ORDER

(made by the Honourable Chief Justice 
under the Courts Act)

NOTICE is hereby given that the Honourable 
Chief Justice has, in virtue of Section 95 of the 
Courts Act, ordered that Savanne District Court will, 
as from Thursday 2nd May 2019, hold its sittings at 
the premises of Ex-SIFB Building situated at Royal 
Road, Souillac (near old Savanne District Court)

Dated this 8th April 2019.

R. D. DABEE 
Master and Registrar

General Notice No. 757 of 2019

LIST OF MAURITIUS COUNCIL OF 
REGISTERED LIBRARIANS 

FOR THE YEAR 2018

S/N Names
1 AH-FAT PITT-FONG Christine (Ms)

2 APPADOO Preeya (Mrs)

3 AUBDOOLARY Shaukat Nayaz (Mr)

4 BACHWA-PURDASY Anjuman
Banon (Mrs)

5 BAHADOOR Durga Bharati (Mrs)

6 BAHEMIAARIF Mahmad Ikbal (Mr)

7 BALLOO Vimla (Mrs)

10 BEECHOOK Soonita (Mrs)

11 BEEHARRY Vikash (Mr)

12 BEELONTALLY Bibi Farzanah (Mrs)

13 BEHAREE Sarita (Mrs)

14 BEEMADOO Kistnensamy (Mr)

15 BEHARY Saroj (Mrs)

16 BHEECHOWA Bhartee (Mrs)

17 BHOOABUL Savita (Mrs)

18 BHOYROH Sharmila (Mrs)

19 BODHA Mary Joyce Alicia (Mrs)

20 BOODHNA Shaneel (Mr)

21 BOODNEEBHUGOBAUN

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54.

55

56

57

58

59

Madhuri Devi (Mrs)

BOOJHAWON Kashish (Mr) 

BOYJONAUTH Prakash Poonith (Mr) 

BULDAWO Leelodhur (Mr) 

BUNGSY Usha Devi (Mrs) 

BUNGSY Shillah (Mrs)

CAUSSY Preethee (Mrs) 

CHENGANNA Sangaren Naidu (Mr) 

CONTAVADOO Nandita Kumari (Ms) 

COOSNAPA Marie Lourdes (Mrs) 

DASSYNE Ishwarduth (Mr) 

DAWOONAUTH Priya (Mrs) 

DEENA-RAMDHARRY Neermala 
Devi (Mrs)

DESROCHES Marie Nathalie (Mrs) 

DHUNPUTH Soutitah Devi (Mrs) 

DUSSORUTH Vedusy (Mrs) 

EDOOMBEN Amravadee (Mrs) 

ELLYEBACCUS Fatima Zohra (Mrs) 

ESSOO Reeshmabye (Ms) 

FAZALL Bibi Shafinaz (Mrs) 

FULENA Sharda (Mrs) 

GHEESEEWAN Kaviraj (Mr) 

GOPAL Oomawtee Devi (Ms) 

GOPAUL Gheerishsing (Mr) 

GHUNASHAM GOKHOOL Vima (Mrs) 

HAUROO Premchand (Mr) 

HAUROO Vandana (Mr) 

HITTOO Bindya (Mrs) 

HURREE Shelia (Mrs)

HURRY Nanda (Mrs)

IMRIT KUTWAROO Vishwani (Mrs) 

ISSUR Premila (Mrs)

JACQUES Natasha Marie (Mrs) 

JAYPAL Priya Darshini Ameeta (Mrs) 

JHEENGUN-SEEBUN Kirteemanee (Mrs) 

JHUGROO Hansa (Mrs) 

KANTOMDASS Ousha (Mrs) 

KAWOL JUGDHUR Venusha (Mrs) 

KHURUN Vidushi Supriya (Ms)
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60 LAI CHEONG KING Desire Laval 
Teddy Mike (Mr)

61 LAM Helena M.L. (Dr. Ms)

62 LAVIOLETTE Marie Corinne Priscille
Sylvana (Mrs)

63 LIM KIN Marie Josia (Mrs)

64 LIU YEW FAI YOUNG Mee Line (Mrs)

65 LOBIN Numita Kumari (Mrs)

66 LOUISE JEAN FRANCOIS Dominique (Mr)

67 LUCHMUN Tanuja (Mrs)

68 LUXIMON Gobin Vishwanee (Mrs)

69 MATADEEN Natasha (Mrs)

70 MAUNRAJOO-PRAYAG Sookwantee (Mrs)

71 MAURICE Mario Leon Noel (Mr)

72 MEER-HOSSEN Nassim Bibi (Mrs)

73 MOONESAWMY Asha (Mrs)

74 MOOTYEN RUNGASAMY Roubama (Mrs)

75 MUNGLOO Bibi Nasima (Mrs)

76 MUNISAMY Emavadee (Mrs)

77 MUTHOORA Anuradha Devi (Mrs)

78 NAIDOO Dhanalakshimi (Ms)

79 NAPAUL Hemrawtee (Mrs)

80 NARAYDOO Smita Preeti (Mrs)

81 NAUGAH Padmini (Ms)

82 NEWAJ Hema Malini (Mrs)

83 NEWOOR Anuradha Laskhmi (Mrs)

84 NUNKOO Abdool Cader (Mr)

85 PADARUTH Oumardeep (Mr)

86 PANCHOO Shirin (Mrs)

87 PEERBUCUS-BAHADOOR Bibi
Nasseembee (Mrs)

88 PEERUN Devianee (Mrs)

89 PERYAGH SEEBUNDHUN Kirtee Kiran (Mrs)

90 PIERRE Marie Josiana (Mrs)

91 POINEN Poumany (Mrs)

92 POOLOOCOOTEE Pamela (Mrs)

93 POONTAUB Vandana Devi (Mrs)

94 QORAISHI Noordin (Mr)

95 RAMBARRUTH Vijayantee Devi (Mrs)

96 RAMCHARN Tanina (Mrs)

97 RAMGUTTEEA Bharatee Devi (Mrs)

98 RAMKISSOON Sarita Devi (Mrs)

99 RAMLALL Gaytree (Mrs)

100 RAMNAUTH Toolsee Kreetee (Mrs)

101 RAMPADARUTH Lalinee (Mrs)

102 RAMPHUL Chinta Devi (Mrs)

103 RAMPUL Indira (Mrs)

104 RAMRACHEEA Madhvi (Mrs)

105 RAMS AMY Jayen (Mr)

106 RAMSURRUN Ramduth (Mrs)

107 RENGHA - BEEHARRY Kheeran Devi (Mrs)

108 ROSE Marie Jacques (Mrs)

109 RUNGEE Banumatee (Mrs)

110 S. APPADU Prabaotee (Mrs)

111 SAHADEW Chintamani Devi (Mrs)

112 SANTOKEE Nandini (Mrs)

113 SATTOORGHEN Damayantee (Mrs)

114 SAWOCK Padmowatee (Mrs)

115 SAYEDHOSSEN NUNDOOSING
Nazmeem (Mrs)

116 SEEBALUCK Meenakshi (Mrs)

117 SEEBUN Kirteemanee (Mrs)

118 SEECHURN -TEELOKEE Nuveena (Mrs)

119 SEENGH Daneshwaree (Mrs)

120 SEEP ARSON Tirtharanee (Mrs)

121 SEERATUN Sarosuttee (Mrs)

122 SEERUNGEN Dailna (Ms)

123 SEE WOORUTTUN Mandita (Mrs)

124 SETOHUL Sunita Devi (Mrs)

125 SITHUL Sangiv Koomar (Mr)

126 SOJAGUEN-NASTILI Avaimmal (Mrs)

127 SONATUN Shrawan Kumar (Mr)

128 SUGGOONA Veena (Mrs)

129 TAJOO SHEWTAHAL Vijayeta Devi (Mrs)

130 TAKOOR Lalita (Mrs)

131 TOOLSEE Oumowtee (Mrs)

133 UNTOO Satyabhama (Mrs)

134 WAN AH FAT Min Yook (Ms)

Ministry of Arts and Culture
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General Notice No. 758 of 2019

THE REHABILITATION YOUTH CENTRE 
BOARD OF VISITORS 2019/2020

In accordance with section 53(3)(a) of the 
Reform Institutions Act 1988, the Honourable 
Minister Mentor, Minister of Defence, Minister 
for Rodrigues has reconstituted the Rehabilitation 
Youth Centre Board of Visitors for the year 
2019/2020 as follows:-

Chairperson Mrs Leelawtee RAMSAHA

Member Mr Doobrajsing ADJODHA
Representative of the Ministry of 
Youth and Sports

Mr Surujdev Mohun SURAT 
Representative of the Ministry of 
Labour, Industrial Relations, 
Employment and Training

Mr Noorani FAREED
Representative of the Probation and 
Aftercare Service

Mrs Kessavadee Kandasaamy 
MOOTOOSAMY

Ms Mary Doris Sylvia RAJIAH

Mrs Marie Arlette NAD AN, M.S.K

Mr Dharamdeve RAMDOSS

Ministry of Defence and Rodrigues

General Notice No. 759 of 2019

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 151(5) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Notice is hereby given that the requirements of 
Section 151(2) of the Insolvency Act 2009 having 
been complied with, the private Category 2 Global 
Business Company “Gehicle Investment Parallel 
Holdings” File Number C080618 is dissolved on 
11 March 2019.

Date: 1st April 2019

Director of Insolvency Service 
One Cathedral Square, 

Jules Koenig Street,
Port Louis

General Notice No. 760 of 2019

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 415(2)(c) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT

Notice is hereby given that unless cause is 
shown to the contrary within three months from 
the date of this notice, the following companies 
will be struck off the register: -

Cl200 ESQUIRE LIMITED
C2948 HAZA LIMITED
C3 710 DE CH AZ AL DU M EE & COMPANY LIMITED
C4028 NIZAAR LIMITED
C4175 BOURGEON INVESTMENTS LIMITED
C4176 FOREIGN TRADE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
C4445 Euro Chem Co Ltd
C4506 SOUVENIRS (MAURITIUS) LTD.
C5158 PHARMACIE PEEROO & CIE LTEE
C6809 PILLYS ESTATES LTD
C7036 SUNESTA COMPANY LIMITED
C7389 DAB LIMITED
C7735 SEA ROCK PARADISE LTD
C8069 FAST FORWARD LIMITED
C8275 100,000 CHAUSSURES (ILE MAURICE)LTEE
C8489 MEGA ENERGY LIMITED
C9071 NAPOCALTEE
C9185 CEDAR MAGNETICS LIMITED
C9825 CNI EXPORTERS (MTIUS) LTD
Cl0753 G. S. R. TRANSPORT CO LTD
C11105 REB ECCA TEXTILE LTD
C11222 FAIR LINE MARKETING LTD
Cl 1451 S. R. JAULIM & SONS LTD
Cl 1680 EPICURE COMPAGNIE LTEE
Cl 1686 CHEZ LINDSAY CIE LTEE
C11793 TALBOT IMPORT-EXPORT CO LTD.
Cl2410 HAPPY LIFESTYLE

Date: 03 April 2019

Director of Insolvency Service 
One Cathedral Square, 

Jules Koenig Street,
Port Louis

General Notice No. 761 of 2019

REGISTRATION OF A TRADE UNION

Notice is hereby given under Section 5(5) 
of the Employment Relations Act that the 
“MT Services Workers Union”, a trade union 
whose membership is open to “any person of either 
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sex who is employed by MT SERVICES LIMITED 
as clerical Support (PS-A), Driver (PS-A), General 
Helper (PS-A), General Helper - Office (PS-A), 
General Helper-Field (PS-A), Helpdesk Operator 
(PS-A), Technical Helper ( PS-A), Office Support 
(PS-B), Wireless Support Operator (PS-B), 
Cashier (PS-C), Office Assistant (PS-C), Outdoor 
Sales Assistant (PS-C), Sales Assistant (PS-C), 
Assistant Sales Representative (PS-C), Assistant 
Wireless Coordinator (PS-C), Clerical Assistant 
(PS-C), CSR Assistant (PS-C), Human Resources 
Assistant (PS-C), Multimedia Assistant (PS-C), 
Property Services Assistant (PS-C), Technical 
Assistant (PS-C), Graphic Assistant (PS-C), 
Health Assistant (PS-C), Image Service Assistant 
(PS-C), IS Assistant (PS-C), Legal Assistant 
(PS-C), Marketing Coordinator (PS-C), Property 
Services Coordinator (PS-C), Sales Animation 
Assistant (PS-C), Sales Coordinator (PS-D), 
Telecom Coordinator (PS-D), Administrative 
Coordinator (PS-E), Communication Editor 
(PS-E), Coordinator Network Intelligence 
(PS-E), Enterprise Solutions Client Coordinator 
(PS-E), Graphic Artist (PS-E), Human Resource 
Coordinator (PS-E), IS Technician (PS-E), 
Junior Network Engineer (PS-E), Legal Officer 
(PS-E), Merchandising Assistant (PS-E), Project 
& IS Coordinator (PS-E), Project Coordinator 
(PS-E), Technical Analyst (PS-E), Web Developer 
(PS-E), Business Development Officer (PS-F), IS 
Coordinator (PS-F), Marketing Specialist (PS-F), 
Merchandiser (PS-F), Network Engineer (PS-F), 
Senior Accounts Coordinator (PS-F), Senior 
Coordinator-Account Technology Strategist 
(PS-F), Senior Coordinator-Enterprise Solution 

Sales (PS-F), Senior Coordinator-Social and 
Digital Media (PS-F), Senior HR Coordinator 
(PS-F), Senior System Coordinator (PS-F), 
Software Engineer (PS-F), Test Engineer (PS-F), 
Business Analysis & Quality Assurance Officer 
(PS-G), IS Administration Officer (PS-G), IS 
Security Officer (PS-G), IS Specialist (PS-G), 
IT Administrator (PS-G), Principal Business 
Application Developer (PS-G), Principal 
Coordinator - Database Administration (PS-G), 
Principal Coordinator-ERP Support (PS-G), 
Principal Coordinator - Marketing (PS-G), 
Principal Coordinator - Project Management 
& Planning (PS-G), Principal Coordinator - 
System & Database (PS-G), Principal Human 
Resources Coordinator (PS-G), Senior Business 
Development Officer (PS-G), Senior IP Network 
Architect (PS-G), Senior Marketing Specialist 
(PS-G), Senior Software Engineer (PS-G), Senior 
Testing Engineer (PS-G) provided that he is not a 
member of another trade union in the enterprise 
where he is employed or his bargaining unit” has 
been registered by me with registration number 
TU 781 on 15 March 2019 and the address of 
its registered office is at Block G3, Lagrement, 
Saint-Pierre.

Any other registered union aggrieved by my 
decision to register the “MT Services Workers 
Union” may, under section 5(8) of the said Act, 
within 21 days of the publication of this notice 
in the Gazette appeal against the decision to the 
Employment Relations Tribunal.

Dated 15 March 2019.

V. Sanasy 
Registrar of Associations

General Notice No. 762 of 2019

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 310(l)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given pursuant to section 309( 1 )(b) of the Companies Act 2001 that the companies listed 
below are to be removed from the register as there is reason to believe that these companies have ceased to 
carry on business and there is no other reason for these companies to continue in existence/ have failed to 
pay the registration fees/ have not filed the annual return as required under section 223(2) of the Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later than 09 May 2019.

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C093173 FABRICS DEALERS CO LTD AVENUE BEGONIA MORC SWAN TOMBEAU BAY
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C093213 SPEAK Human Rights & Environmental 
Initiative Ltd

BCMS CORPORATE SERVICES LTD LISLET GEOFFROY 
STREET 2ND FLOOR CHANCERY HOUSE PORT LOUIS

C093280 Societe de Gerance Immobiliere Ltee SIBOTIE HOUSE ANSE COURTOIS LES PAILLES

C093286 S.T.F.L. LTEE CENT GAULETTES ROAD SEBASTOPOL

C093309 MAURIMETAL LTD STRUDWICK LANE QUEEN MARY AVE FLOREAL

C093342 BODY-FX LTD D 90 CLOS VERGER ROSE HILL

C093344 POWER SOUND (RODRIGUES) LIMITED C/O DAVID CASIMIR BASSIN MARTIN NATIR 
RODRIGUES

C093362 AUGUST NEUBERT LTD SAINT ANTOINE INDUSTRIAL ZONE GOODLANDS

C093390 GH FASHION LTD ROYAL ROAD PAMPLEMOUSSES

C093397 Maurissimmo Ltd LEES ST CUREPIPE

C093434 AGREES COMPANY LIMITED DYNAMO ROAD TYACK RIV DES ANGUILLES

C093437 TRAVELITE LTD 40A RTE DU JARDIN CUREPIPE

C093561 GREEN FILM PRODUCTION LTD ST JEAN ROAD ARCADES DOOKUN QUATRE BORNES

C093593 Italkeys Ltd LA CAVERNE NO 2 VACOAS

C093594 Frocks & Rocks Ltd LA CAVERNE NO.2 VACOAS

C093602 Paintball Ltd LA CAVERNE NO 2 VACOAS

C093622 MOOD WISE LTD BEAU PLAN SUGAR ESTATE BEAU PLAN 
PAMPLEMOUSSES

C093659 BLUE LADDER CO LTD DOORGANAH VENKATASAWMY AVENUE 
GOODLANDS

C093670 CARLOC LTEE CONSTANCE FLACQ

C093796 PAYET PROPERTIES LTD C/O TC & TC - OFFICE 243 BLOC C THE JUNCTION 
BUSINESS HUB ARSENAL BRANCH ROAD, 
CALEBASSES

C093836 Seeff Development Ltd BONAIR ROAD BONAIR INDUSTRIAL ZONE C/O 
STANFORD COVE LTD TRIOLET

C093864 ADVANCE CAR LTD 6TH MILE PAMPLEMOUSSES

C093895 Z & Q INTERNATIONAL CO LTD AVE PERRUCHE 2 LES PAILLES

C093912 JS GLOVES & LEATHER PROTECTION CO 
LTD

RAILWAY ROAD BELLE TERRE PHOENIX

C093931 Prestige Developers Ltd 10 ALLEE BRILLANT ROAD FLOREAL

C094008 SPIDERMAN CO LTD RAMPHUL LANE ST HUBERT CLUNY

C094046 TEJ MAHAL WEDDING SERVICES LTD 378A BERNARDIN DE ST PIERRE VALLEE DES 
PRETRES

C094171 DESTINY VALLEY CAR RENTAL Ltd FOOLMAUN ROAD CREVE COEUR

C094234 Trinny Security Services Ltd 2B CAPTAIN BRUCE ST ROSE HILL

C094298 NYSHPRINT CO. LTD 244 MORC MONTREAL COROMANDEL

C094318 Shunmoogum Co Ltd CALLYCHURN LANE CARREAU LALLIANE VACOAS

C094414 SOHATEE COMPANY LTD C/O DEEYAHPRAKASH SOHATEE CO-OPERATIVE 
ROAD DEUX FRERES
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C094425 UNDERCOVER CO. LTD. 26 L L'HOMMEST ROSE HILL

C094451 PALM ISLAND INVESTMENT LTD C/O MR JADOO HERMANN DOOKUN BONNE TERRE 
VACOAS

C094458 OHELENE LTD 1F2 MOORGATE HOUSE SIR WILLIAM NEWTONS T 
PORT LOUIS

C094499 EBOCA LTEE 15 RIVERSIDE LANE BELLE ETOILE COROMANDEL

C094527 BEDELL CRISTIN (MAURITIUS) 
PARTNERSHIP

12TH FLOOR, RAFFLES TOWER 19 CYBERCITY EBENE

C094538 SEASON GIFT LTD DARWIN ROAD CAROLINE BEL AIR RIVIERE SECHE

C094632 Phoenix Autoparts CO LTD ROYAL ROAD PHOENIX

C094648 SHANUZ TRADING LTD 47 AMBROSE ST ROSE HILL

C094726 Garage Rajen Ramdhonee and Sons Ltd. 132 BASSIN ROAD Q BORNES

C094745 PRIME EVENTS LTD 17 RAMDAREE LANE COROMANDEL

C094746 BLUE MOUNTAIN CONTRACTING 
SERVICES LTD

OFFICE 221 THE JUNCTION BUSINESS HUB 
CALEBASSES

C094762 MAT et LUC LTD. MORC RAFFRAY PTE AUX CANONNIERS

C094880 OPTIC PALACE LTD CAMP LA BOUE RUISSEAU ROSE LONG MOUNTAIN

C094886 Paper Gate Ltd 1ST FLOOR WING FAT BLDG JUMMAH MOSQUE ST 
PORT LOUIS

C094887 LIFE CARE PHARMACY LTD 72 EDGAR LAURENT ST PORT LOUIS

C094998 TCHIC TCHAC PARADISE LTD DES CREOLES ST MAHEBOURG

C095002 TCHIC TCHAC PRESS LTD DES CREOLES ST MAHEBOURG

C095052 SANRIQ TRADING LTD ROYAL ROAD MONT IDA

C095107 UTAYA Co. LTD Royal Road Ripailles St Pierre

C095257 MYOGA LTEE C/O MRS VINCENT HAREL ROYAL ROAD G R S E

C095262 Pharmaber Ltee 112 PAMPLEMOUSSES ROAD STE CROIX

C095314 A.B.A Self Service Ltd C/O SOMLO RAMSAMY ONE WAY ST ST PIERRE

C095350 ISLAND FLEET LTD MAUREL LANE LEES ST CUREPIPE

C095378 COLIBRI BEACH VILLAS LTD MOKA ROAD BELLE ROSE

C095439 B & R Pydiah Ltd 18/20 VERGER MANGUES LANE NO 3 POINTE AUX 
SABLES

C095456 JLB Tours Ltd RUGHOOPUTH AVENUE DAISY LANE 38 PALMA Q 
BORNES

C095593 Incredible India CO LTD 2ND FLOOR FON SING BLDG EDITH CAVELL PORT 
LOUIS

C095601 MABOT TRAITEUR LIMITEE 7eme Ave DES ALURIERS POINTE AUX CANONIERS

C095699 SILKROSE (MAURITIUS) LTD 35 AVE JACQUIER PTE AUX SABLES

C095747 I AM COMPUTERS Ltd 115 BOUNDARY ROAD Q BORNES

C095908 POLAR TRAVEL & TOURS Ltd 29 BOULEVARD VICTORIA ST VALLEE PITOT PORT 
LOUIS

C095996 QUALITY HOME FURNISHINGS LTD NO 1 DR JOSEPH RIVIERE ST PORT LOUIS
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C096117 INVESTIMA LTD CNR SIR WILLIAM NEWTON & SSR STREET 2ND 
FLOOR, ARC BUILDING PORT LOUIS

C096124 Chez Jud LTee 49 BASSIN ROAD Q BORNES

C096211 DE PALAPRAT Cie Ltee MONT OREB PEREYBERE

C096255 OBORD DE L'O LTEE C/O CTA SIR WILLIAM NEWTON ST PORT LOUIS

C096337 Wintogrid Ltd C/O BUTTER & DAIRY ENTERPRISE VALENTINA 
INDUSTRIAL ESTATE PHOENIX

C096379 Sovereign - Yacht Ltd TELFAIR ST SOUILLAC

C096411 Solidus Partners Ltd 16 John Kennedy Avenue, Sinews Global Ltd, Floreal

C096467 RELOCATION & CONSULTING SERVICES 
(Mtius) Ltd

19 LENEPVEU ST PORT LOUIS

C096497 VALAYDUM TRAVEL TOURS LTD. 21 MORCELLEMENTANTELME FOREST SIDE

C096622 CPMD LTD SUGAR MALL SWAMI SIVANANDA AV VACOAS

C096845 T.O.I Terrassement Ocean Indien Ltd C/O INTERFACE MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD 9TH 
FLOOR RAFFLES TOWER 19 CYBERCITY EBENE

C096858 LC Management CO LTD JAYPAL RD PLAINE DES PAPAYES

C096968 Mam' Zile Ltee RUE LA HAUSSE DE LA LOUVIERE FLOREAL

C097005 MARYTEX LTD 604 RICHARD HOUSE REMY OLLIER ST PORT LOUIS

C097057 CHAMAREL DAIRY FARM CO LTD ROBERT REY ST ROPCHES BRUNES HEME AVENUE

C097175 KLC MANAGEMENT LIMITED HANOOMANJEE LANE ALLEE BRILLANT FLOREAL

C097242 Calculus International Limited MOUNT ORY RD, BON AIR, 112 MOKA BUSINESS 
CENTRE, MOKA

C097313 WEE R BUILDING AND INTERIORS LTD 16 RIVER LANE AVENUE JOHN KENNEDY VACOAS

C097318 Human Dolphin Connection Ltd ROYAL ROAD GRAND SABLE

C097424 HOME IMPRESSIONS LTD 1 VINGTA LANE VACOAS

C097450 MCFI EXPORT LTD 18 EDITH CAVELL ST PORT LOUIS

C097486 Parboteeah Cuisine Co Ltd 4 CHEBEL ROAD BEAU BASSIN

C097586 DCF ROOTS COMPANY LTD 17 FRANKLIN STREET MANGALKHAN STREET 
FLOREAL

C097653 LA PAILLOTE DU PECHEUR LTEE BEAU MANGUIER CAP MALHEUREUX

C097734 R.N.R WORLD CO LTD 22 DIORE ST PORT LOUIS

C097760 ANNAMALAI ASSOCIATES LTD ROYAL ROAD 7TH MILE TRIOLET

C097764 DCDM PROCUREMENT SERVICES LTD 10 FRERE FELIX DE VALOIS ST PORT LOUIS

Date 4 April 2019

Registrar of Companies
One Cathedral Square

Jules Koenig Street
Port Louis
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General Notice No. 763 of 2019

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that MCIA/MSIRI has 
applied to the Central Water Authority for renewal 
of a ground water licence to use ground water from 
a borehole at Belle Rive for irrigation and domestic 
purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing within the Authority stating reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor, Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

29 March 2019
MCIA/MSIRI

General Notice No. 765 of 2019

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF MEDINE 
(CAMP DE MASQUE)

DECLARATION OF VACANCY IN OFFICE

Under the provision of Section 38 of the Local 
Government Act 2011,1 hereby declare the office 
of Mr Anwar KEENOO, elected member of the 
Village Council of Medine, Camp de Masque to 
be vacant.

Mr. Anwar Keenoo, has ceased to be a 
Councillor by virtue of Section 39 of the Local 
Government Act 2011. This Notice of declaration 
of vacancy is made pursuant to Section 39(2) of the 
Local Government Act 2011.

Date: 11 March 2019

General Notice No. 764 of 2019 V. THAKOOR
Chief Executive

District Council Office
Plaine de Gersigny 
Flacq

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ

NOTICE

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF SEBASTOPOL

Notice is hereby given that the seat of 
Mr. Dharmavirsingh RAMKALAWON elected 
member of The Village Council of Sebastopol has 
become vacant under Section 38(a) of the Local 
Government Act 2011, as subsequently amended.

Date: 12 February 2019

General Notice No. 766 of 2019

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney-General is pleased to authorise Louis 
Fabien CHATON to change his surname 
CHATON into that of CHATON SINISKA so 
that in future he shall bear the names and surname 
of Louis Fabien CHATON SINISKA.

V. Thakoor
Chief Executive

Date: 5th April 2019

District Council Office
Plaine de Gersigny 
Flacq

B. Sawock (Ms)
Senior State Counsel



13 April 2019 1847

General Notice No. 767 of 2019

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY

Notice is hereby given that the following applications have been received by the Authority and the 

Authority will shortly hear the said applications.

APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

S.N

213

214

215

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

Licence No Name of Applicant Weight of
Vehicle Base of Operation Description of 

goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/193 67 Samsara Transport
Services Ltd

NYP 
46000Kg 

GV

Bundhoo Lane, 
Grand Bois

Effluent
+

Waste

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19368 Payen Pro Logistics 
Commercials Ltd

NYP 
31450Kg 

GV

49, Rue Abbe Laval,
Curepipe

General Goods
+

Containers

NTA/PUB/A/LC/193 69 ODERUTH
Noormohamed Ally

NYP 
5400Kg 

GV

Mosque Road, 
Plaine des Papayes General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19370 RAMSING Ashna
(Bom Seewah)

EJ336
13000Kg

GV

Baitka Lane,
Mare Tabac General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19371 MOOTOO
Narainsamy

NYP 
12500Kg 

GV

Camp Fouquereaux, 
Phoenix General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/193 72 VALAYOODUN
Soopramanien

NYP 
20000Kg 

GV

Morcellement Roy, 
Bel Air Riviere Seche General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19373 Jolie Coeur Co Ltd
NYP 

5700Kg 
GV

Royal Road,
Roches Noires General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19374 CATTIC
Lutchmee Chaaya Devi

NYP 
5000Kg 

GV

Appiah Road, 
Ecroignard General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19375 Pradeep Ltd
NYP 

40000Kg 
GV

Royal Road, 
Mon Desir, Vacoas General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/193 76 Pradeep Ltd
NYP 

40000Kg 
GV

Royal Road, 
Mon Desir, Vacoas General Goods
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

S.N Licence No Name of Applicant Weight of
Vehicle Base of Operation Description of 

goods

228 NTA/PUB/A/LC/193 82

224 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19378

225 NTA/PUB/A/LC/193 79

226 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19380

227 NTA/PUB/A/LC/193 81

223 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19377 RAMDOWAR
Veenayesing

NYP 
32000Kg 

GV

ISSUR
Kessosingh

NYP
13500Kg

GV

G Mohadeb Brothers
Co Ltd

NYP 
30000Kg 

GV

HULOOMAN
Dharamveer

3560ZP99
24580Kg 

GV

BUNDHUN NYP
Shree Gawtranand 4000Kg

Kumar GV

NYP
DS Sachi Transport Ltd 35000kg

GV

Middle Road, 
Plaine des Papayes General Goods

Royal Road,
Creve Coeur General Goods

Causta Lane, 
Castel General Goods

Kowlessur Road, 
Surinam General Goods

Royal Road,
Bon Accueil

General Goods
+

Waste

Royal Road, 
Cite La Ferme, 

Bambous
General Goods

APPLICATION FOR ADDITION AND VARIATION OF PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

VEHICLE 
NUMBER &

S.N REF NO NAME OF 
APPLICANT

MAXIMUM 
GROSS 

WEIGHT

BASE OF 
OPERATION

GOODS 
TO BE CARRIED

229 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18794 G Mohadeb 
Brothers Co Ltd

1555ZT03
243890Kg

GV

Causta Lane, 
Castel

From: General Goods 
To: Containers

POKHUN
Suriesingh

7562DZ01 Grand Port From: Waste 
To: Effluent230 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18742 35100Kg

GV
Road, Novelle 

France

231 NTA/PUB/A/LC/504
Associated 
Container 

Services Ltd

BW433 
22765Kg 

GV

Trou Fanfaron, 
Port-Louis

From: General Goods
To: General Goods+Containers
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE (TAXI) LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT VEHICLE 
NUMBER

BASE OF 
OPERATION

31 28047/C From: Yogendr RAMGOOLAM

To: Ritesh JODAHSING

Taxi Car
5905AG14

Place Margeot, Rose-Hill

32 35157/C From: (Late) Adam Cassim CASMALLY

To: Heirs Adam Cassim CASMALLY to be 
represented by Bibi Fazila CASMALLY and 1 Heir

Taxi Car
2133BZ13

Plaine Verte Center

33 12891/C From: Soondur MATOO

To: Gulshandev MATOO

Taxi Car
1362ZP00

La Flora

34 41470/C From: (Late) Mohunparsad GAYA Taxi Car
7135ZZ10

Vallee des Pretres

To: Heirs Mohunparsad GAYA to be represented by 
Swraswati Devi GAYA

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(CONTRACT CAR) LICENCE

Reunion Road, Vacoas

S.N REF NO
VEHICLE

NAME OF APPLICANT NUMBER BASE OF OPERATION

9 24786/D-2/D From: J.K..V Trans Island Tours Ltd 1 car From: Allee Brillant Street, Castel, Floreal
7834OC14

To: Haowanzai Tours (Mtius) Ltd To: Morcellement VRS 2, Lot 15,
Pointe aux Piments

10 25223/D-3/D From: Chuckun Geeta 3 cars From: Morcellement Poonith,
9884OC18 Reunion Road, Vacoas

To: Geeta Chuckun Ltd 9886OC18
9890OC18 To: Morcellement Poonith,



1850 The Mauritius Government Gazette

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(CONTRACT BUS) LICENCE

S.N REF NO
VEHICLE

NAME OF APPLICANT NUMBER BASE OF OPERATION

20 31247/E From: TNQ Tours Ltd 7970NV13 From: Husnoo Lane, Notre Dame,
15 Seater Long Mountain

To: ALMEISAN Co Ltd
To: Husnoo Lane, Notre Dame, 
Long Mountain

21 26874/E From: Dhanwantee RAMSAHA 4787AG11 From: Gaby Lane, Palma, Quatre-Bomes
14 Seater

To: Pramila JOORY To: 47, Joory Lane, Floreal

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF ROAD SERVICE LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT

3 NTA 20/63/4164 From: Dusoye Vinaiswarlall

ITINERARY

In respect of 59-seater bus 1289 operating 
along route 87

To: New Arizona Co Ltd

Any person legally entitled to do so may set out his/her objection/s or other representation/s together with 
his/her name and address and must give the reasons thereof in writing so that these may reach the Secretary 
to the Board, National Transport Authority, MSI Building, Royal Road, Cassis, Port Louis not later than 
on the seventh day of publication of this notice, in the Government Gazette. Any objection, that reaches the 
Secretary to the Board after the prescribed time limit will not be entertained.

MSI Building
Les Cassis 
Port Louis
10 April 2019
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General Notice No. 768 of 2019

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY

Application for taxi licence

Notice is hereby given that the Authority proposes to grant taxi licences on transfer to operate taxis from 

SSR International Airport.

2. Only applications from those who satisfy the following criteria will be considered: -

(i) They must be operating from the following bases of operation :

1. Beau Vallon 21. Petit Bel Air

2. Blue Bay 22. Riche en Eau

3. Bois D’Oiseaux (Plaine Magnien) 23. Riviere des Creoles

4. Beau Fond (Plaine Magnien) 24. Trois Boutiques

5. Chatgaon (Plaine Magnien) 25. Ville Noire

6. Sauveterre 26. Camp La Hache, (L’Escalier)
7, Plaine Magnien 27. La Rosa

8. Grand Bel Air 28. Gros Billot

9. Mon Desert Mon Tresor 29. La Sourdine

10. Allee Gheude (Mahebourg) 30. L’Escalier

11. Mahebourg 31. Mare Chicose

12. Camp Kenya 32. Mon Fertile

13. Carreau Accacia 33. New Grove

14. Carreau Esnouf 34. St. Hilaire

15. Carreau La Paille 35 Bois des Amourettes

16. Cite La Chaux (Mahebourg) 36 Ferney

17. Kenya 37 Mare Tabac

18. Le Bouchon Village 38 Rose Belle

19. Rampe Le Moirt 39 St. Hubert

20. Mare D’Albert

(ii) They should have operated from their actual base of operation for the past three years;

(iii) They should have a clean criminal record for the last three years;

3. Applicants who have applied in response to press communique dated 13 March 2018 should not 

submit fresh applications. Their applications, together with the newly made applications, shall be 

considered by the Authority.

4. (i) Application forms may be collected at the Licensing Section of the National Transport
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

Authority’s Office, MSI Building, Cassis between 09h00 and 15h00 on any working day as 

from 15 April 2019.

(ii) Application forms duly filled in, together with a fee of Rs. 300/- shall be deposited at the 

Licensing Section on 19 April 2019 by 15h00 at latest.

(iii) Applicants should produce the original and copy of their Public Service Vehicle (Taxi) 

Licences when submitting their applications.

Note: Applications received after the closing date shall not be considered.

WARNING

Any applicant who knowingly makes a false statement in his application shall commit an offence 
under section 160 of the Road Traffic Act and shall, on conviction, be liable to a fine not 
exceeding 10,000 rupees and to imprisonment for a term not exceeding 12 months.

MSI Building
Les Cassis
Port Louis

10 April 2019
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General Notice No. 769 of 2019

TRADEMARK NOTICES

Data Identification Codes

The data identification codes appearing in the tables below are WIPO standards and are known as 
Internationally recognised Numbers for the Identification of Data (INID) Codes.

NID Codes For Marks

Code Interpretation Code Interpretation Code Interpretation
(310) Application (151) Registration Date (Hl) Registration Number

Number
(511) Nice Classification (730) Applicant’s Name & Address

(320) Filing Date
(540) Description of the (740) Representative’s Name &

(330) Priority Data Mark Address

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002
(Regulation 38)

Notice is hereby given that the following marks have been accepted under Section 38 of the Patents, Industrial 
Design &Trademarks Act 2002:-

(310) MU/M/2019/28842 (320) 20/02/2019
(730) Saint Aubin Limitee
(730) Savanne Road, Saint Aubin 61501, 

Republic of Mauritius
(511) 5, 30, 32 and 44
(540) La Maison du Miel du Domaine

de Saint Aubin

La Maison, da Miel
du Domaine de Saint Aubin

(310)
(730)

(740)

(5U)
(540)

27195/2018 (320) 22/05/2018
MERIDYEN GID A SANAYIVE TICARET 
LIMITED SIRKETI
Maltepe Mahallesi, Ali RizaGurcan Caddesi, 
Eski Cirpici Yolu Sokak, Meridyen is Merkezi, 
Kat:4, No: 426, Zeytinbumu, Istanbul, Turkey 
Kashish International Limited, (IP Agent) 
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes 
(32)
JUST POWER (Fig.)
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PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued

(310) 28076/2018 (320) 12/10/2018
(730) JOHNSON & JOHNSON

ONE JOHNSON & JOHNSON PLAZA, 
NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY 
USA, 08933, U.S.A.

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis 

(511) (5)

(540) MYLANTA

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

28375/2018 (320) 30/11/2018
HOLDING AVENUE
430 Avenue Aristide Berges ZA de Pre Millet, 
38330 Montbonnot-
Saint-Martin, France
Kashish International Limited (IP Agent) 
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bomes 
(43)
TACOS AVENUE (Fig.)

rTaco^ 
•flvenue

(310) 28632/2019 (320) 22/01/2019
(730) TATA MOTORS LTD

Bombay House, 24 Homi Mody Street, 
Mumbai, 400 001, Maharashtra, India 

(740) Mr Pravin BARTHIA, Trademark Agent
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

(12)

H5X
(511)
(540)

28633/2019 (320) 22/01/2019
TATA MOTORS LTD
Bombay House, 24 Homi Mody Street, 
Mumbai, 400 001, Maharashtra, India 
Mr Pravin BARTHIA, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis
(12)

H7X
(310)
(330)
(730)

(740)

(5H)
(540)

28690/2019 (320) 25/01/2019
17937270 27/07/2018 EU
UBEEQO INTERNATIONAL
696 Rue Yves Kermen, L'Arche Du Parc, 
Boulogne-Billancourt, 92100, France 
Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis
(12, 35, 36 and 39)
ubeeqo logo

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

28712/2019 (320) 31/01/2019
BID VEST PAPERPLUS (PROPRIETARY) 
LIMITED
Lithotech House, Hampton Park, 2
Gauteng, South Africa
Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis
(16)

CROXLEY
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PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued

(310) 28928/2019 (320) 11/03/2019
(330) 4490512 11/10/2018 FR
(730) ULRIC DE VARENS SA

6 rue de Berri, 75008 PARIS, France
(740) Pravin Barthia Trademark Agent 

ENSafrica (Mauritius,) 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (3)
(540) UDV (logo) ULRIC DE VARENS 

II.V

ULRIC DE VARENS

(310) 28766/2019 (320) 08/02/2019
(730) ADVTECH LIMITED

Advtech House, Building 3, Block 7, Inanda 
Greens, 54 Wierda Road West, Wierda Valley, 
Sandton, 2196,
South Africa

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes 

(511) (9, 16, 35 and 41)
(540) ADVTECH LOGO 

iWKH

(310) 29051/2019 (320) 29/03/2019
(730) Industria de Diseno Textil, S.A. (Inditex, S.A.) 

Avenida de la Diputacion, Edificio Inditex - 
15142 Arteixo (A Coruna), Spain

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis

(511) (43)

<540) ZARA

(310) 28786/2019 (320) 11/02/2019
(730) Amstel Brouwerij B.V.

Tweede Weteringplantsoen 21, 1017 ZD 
AMSTERDAM, The Netherlands

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent 
ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (32)

(S40> AMSTEL
(310) 28791/2019 (320) 12/02/2019
(730) Mitsubishi Jidosha Kogyo Kabushiki Kaisha

33-8, Shiba 5-chome, Minato-ku, 
Tokyo 108-8410, Japan

(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attorney at Law 
Etude Philips International Ltd, Suite 310, 
St James Court, St Denis Street, Port Louis

(511) (12)

<540) TRITON

(310) 28723/2019 (320) 31/01/2019
(730) VILLARS MAITRE CHOCOLATIER SA 

Route de la Fonderie 18, 1700 Fribourg , 
Switzerland

(740) Zohra Yusuf Nazroo, Attorney at Law
12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (30)

<540) VILLARS
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(310)
(730)

28985/2019
MNTL

(320) 21/03/2019

2nd Floor, Fon Sing Bldg, Edith Cavell Street,

(511)
(540)

Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius 
(43)
Sweet Island + logo

(310) 28986/2019 (320) 21/03/2019
(730) XVENTURE (MAURITIUS) LTD

2nd Floor, Fon Sing Bldg, Edith Cavell Street, 
Port Louis., Republic of Mauritius

(511) (43)
(540) THE SEA FOLKS MEDITARRANEAN

THE SEA FOLKS
MEDITERRANEAN SEAFOOD

(310)
(730)

(320) 21/03/2019

(740)

(511)
(540)

28987/2019
Unilever PLC
Port Sunlight, Wirral, Merseyside,
United Kingdom
Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis
(3)

OCEAN CRUELTY
FREE

(310) 28997/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
(730) BODECOR LIMITED

3rd Floor, Toorawa Centre, 28, SSR Street,
Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius

(740) Rumesh POSOOA, Attorney At Law
1st Floor, 203, Chancery House,
Lislet Geoffroy Street, Port Louis 

(511) (6, 11, 16, 20, 24 and 27)
(540) In My Home by Manjoo & Logo

I n HOME
by Manjoo

(310) 28988/2019 (320) 21/03/2019
(730) SUMITOMO RUBBER INDUSTRIES, LTD.

6-9, Wakinohama-cho 3-chome, Chuo-ku
Kobe-shi, Hyogo 651-0072, Japan

(740) Andre Robert, Senior Attorney
No.8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis

(511) (12)

<54” GRANDTREK

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

28998/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
BODECOR LIMITED
3rd Floor, Toorawa Centre, 28, SSR Street, 
Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius 
Rumesh POSOOA Attorney At Law 
1st Floor, 203, Chancery House, 
Lislet Geoffroy Street, Port Louis 
(8,21 and 24)
My Kitchen by Manjoo & Logo

Kitchen
by Manjoo
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(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

28999/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
BODECOR LIMITED
3rd Floor, Toorawa Centre, 28, SSR Street, 
Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius 
Rumesh POSOOA Attorney At Law 
1st Floor, 203, Chancery House, 
Lislet Geoffrey Street, Port Louis 
(20 and 24)
Bonne Nuit by Manjoo & Logo

(310) 29000/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
(730) BODECOR LIMITED

3rd Floor, Toorawa Centre, 28, SSR Street, 
Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius 

(740) Rumesh POSOOA Attorney At Law
1st Floor, 203, Chancery House, 
Lislet Geoffroy Street, Port Louis

(511) (24)
(540) Manjoo Since 1919

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

29001/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
BODECOR LIMITED
3rd Floor, Toorawa Centre, 28, SSR Street, 
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius 
Rumesh POSOOA Attorney At Law 
1st Floor, 203, Chancery House, Lislet 
Geoffroy Street, Port Louis
(6, 16, 20, 21, 24 and 27)

byManjoo

(310) 29004/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
(730) MAMMOUTH TRADING CO. LTD

Brabant Street, Bell Village,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (7, 9, 11 and 21)
(540) CONCETTO

CONCETTO

MANJOO
X since 1919

(310) 29002/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
(730) ANGELFITIN LTD

Royal Road, 9eme Mile, Triolet,
Republic of Mauritius 

(740) Rumesh POSOOA
1st Floor, 203, Chancery House,
Lislet Geoffroy Street, Port Louis 

(511) (5 and 44)
(540) Superkiller- Pest Control Solutions (and 

logo)

(310) 29007/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
(730) Bharatee Ramdoyal

Royal Road, Riche Mare, Flacq, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (29 and 35)
(540) RYB - PRE FROZEN FOOD (and logo)
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(310) 29013/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
(730) SAILUN GROUP CO.,LTD.

No.588, Maoshan Road, Huangdao District, 
Qingdao City, Shandong, China 

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent, ENSafrica
(Mauritius),
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (12)
(540) MAXAM and device

(310) 29014/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
(730) SAILUN GROUP CO.,LTD.

No.588, Maoshan Road, Huangdao District, 
Qingdao City, Shandong, China

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent, ENSafrica 
(Mauritius),
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (12)
(540) ROADX and device

VW

Q

(310) 29015/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
(730) SAILUN GROUP CO.,LTD.

No.588, Maoshan Road, Huangdao District, 
Qingdao City, Shandong, China

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent, ENSafrica 
(Mauritius), 19 Church Street,
Port-Louis

(511) (12)
(540) RXFROST and device

(310) 29016/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
(730) SAILUN GROUP CO.,LTD.

No.588, Maoshan Road, Huangdao District, 
Qingdao City, Shandong, China

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent, ENSafrica 
(Mauritius), 19 Church Street,
Port-Louis

(511) (12)
(540) RXMOTION and device

RXMOT70/V

(310) 29017/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
(730) SAILUN GROUP CO.,LTD.

No.588, Maoshan Road, Huangdao District, 
Qingdao City, Shandong, China

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent, ENSafrica 
(Mauritius), 19 Church Street,
Port-Louis

(511) (12)
(540) DYNAMAXX and device

(103) 29018/2019 (320) 22/03/2019
(730) SAILUN GROUP CO.,LTD.

No.588, Maoshan Road, Huangdao District, 
Qingdao City, Shandong, China

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent, ENSafrica 
(Mauritius), 19 Church Street,
Port-Louis

(511) (12)
(540) RXQUEST and device

IREKOOBFir
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(310) 29019/2019 (320) 25/03/2019
(730) Maheshwaree DANHOO-SEEBALUCK 

Bassin Road, Riviere du Rempart, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (35 and 36)
(540) LOGIKA (and logo)

(310) 29021/2019 (320) 25/03/2019
(730) T & T International Foods Limited

69 La Tour Koenig Street, Industrial Estate, 
Pointe aux Sables 11109,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (29 and 30)

<540) MASTER MINN
LOGIKA

(310) 29022/2019 (320) 25/03/2019
(730) T & T International Foods Limited

69 La Tour Koenig Street, Industrial Estate, 
Pointe aux Sables 11109,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (30 and 43)

(M0) TIBAZ MINN

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

29023/2019 (320) 25/03/2019
T & T International Foods Limited
69 La Tour Koenig Street, Industrial Estate,
Pointe aux Sables 11109, 
Republic of Mauritius 
(29 and 30)

BANZAI

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

29024/2019 (320) 25/03/2019
T & T International Foods Limited
69 La Tour Koenig Street, Industrial Estate, 
Pointe aux Sables 11109,
Republic of Mauritius
(29 and 30)

TI CUP

(310) 29025/2019 (320) 25/03/2019
(730) T & T International Foods Limited

69 La Tour Koenig Street, Industrial Estate, 
Pointe aux Sables 11109,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (29 and 30)

(540) APOLLO WOK
(310)
(730)

(511) 
(540)

29027/2019 (320) 26/03/2019
Honoris Holding Limited
c/o IQ EQ Corporate Services (Mauritius) 
Ltd, 33, Edith Cavell Street, Port-Louis 
11324, Republic of Mauritius
(41 and 42)
Honoris United Universities (Logo 2)

HON0RIS

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

UNITED UNIVERSITIES

29028/2019 (320) 26/03/2019
Honoris Holding Limited
c/o IQ EQ Corporate Services (Mauritius)
Ltd, 33, Edith Cavell Street, Port-Louis
11324, Republic of Mauritius
(41 and 42)
Honoris United Universities (Logo 1).

HON0RIS
UNITED UNIVERSITIES
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(310) 29029/2019 (320) 26/03/2019
(730) Honoris Holding Limited

c/o IQ EQ Corporate Services (Mauritius) 
Ltd, 33, Edith Cavell Street, Port-Louis 
11324, Republic of Mauritius

(511) (41 and 42)

<540) EDUCATION FOR
IMPACT

(310) 29030/2019 (320) 26/03/2019
(730) HossCo Ltd

94 Alma St, Vallee Pitot, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (9 and 35)

'40) SUNKILLER

(310) 29031/2019 (320) 26/03/2019
(730) Hoss Co. Ltd

94 Alma St, Vallee Pitot, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (9 and 35)
(540) HOSS

MOSS

(310) 29049/2019 (320) 29/03/2019
(730) NATIONAL COMPUTER BOARD

7th Floor, Stratton Court, La Poudriere Street, 
PORT-LOUIS, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (16, 35 and 42)
(540) Innovtech

(310) 29036/2019 (320) 26/03/2019
(730) Circus Advertising Company Limited 

c/o Eclosia Group, Gentilly, Moka, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Me Gerard H de Froberville, 
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port Louis

(511) (16, 24, 25, 29, 30, 32, 35, 41, 42, 43 and 45) 
(540) CIRCUS! & LOGO

CIRCUS!

(310) 29037/2019 (320) 26/03/2019
(730) Air Mauritius Limited

Air Mauritius Centre, P.J Kennedy Street, 
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius 

(740) Etude Guy Rivalland, Attorneys at Law
7th Floor, Chancery House,
Lislet Geoffroy Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (16)
(540) WAVES (Logo)_______________________

> IWf tnSURTTKJS

IN FUG Hl ENTLftTAlNMfNT GUIDE
bl OMMIfSUMLxr 01 00*0 M

(310) 29038/2019 (320) 27/03/2019
(730) ACE SCAFFOLDINGS CO. LTD

Cremation Street, Bois Rouge, Goodlands, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (6 and 37)
(540) Aces Group (and logo)

(310) 29034/2019 (320) 26/03/2019
(730) Tempo Fishing Club

Coolen Lane, Grand Baie ,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (41 and 43)
(540) Tempo Fishing Club & Logo
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(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

28771/2019 (320) 08/02/2019
Chanel Limited
QueensWay, Croydon, CR9 4DL, England, 
Great Britain
Me Vashish BHUGOO, Attomey-at-Law 
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B,
Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis
(3,9, 14, 18 and 21)
CLASSIC Perfume Bottle (without CC)

(310) 29050/2019 (320) 29/03/2019
(730) MERIDYEN GIDA SANAYIVE TICARET

LIMITED SIRKETI
Maltepe Mahallesi, Ali Riza Gurcan Caddesi, 
Eski Cirpici Yolu Sokak, Meridyen is Merkezi, 
Kat:4, No: 426, Zeytinbumu, Istanbul / , 
Turkey

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes 

(511) (32)
(540) DARK BLUE (Fig.) (and logo)

(310) 29047/2019 (320) 29/03/2019
(730) ORDERMANZER LTD

Church Road, Notre Dame 1220-02, Republic 
of Mauritius

(740) Zohra Yusuf NAZROO, Attomey-at-Law
12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (35 and 43)
(540) O with Fork & Spoon logo

Opposition, if any, to be lodged with the Controller, The Industrial Property Office, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, 
Regional Integration and International Trade (International Trade Division), 11th Floor, Sterling House, Lislet 
Geoffroy Street, Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius by way of notice and within the delay prescribed by law (2 
months) in accordance with the Patents, Industrial Designs and Trademarks Act 2002.

Date: 11 April, 2019 Ag. Controller 
Industrial Property Office
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Legal Notices and Advertisements
Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs Kersley 
JUGGIAH of Doolar Lane, Mahebourg have 
applied to the Honourable Attorney General for 
leave to change the name of their minor daughter 
Aanalyaa into that of Aanayaa so that in the future 
she shall bear the name and surname of Aanayaa 
JUGGIAH.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Dated this 18th March 2019.

Mr and Mrs Kersley JUGGIAH 
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 17/405855)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Clothilde Jane 
Wendy WADE of Dr. G. Leclezio Street, Moka has 
applied to the Honourable Attorney-General for 
leave to change the name and surname of her minor 
daughter Marie Elsa Kimberley RETOURNEE 
into those of Elsa WADE so that in the future she 
shall bear the name and surname of Elsa WADE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Dated this 25th March 2019.

Mrs Clothilde Jane Wendy WADE 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/405909)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Kuiwt-Phoune 
LI SAI NGO the lawful wife of John Chung 
Shin HOW CHOW WAH, of 8 Bancilhon 
Street, Port Louis, has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change her 

names Kuiwt-Phoune into those of Rosemary 
Kuiwt-Phoune, so that in the future, she may 
officially bear the names and surname of Rosemary 
Kuiwt-Phoune LI SAI NGO.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Under of all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis this 25th day of March 2019.

Georges NG WONG HING SA 
of No. 702 Chancery House, 

Lislet Geoffroy Street, Port Louis.
Attorney for Petitioner 

(Rec. No. 17/405933)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs Anand 
Pohoop of Dispensary Road, Triolet have applied 
to the Honourable Attorney General for leave to 
change the name of their minor son Toushare into 
that of Toushar so that in the future he shall bear 
the name and surname of Toushar Pohoop.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated this 20th March 2019.

Mr and Mrs Anand Pohoop
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 17/405861)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs 
Cherren Moodelly PONAMBALUM, of 
Roselyn Cottage, Saint Pierre have applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General for leave to change 
the names of their minor son Sael Wayne into those 
of Sael Wayne Bharan Moodelly so that in the 
future he shall bear the names and surname of Sael 
Wayne Bharan Moodelly PONAMBALUM.
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Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated this 27th March 2019.
Mr and Mrs Cherren 

Moodelly PONAMBALUM 
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 17/405937)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs Neetin 
Kumar BHUKORY of Grand Port Road, Nouvelle 
France have applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General for leave to change the name of their minor 
daughter Ganika into that of Ganvika so that in 
the future she shall bear the name and surname of 
Ganvika BHUKORY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Dated this 25th March 2019.

Mr and Mrs Neetin Kumar BHUKORY
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 17/405959)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Bibi Rouqaiya 
Shaheen HUSSAIN of Bodhye Lane, L’Escalier. 
Mauritius have applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General for leave to change her name and surname 
Bibi Rouqaiya Shaheen into those of Rouqaiya 
Shaheen Bibi MOHABUTH so that in the future 
she shall bear the names and surname of Rouqaiya 
Shaheen Bibi MOHABUTH.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Dated this 26th March 2019.

Mrs Bibi Rouqaiya Shaheen HUSSAIN 
(Rec. No. 17/405979) Applicant

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Saloni 
GHOORAH c/o Mr Soodarsun Bhurtun, of 
Royal Road, Ghoorah Lane, Long Mountain has 
applied to the Honourable Attorney-General for 
leave to change her names and surname Saloni 
GHOORAH into those of Tina Ghoorah PACK 
so that in the future she shall bear the names and 
surname of Tina Ghoorah PACK.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Dated this 28th March 2019.

Mrs Saloni GHOORAH
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/405990)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Shamina 
GHOORAH c/o Mr Soodarsun Bhurtun, of 
Royal Road, Ghoorah Lane, Long Mountain has 
applied to the Honourable Attorney-General for 
leave to change her names and surname Shamina 
GHOORAH into those of Tisha Shamina HILL 
so that in the future she shall bear the names and 
surname of Tisha Shamina HILL.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Dated this 28th March 2019.

Mrs Shamina GHOORAH
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/405990)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Jonathan 
Yeeyuan SIEW SUN LAM c/o Mr Benoit CHAN 
KWAI SIONG, of 7, Albatros Street, Baie du 
Tombeau has applied to the Honourable Attorney- 
General for leave to change his names and surname
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Jonathan Yeeyuan SIEW SUN LAM into those 
of Jonathan Yee Yuan SIEW so that in the future 
he shall bear the names and surname of Jonathan 
Yee Yuan SIEW.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Dated this 22nd March 2019.

Mr Jonathan Yeeyuan SIEW SUN LAM 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406004)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Kevin 
RAMSARAN c/o Mushira SUMODHEE of 
Attorney at Law, 1st Floor, River Court, St Denis 
Street, Port Louis has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change his surname 
RAMSARAN into that of ISSAC so that in the 
future he shall bear the name and surname of 
Kevin ISSAC.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 
28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Dated this 7th March 2019.

Mr Kevin RAMSARAN
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406013)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs Ahmad 
Belaz HOSENBOKUS of Avenue Robert Edward 
Hart, Ollier, Quatre Bomes have applied to the 
Honourable Attorney-General for leave to change 
the name of their minor daughter Roquayya 
into that of Ruquayya so that in the future she 
shall bear the name and surname of Ruquayya 
HOSENBOKUS.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within 

28 days as from the date of the last publication of 
this notice.

Dated this 20th March 2019.

Mr and Mrs Ahmad Belaz 
HOSENBOKUS

Applicant
(Rec. No. 17/406014)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Mamode 
Nasse MANDARY, of Parasol Lane, Mont Fertil, 
New Grove has applied to the Honourable Attorney 
General for leave to change his name Mamode 
Nasse into that of Mamode Nasser so that in the 
future he shall bear the names and surname of 
Mamode Nasser MANDARY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated this 20 March 2019.

Mr Mamode Nasse MANDARY
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406074)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs 
Dilrage DOOKHY, of Royal Road, 9eme Mille, 
Triolet have applied to the Honourable Attorney 
General for leave to change the name of their minor 
daughter Medha Boodoo into that of Medha 
so that in the future she shall bear the name and 
surname of Medha Dookhy.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney-General, 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of this notice.

Dated this 20 March 2019.

Mr and Mrs Dilrage DOOKHY 
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 17/406075)
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First Publication

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
16th day of May, 2019 at 1.30 p.m., shall take 
place before the Master’s Bar, Supreme Court 
of Mauritius, situate at Jules Koenig Street, 
Port Louis, the Sale by Levy, prosecuted at the 
request of HABIB BANK LIMITED against 
Aquaflo Ltd and in so far as need be also against 
Mr Basudeo MOLOYE and Mrs Chutranee 
Boolkah, wife of Mr Basudeo MOLOYE, of the 
two hereunder described contiguous immoveable 
properties together with all the appurtenances 
thereon existing and all that may depend or form 
part thereof without any exception or reservation, 
viz: (i) A portion of land of an extent of 2A05 
or 8,652.78m* 1 2 3 4 5 6 situate at Carreau Chantenay, 
Montagne Ory, in the District of Moka and bounded 
as per report of Mr. L. Le Vieux, S. L. S, dated 
27.06.1975, registered in Reg: A 393 No 4808, 
as follows: Towards the North, by reserves of 
Montagne Ory, on 42.88m; towards the East, by 
Mr. Jaylall Dindoyal, on 165.34 m; towards the 
South, by the axis of a common & party road, on 
61.07m; and towards the West, by the portion of 
land measured for Mr. John Piat, on 170.54m; 
Together with the building/s and/or plantations 
existing or which may in future exist thereon and 
all appurtenances generally whatsoever, without 
any exception nor reservation, the whole as more 
fully described in deed transcribed in Vol: 3831 
No. 61. Parcel Identification Number (PIN) issued 
by the Ministry of Housing and Lands under 
Section 7(3) of the Cadastral Survey Act 2011 
in respect of the above property: 1814380157 
and (ii) A portion of land of an extent of 2A04 or 
8,610.57m2 situate at Chantenay, Montagne Ory, 
in the District of Moka, and bounded as per report 
of Mr. M. Biltoo, late S. L. S, dated 15.06.1962, 
registered in Reg: A 349 No. 2389, as follows: On 
one side, by Moorga or assigns, on a line broken 
into 2 parts measuring 58.15m and 7.47m; on the 
2nd side, by Seewoo Goodur, on 168.92m; on the 
3rd side, by reserves of Montagne Ory, on 32.48m; 
and on the 4th side, by S. Boonderowa, on 165.34m 
and by the axis of a common road, on a line broken 
into 2 parts measuring 4.55m & 6.50m. Together 
with the building/s and/or plantations existing 
or which may in future exist thereon and all 

IN THE INTERMEDIATE COURT OF MAURITIUS

SALE BY LEVY

On Thursday the 25th of April 2019 at 11.00 a.m., 
at Grande Pointe Aux Piments (Bus Terminal), I 
the undersigned Court Usher will sell by Public 
Auction to the highest bidder and for cash the 
following moveables, viz:-

1. One Wooden dining table
2. Five Wooden chairs
3. One T.V Set make “Panasonic”
4. One Refrigerator make “Sanyo”
5. One Telephone/Fax machine make 

“Brothers”
6. One Set of Barbel Gym

Seized by me, Court Usher at the Intermediate 
Court of Mauritius at the request of J. Kalachand 
& Co. Ltd, in virtue and in execution of a Warrant 
to Levy (Cause No. 1080/2013) issued out of the

appurtenances generally whatsoever, without any 
exception nor reservation, the whole as more fully 
described in deed transcribed in Vol: 3831 No. 61. 
Parcel Identification Number (PIN) issued by the 
Ministry of Housing and Lands under Section 7(3) 
of the Cadastral Survey Act 2011 in respect of the 
above property: 1814380266.

The whole morefully described in the 
Memorandum of Charges filed in the Master’s 
Office.

The sale of the two above described contiguous 
immoveable properties shall take place in one lot.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said properties are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 2nd day of April, 2019.

Zohra NAZROO 
Suite No. 5, 

3rd Floor, Vawda Building, 
Sir Virgil Naz Street, 

Port-Louis
Attorney in charge of the sale

(Rec. No. 17/406085) 
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above court in the matter of J. Kalachand & 
Co. Ltd against Mr Tuhol Rohit on the 28lh of 
August 2014, under the signature of the clerk of 
the above court, Mr S. Meeajan.

Dated this Is' day of April, 2019,

Karimulah Parwez
Court Usher of the above court, 

in charge of sale.
(Rec, No. 17/406082)

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 09th day of April 2019.

Pazany THANDARAYAN 
of 2nd Floor 

Chancery House 
Lislet Geoffroy Street 

Port Louis 
Attorney in charge of the sale

(Rec. No. 17/406118)

SALE BY LICITATION

Take notice that on the 9th April 2019 has 
been filed in the Master’s Office of the Supreme 
Court of Mauritius, the Memorandum of Charges, 
Clauses, Conditions and pursuant and according 
to which shall take place before the Master’s 
Bar the Sale by Licitation of the hereunder 
described immoveable property viz; A residential 
building erected on a portion of land of the 
extent of 273.6m2, being Portion No. 52, situate 
in the District of Moka place called 1’Agnhnent 
as evidenced by title deed duly registered and 
transcribed in TV 4610/1 and bounded as follows:- 
Au Nord Est, par la quarante septieme portion 
decrite au dit rapport, sur dix metres quatre-vingt- 
quinze centimetres (10.95m); Au Sud Est, par la 
cinquante troisieme portion decrite au dit rapport, 
sur vingt-cinq metres (25.00m); Au Sud-Ouest, 
par une reserve d’un metre cinquante centimetres 
(1.50m) de large longeant Avenue Lotus sur dix 
metres quatre-vingt-quinze centimetres (10.95m); 
Sur laquelle reserve le proprietaire de la portion 
presentement decrite ainsi que ceux a ses droits 
auront un droit de passage pour acceder a la dite 
Avenue Lotus. Finalement au Nord-Ouest, par la 
cinquante et unieme portion decrite au dit rapport, 
sur vingt-cinq metres (25.00m). All that depends 
or forms part thereof without any exceptions or 
reservations whatsoever, the whole morefully 
described in the said Memorandum of Charges. The 
said Sale is prosecuted at the request of Peramah 
PENTIAH against Ramdass RAMANAH. All 
parties claiming a right to take inscription of legal 
mortgage upon the said property are warned that 
they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication, failing which they shall 
be debarred from such rights.

SALE BEFORE THE MASTER’S COURT 
OF IMMOVEABLE PROPERTIES 

FOLLOWING A SEIZURE:

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
16lh day of May, 2019, at 1.30 p.m., shall take 
place before the Master’s Bar situate at Jules 
Koenig Street, Supreme Court Buildings, Port 
Louis, the sale on a seizure prosecuted at the 
request of Bank One Limited formerly known as 
First City Bank Ltd, against (i) GARDEN COURT 
PROPERTIES LTD formerly known as LES 
DAHLIAS CIE LTEE, and (ii) WORLD MART LTD 
formerly known as DHAL1AH INVESTMENT 
CO LTD, of the following immoveable properties, 
Viz: FIRST: Five Apartments as LOTS Nos. 1, 
3, 4, 5 and 6 belonging to GARDEN COURT 
PROPERTIES LTD formerly known as LES 
DAHLIAS CIE LTEE, viz: ‘LOT No. 1: Un 
appartement a usage residential se situant au rez- 
de-chaussee, d'une superficie de 91.89m2 decrit 
comme suit: (i) une chambre a coucher d’une 
surface utile de 12.42m2, (ii) une cuisine d’une 
surface utile de 10.71m2, (Hi) une toil let d’une 
surface utile de 5.04m2, (iv) un salon d’une surface 
utile de 33.06m2, (v) un garage d’une surface 
utile de 10.59m2, (vi) une chambre a coucher 
d’une surface utile de 10.22m2, (vii) une chambre 
a coucher d’une surface utile de 9.85m2, Et les 
180/LOOP™ de quote part en parties commune y 
afferents. LOT No. 3.- situant au deuxieme etage, 
d’une superficie de 35.41m2 decrit comme suit: 
Un bureau d'une surface utile de 35.41m2, Et les 
69/1,000‘‘"IC de quote part en parties commune y 
afferents. LOT No. 4: situant au deuxieme etage, 
d'une superficie de 35.41m2 decrit comme suit:
(i) une terrasse d’une surface utile de 5.33m2
(ii) un salon d’une surface utile de 34.96m2, (Hi) 
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une toillet d’une surface utile de 5.04m2, (iv) une 
cuisine d’une surface utile de 10.92m2, (v) une 
chambre a coucher d’une surface utile de 13.69m2, 
(vi) une chambre a coucher d’une surface utile de 
10.58m2, (vii) unechambreacoucher d’unesurface 
utile de 10.58m2, Et les 178/1,000c’"’c de quote part 
enparties communey ajferents. LOT No. 5: situant 
au troisieme etage, d’une superficie de 75.31m2 
decrit comme suit: Un bureau d’une surface utile 
de 75.31m2 (bureau prive, egalement a usage de 
local d’archives), Et les 147/l,000e'ne de quote 
part en parties commune y afferents. LOT No. 6. 
Un appartement a usage residential se situant au 
troisieme etage d’une superficie de 54.59m2 decrit 
comme suit: (i) un salon d’une surface utile de 
25.60m2, (ii) une chambre a coucher d’une surface 
utile de 14.05m2, (Hi) une cuisine d’une surface 
utile de 9.78m2, (iv) une toillet d ’une surface utile 
de 5.16m2, Et les 107/1,000e"'e de quote part en 
parties commune y afferents. Les Lots Nos. 3, 4, 
5 et 6 sont desservis par I’escalier El, E2 et E3, 
(i) Le couloirs ci-apres appele Cl est commun aux 
lots No. 3 et 4. (ii) Et les couloirs ci-apres appele 
C2 et C3 sont commun aux lots Nos. 5 et 6,’ found 
on a portion of land of the extent of 235.25m2 
situate in the district of Pamplemousses place 
called Le Hochet, Terre Rouge (Morcellement 
Raffray) and bounded as follows: On the 1st side 
by a reserve of 1.22 mts large along Veerasamy 
Lane on 14.40 mts, On the 2nd side partly by lot 
No. 1 (sold to The Vishkapatnam-Le Hochet 
(1865-1995) Trust and partly by a reserve of 22 
mts large along Avenue L’independance on 3 
lines measuring 13.30 mts, 8.50 mts and 2 mts, 
On the 3rd side by Komuldass Gupta Quedou on 
22.65 mts, On the 4th and last side by M. H. Lung 
Hing Tin & Ors on 15.60mts, and SECOND: 
Land belonging to WORLD MART LTD formerly 
known as DHALIAH INVESTMENT CO LTD, a 
portion of land of the extent of 170m2 situate in the 
district of Port Louis place called Saint Croix and 
bounded as follows: On one side by a pavement 
along Pamplemousses Road on 10.30 mts, On the 
2nd side by Rogers et Cie Company (Caltex Ltd) 
on 14.40 mts, measured along a wall in cement 
blocks belonging to the neighbourg’s land, On 
the 3rd side by Mr. Seerkissoon Teekun or assigns 
on 13.60 mts, measured to a bom mark ST to 
neighbour’s land , and on the 4th side by L’Oiseau 
Street on 15.15 mts, together with all that may 

depend or form part thereof without any exception 
or reservations and the whole morefully described 
in the memorandum of charges filed in the above 
matter.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription 
of legal mortgage upon the said properties are 
warned that they must do so before the transcription 
of the judgment of adjudication, failing which they 
shall forfeit such right.

Dated at Port Louis, this 8th day of April,2019.

Oosman Noormahomed Abbasakoor
Senior Attorney 

of, No. 4, 
Sir Virgile Naz Street

Port Louis
Attorney in charge of the sale 

(Rec. No. 17/406109)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009 

GUARDIAN MARKETING LTD

(In Liquidation)

Notice is hereby given that following a 
special resolution passed on March 28, 2019, 
I, Mr. Raj.D.Gangoosirdar, c/o Recovery and 
Insolvency Practice Ltd, 20 Meldrum Street, 
Curepipe, have been appointed Liquidator of 
Guardian Marketing Ltd.

The date of commencement of the liquidation is 
March 28, 2019.

Mr. Raj.D.Gangoosirdar 
The Liquidator 

(Rec. No. 17/406114)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Ashburton India Fixed Income 
Opportunities Limited

(In members’voluntary winding up)

Notice is hereby given that following a 
shareholders’ resolution passed on 28th March 
2019:
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• The Company would be wound up 
voluntarily under Section 137(l)(b) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009.

• Mr. Sin Chong Li, Registered Insolvency 
Practitioner, of Baker Tilly (Mauritius), 
of 1st Floor Cyber Tower One, Ebene, 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator for the 
purpose of liquidation of the Company.

• The liquidator be and is hereby empowered 
to distribute to the member, in specie or in 
kind the whole or remaining assets of the 
Company.

Dated this 10th April 2019.

By order of the Board 
Intercontinental Fund Services Limited

Company Secretary
(Rec. No. 17/406096)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 287 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

MALAWI MANGOES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

(Administrator Appointed)

Notice is hereby given that I, A. Sattar Hajee 
Abdoula, FCA, c/o 9th Floor, Ebene Tower, 
52 Cybercity, Ebene 72201 have been appointed 
Administrator of MALAWI MANGOES 
(MAURITIUS) LIMITED with effect from 
04th April 2019.

Notice is also given to any person, who believes 
that the Company holds property belonging to 
him or property in which he has rights, should 
submit his claim in writing to the Administrator 
with all supporting documents in respect of such 
ownership or right.

All persons holding any property, documents, 
books and records of the above Company 
are requested to deliver them forthwith to the 
Administrator.

Further notice is given that all sums due to the 
Company should be payable to the Administrator 
and receipts for such payments shall only be valid 
if they bear the signature of the Administrator or 
his duly appointed representative/s.

All correspondences should be addressed to: 
A. Sattar Hajee Abdoula, FCA
Administrator
MALAWI MANGOES (MAURITIUS) 
LIMITED
(Administrator Appointed)
C/o 9th Floor, Ebene Tower
52, Cybercity, Ebene 72201
Tel : (230) 467 3001
Fax : (230)454 7311

(Rec. No. 17/406105)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)

In the matter of:-

The Insolvency Act

And In the matter of:-

Virgile BRAMLY

Petitioner 
Versus

Cinebar Studios Limited
having its Registered Office situate at

3rd Floor, Alexander House, Silicone Avenue,
35 Cybercity, Ebene.

Respondent

Notice is hereby given that a petition for the 
Compulsory Winding-Up of the abovenamed 
Company by the above Court was lodged on 
the 04th April 2019, to the said Court by the 
undersigned Attorney, by electronic filing under 
the Court (Electronic filing of Documents) Rules 
2012. And that the said petition is registered as 
Cause Number SC/COM/PET/00234/2019 and 
made returnable on Friday the 19th day of April, 
2019 for the Respondent to give its stand through 
the Electronic Filing System and any creditor or 
contributory of the said Company, desirous to 
support or oppose the making of an order of the 
petition, by making the necessary appearance by 
electronic filing either through a Solicitor or in 
person at the Public Service Bureau located at the 
Commercial Division of the Supreme Court of 
Mauritius, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, a copy 
of the petition will be furnished to any creditor 
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or contributory of the said Company requiring 
the same by the undersigned, on payment of the 
regulated charge of the same or may be obtained 
on the electronic filing system.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 09th day of April 2019.

P. NATHOO 
of No. 10, Georges Guibert Street 

Port-Louis 
Attorney for the Petitioner 

(Rec. No. 17/406118)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)

In the matter of-

SC/COM/PET/00238/2019

The Insolvency Act 2009
(as amended)

And
In the matter of-

Margarine Industries Limited
of New Trunk Road, Trianon, Quatre Bornes

Petitioner 
v/s

Kayt’s Ltd
having its registered office situate at Royal Road, 

Camp Ithier, Flacq

Respondent

Notice is hereby given that a petition for the 
Compulsory Winding up (hereinafter referred to 
as “the Petition”) of Kayt’s Ltd was on 5th day 
of April, 2019 lodged by Margarine Industries 
Limited, by electronic filing under the Court 
(Electronic filing of Documents) Rules 2012.

The said Petition is registered as Cause Number 
SC/COM/PET/00238/2019 and the returnable 
date is the 22nd day of April, 2019. Any creditor 
or contributory of the said Company desirous 
to support or oppose the making of an order on 
the Petition may do so by making the necessary 
appearance by electronic filing either through a 
legal adviser or in person at the Public Service 
Bureau located at the Commercial Division of the 

Supreme Court, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis. A 
copy of the Petition will be furnished to any creditor 
or contributory of the said Company requiring 
the same by the undersigned, on payment of the 
required charge for the same, or may be obtained 
on the electronic filing system.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 8th day of April, 2019.

B. Sewraj SA 
of 1st Floor, River Court,

St Denis Street, 
Port Louis.

Petitioner s Attorney

(Rec. No. 17/406101)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BEFORE THE MASTER AND REGISTRAR)

In the matter of

Marie Francoise MOOTOO (bom TAMBY), 
a Pensioner, represented by her agent 

and proxy, Mr Guy Philip KOOROOSAMY, 
of Lady Barclay Street, Souillac

Petitioner

Ramsamy MOOTOO,
a Pensioner, of 29 Morcellement Gris Gris, Souillac

Respondent

Take notice, You the Defendant in order that you 
may not plead or pretend ignorance of same that 
on the 25th March 2019, was filed at the Master’s 
Office of the Supreme Court, the Memorandum 
of Charges, Clauses and Conditions pursuant and 
according to which shall take place before the 
Master’s Court the Sale by Licitation prosecuted at 
the request of Marie Francoise MOOTOO (bom 
TAMBY), a Pensioner, represented by her agent 
and proxy, Mr Guy Philip KOOROOSAMY, of 
“une portion de terrain vague et non batie de la 
contenance de quatre cent quatre vingts metres 
carres, situee au quartier de la Savanne lieudit 
«Souillac» formant le Lot No. 29 du lotissement 
dont elle fait partie et bornee, d’apres un rapport 
d’arpentage, avec figuratif y joint, dresse par 
Monsieur Jean Jacques Desmarais, arpenteur jure, 
le treize mars deux mille deux, enregistre au Reg: 
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L.S 43 No. 8567, une copie certifi.ee veritable d’un 
extrait duquel rapport demeure ci-annexee apres 
due mention par le notaire soussigne, comme suit, 
savoir:-

Vers le Nord, par la portion No:28, sur vingt- 
cinq metres (25.00m);

Vers I’Est, par le surplus du terrain de 84ha 
4167m2 appartenant a la compagnie «THE UNION 
SE CO LTD», sur vingt et un metres et cinquante 
centimetres (21.20m) ;

Vers le Sud, par une reserve de un metre et 
cinquante centimetres (1.50m) longeant un chemin 
de cinq metres et cinquante centimetres (5.50m) de 
large et sur laquelle reserve cette portion et ceux a 
ses droits auront un droit de passage pour acceder 
au dit chemin, sur vingt-deux metres et dix-neuf 
centimetres (22.19m);

Et vers I ’Ouest, par une reserve de un metre et 
cinquante centimetres (1.50m) longeant un chemin 
de cinq metres et cinquante centimetres (5.50m) de 
large et sur laquelle reserve cette portion et ceux a 
ses droits auront un droit de passage pour acceder 
au dit chemin, sur une ligne brisee en deux parties 
mesurant respectivement quatre metres et soixante- 
dix-neuf centimetres (4.79m) et quatorze metres et 
cinquante-deux centimetres (14.52m).”

The aforesaid land is comprised of a concrete 
residential building of about 2000 metre square 
comprised of the following:

(i) On the ground floor, 4 rooms, a kitchen, a 
living room together with a dining table, a 
bathroom, a garage and a veranda; and

(ii) On the first floor, 3 rooms, a bathroom and 
terrace.

The building is connected with electricity and 
water supply together with all that may depend 
or form part thereof without any exception or 
reservation, the whole morefully described in the 
Memorandum of Charges filed in the above matter.

Take Further Notice that you are hereby required 
called upon and summoned to examine the said 
Memorandum of Charges and to make thereon 
such observations and objections as you may deem 
fit and proper within the delay prescribed by law.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 05 day of April 2019.

Faatima SOMAUROO 
of 2nd Floor, BVR House, 
4 Lislet Geoffroy Street, 

Port Louis 
Attorney in charge of the sale

(Rec. No. 17/406061)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(l)(b) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr Gangess Puran 
NAIDOO, Professional Land Surveyor shall at the 
request of Mr Dharma Rajen Sharma GUJRAZ 
to survey a portion of land of the extent of 168m2 
situate in the district of Flacq place called Riche 
Mare belonging to him as per Volume TV 8260 
No. 49.

The said survey will start on Tuesday 7th day 
of May 2019 at IhrsOO in the afternoon and will 
continue on the following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on the 
aforesaid day and hour and bring along with 
them all their title deeds, plans and whatever 
like documents concerning their properties so 
as to enable me to establish correctly the limits 
separating the aforesaid portion of land adjoining 
properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis this 4th day of April 2019.

Gangess Puran NAIDOO 
Professional Land Surveyor

(Rec. No. 17/406095)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(l)(b) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr Gangess Puran 
NAIDOO, Professional Land Surveyor shall at the 
request of Mr & Mrs Mohammad Nasrallah 
AB-D-AL BUNDHOO to survey a portion of land 
of the extent of 1055.21m2 situate in the district of 
Plaines Wilhems place called Mesnil belonging to 
them as per Volume TV 201805 No. 002156.

The said survey will start on Tuesday 14th day 
of May 2019 at IhrsOO in the afternoon and will 
continue on the following days if need be.

certifi.ee
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The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on the 
aforesaid day and hour and bring along with 
them all their title deeds, plans and whatever 
like documents concerning their properties so 
as to enable me to establish correctly the limits 
separating the aforesaid portion of land adjoining 
properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis this 9th day of April 2019.

Gangess Puran Naidoo 
Professional Land Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 17/406095)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(l)(b) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr Gangess Puran 
NAIDOO, Professional Land Surveyor shall at the 
request of Mrs Nohini DESCHAMPS to survey a 
portion of land of the extent of 1,812.63m2 situate 
in the district of Plaines Wilhems place called 
Vacoas, Holyrood, Chemin La Source belonging 
to her as per Volume TV 8741 No. 8.

The said survey will start on Tuesday 14th day 
of May 2019 at lOhrsOO in the morning and will 
continue on the following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on the 
aforesaid day and hour and bring along with 
them all their title deeds, plans and whatever 
like documents concerning their properties so 
as to enable me to establish correctly the limits 
separating the aforesaid portion of land adjoining 
properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis this 4th day of April 2019.

Gangess Puran NAIDOO 
Professional Land Surveyor

(Rec. No. 17/406095)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(l)(b) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr Gangess Puran 
NAIDOO, Professional Land Surveyor shall at 
the request of Mr Rajiv DWARIKA to survey a 

portion of land of the extent of 700m2 situate in the 
district of Plaines Wilhems place called Curepipe 
(Floreal) belonging to him as per Volume TV 6481 
No. 32.

The said survey will start on Tuesday 7th day 
of May 2019 at lOhrsOO in the morning and will 
continue on the following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on the 
aforesaid day and hour and bring along with 
them all their title deeds, plans and whatever 
like documents concerning their properties so 
as to enable me to establish correctly the limits 
separating the aforesaid portion of land adjoining 
properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis this 4th day of April 2019.

Gangess Puran NAIDOO 
Professional Land Surveyor

(Rec. No. 17/406095)

REVOCATION OF BONDED SHOWROOM 
(S129)

Notice is hereby given that the under mentioned 
bonded showroom has been revoked by the 
Director General - MRA as per Section 67 of the 
Customs Act.

(Rec. No. 17/406111)

NAME ADDRESS WAREHOUSED
GOODS

DATE

DIRECT
AUTO
LIMITED

53B Royal 
Road, 
GRNW

Second- 
Hand Motor 
Vehicles

08/04/2019

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that We, Societe Elysee 
have applied to the Central Water Authority for a 
ground water licence to use ground water from a 
Borehole at Nouvelle Decouverte for agricultural 
purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the first 
licence/renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing to the Authority stating reasons.
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Particulars and site plans of the property may 
be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor, Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Societe Elysee 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406087)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR THE 
SUPPLY OF ELECTRICITY 

CEB (Green Energy) Co. Ltd

Notice is hereby given that CEB (GREEN 
ENERGY) CO. LTD of Rue du Savoir, Cyber City, 
Ebene, has made an application to the Central 
Electricity Board for a permit for the supply of 
electricity to the CEB Grid, from a Solar PV Farm 
to be installed at Tamarind Falls, Henrietta.

Any authority, company, body or person 
wishing to object to the grant of the permit for 
CEB (GREEN ENERGY) CO. LTD to act as 
Undertaker can transmit his objection to the Central 
Electricity Board, Corporate Office, P.O Box 134, 
Rue du Savoir, Cyber City, Ebene, in writing, by 
registered post within 14 days of the date of this 
publication.

Any person objecting must state his reasons 
for making the objection, and also his interest in 
the subject matter of the application. Such person 
must also supply to CEB (GREEN ENERGY) 
CO. LTD of Rue du Savoir, Cyber City, Ebene, a 
copy of his objection together with his reasons for 
making same.

09 April 2019
(Rec. No. 17/406110)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 111 OF
THE INSURANCE ACT 2005, SECTION 311 

OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001, AND 
SECTION 26 OF THE FINANCIAL 

SERVICES ACT 2007.

1. Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“Asian Overseas Experts Ltd” having a 
Global Business Licence Category One, 
under Section 76(2) of the Financial Services 
Commission Act 2007 and an Insurance Broker 

Licence under Section 70 of the Insurance Act 
2005 and the Financial Services (Consolidated 
licensing and fees) Rules 2008, wishes to 
surrender its licence.

2. The Company having its registered office at 
3rd Floor, Standard Chartered Tower, Cybercity, 
Ebene, Mauritius is applying to the Registrar of 
Companies for its removal from the Register 
under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies 
Act 2001 and to surrender its licences to the 
Financial Services Commission under Section 
111 of the Insurance Act 2005 and Section 26 
of the Financial Services Act 2007.

3. Notice is hereby also given that the Company has 
ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and 
has distributed its surplus assets in accordance 
with its Constitution and the Companies Act 
2001.

4. Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001, 
under Section 111 of the Insurance Act 2005 and 
Section 26 of the Financial Services Act 2007 
shouldbe delivered to the Registrar of Companies 
and to the Company Secretary of the Company, 
ABC Global Management Services Ltd, not 
later than 27th April 2019.

Dated this 27th March 2019.

ABC Global Management Services Ltd 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/406107)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Strategic 
Consulting Services (Africa)” has by a special 
resolution passed on 14th January 2019 changed its 
name to “Strategic Consulting Services (Africa) 
Ltd” as evidenced by a Certificate given under the 
seal of the Registrar of Companies dated 3rd April 
2019.

Dated this 4th April 2019.

GMG Trust Ltd 
Co Reg:41427 

Management Company 
(Rec No. 17/406071)
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the private company 
“MICROFOREST LTD” has by a special resolution 
passed on 25,h March 2019 changed its name to 
“Forest IT Ltd” as evidenced by the certificate 
dated 4th April 2019 under the seal of the Registrar 
of Companies.

Pretorius Helgard Meyer 
Director 

(Rec. No. 17/406102)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Ariya Leasing 
Limited holding a Category 2 Global Business 
Licence and having its registered office at 
Level 3, Alexander House, 35 Cybercity, Ebene 
72201, Mauritius has by a special resolution of 
the sole shareholder passed on the 27th November 
2018 changed its name to Ariya Finergy Holdings 
Limited, as evidenced by a certificate issued by 
the Registrar of Companies on the 13th December 
2018.

Dated this 10th April 2019.
Intercontinental Trust Limited

Registered Agent
(Rec. No. 17/406099)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
ISLAND CHEMICALS LTD’ has, by way of a 

special resolution changed its name to ‘INTEGO 
GREEN LTD’ as evidenced by the certificate 
given under the Hand and Seal of the Registrar of 
Companies dated 25 March 2019.

Dated this 26th day of March 2019.
NWT Secretarial Services Ltd

Secretary
(Rec. No. 17/406054)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
‘ISLAND RENEWABLE FERTILIZERS LTD’ has, 

by way of a special resolution changed its name 
to ‘INTEGO LTD’ as evidenced by the certificate 
given under the Hand and Seal of the Registrar of 
Companies dated 26 March 2019.

Dated this 26th day of March 2019.

NWT Secretarial Services Ltd
Secretary

(Rec. No. 17/406055)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the private Company 
“ELITE CONSOLIDATED CONTRACTORS 
COMPANY LIMITED” has, by way of a special 
resolution changed its name to “ELITE 
CONSTRUCTION AND RENOVATIONS COMPANY 
LIMITED” as evidenced by the certificate given 
under the Hand and Seal of the Registrar of 
Companies dated 22 March 2019.

Dated this 5th April 2019.
Jean Paul Jolicoeur 

Elite Construction & Renovations Co. Ltd 
Director

(Rec. No. 17/406046)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 62 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that a special 
resolution for the reduction of the Stated Capital 
of the company, GF INNOVATION LTD, from 
MUR 405,119,839 to MUR 245,119,839 will be 
proposed to the sole shareholder of the company.

Dated this 8th April 2019.

Mr. Francis Jean Pierre GUILLEMARD
Director 

(Rec. No. 17/406094)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 304 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

RBT International Limited

Notice is hereby given that RBT International 
Limited (“the Company”), of c/o Oak Management 
(Mauritius) Limited, 1st Floor, Block B, Ruisseau 
Creole Complex, La Mivoie, Black River, Mauritius 
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shall, after expiry of this notice, be applying to the 
Registrar of Companies under Section 302 for the 
company to be removed from the register for the 
purposes of becoming incorporated under the law 
in force in the Republic of Seychelles.

Objections or claims, if any, should be lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies within 28 days 
from the date of this notice.

Dated: 8th day of April 2019
Oak Management (Mauritius) Limited 

Registered Agent 
(Rec. No. 17/406102)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 304 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

FARWAYS IN AFRICA LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that FARWAYS IN 
AFRICA LIMITED (“the Company”), of c/o Oak 
Management (Mauritius) Limited, 1st Floor, 
Block B, Ruisseau Creole Complex, La Mivoie, 
Black River, Mauritius shall, after expiry of this 
notice, be applying to the Registrar of Companies 
under Section 302 for the company to be removed 
from the register for the purposes of becoming 
incorporated under the law in force in the Republic 
of Seychelles.

Objections or claims, if any, should be lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies within 28 days 
from the date of this notice.

Dated: 8th day of April 2019

Oak Management (Mauritius) Limited 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/406102)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 304 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001 

Garden Connectors Limited

Notice is hereby given that Garden Connectors 
Limited (“the Company”), of c/o Management 
(Mauritius) Limited, 1st Floor, Block B, Ruisseau 
Creole Complex, La Mivoie, Black River, Mauritius 
shall, after expiry of this notice, be applying 
Registrar of Companies under Section 302 for the 
company to be removed from the register for the 
purposes of becoming incorporated under the law 
in force in the Republic of Seychelles.

Objections or claims, if any, should be lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies within 28 days 
from the date of this notice.

Dated: 8lh day of April

Oak Management (Mauritius) Limited 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/406102)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 304 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

PFH Energy Solutions Limited

Notice is hereby given that PFH Energy 
Solutions Limited (“the Company”), of c/o Oak 
Management (Mauritius) Limited, 1st Floor, 
Block B, Ruisseau Creole Complex, La Mivoie, 
Black River, Mauritius shall, after expiry of this 
notice, be applying to the Registrar of Companies 
under Section 302 for the company to be removed 
from the register for the purposes of becoming 
incorporated under the law in force in the Republic 
of Seychelles.

Objections or claims, if any, should be lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies within 28 days 
from the date of this notice.

Dated: 8th day of April 2019

Oak Management (Mauritius) Limited 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/406102)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 304 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that TEAM FAME 
INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD. holding a Category 
2 Global Business Licence and having its registered 
office at Level 3, Alexander House, 35 Cybercity, 
Ebene, Mauritius, shall, after 28 days of the date 
of this notice, apply to the Registrar of Companies 
under Section 302 of the Companies Act 2001 
to request the Registrar to remove the company 
from the register for the purposes of becoming 
incorporated under the law in force in Seychelles.

Dated this 4th April 2019.

GenPro Consulting (Mauritius) Inc 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/406038)
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 304 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that TCA Plastics Corp, 
holding a Category 2 Global Business Licence and 
having its registered office at Level 3, Alexander 
House, 35 Cybercity, Ebene. Mauritius, shall, 
after 28 days of the date of this notice, apply to 
the Registrar of Companies under Section 302 of 
the Companies Act 2001 to request the Registrar 
to remove the company from the register for the 
purposes of becoming incorporated under the law 
in force in Seychelles.

Dated this 10th April 2019.

GenPro Consulting (Mauritius) Inc.
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 17/406098)

Registrar of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with 
the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 is to be made in 
writing to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days from the date of this notice, by latest 
the 10 May 2019.

Dated this: 13 April 2019

Company Secretary 
(Rec. No. 17/406092)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 304(a) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that ALLIED AFRICA 
LIMITED, a Category 2 Global Business 
Company having its registered office at 4th Floor, 
Ebene Skies, Rue de ITnstitut, Ebene, Mauritius 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 302 of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
wishes to continue its existence under the 
jurisdiction and the laws of Seychelles.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Sections 312 & 313 of the Companies Act 
2001 is to be made in writing to the Registrar of 
Companies by latest on 10th May 2019.

Dated this 10th April 2019.

MAURITIUS INTERNATIONAL TRUST 
COMPANY LIMITED 

Company Secretary 
(Rec. No. 17/406116)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Temetize Ltd, 
a Domestic Company and having its registered 
office at B384 Rue de la Grande Riviere, Le Bout 
du Monde, Ebene, Mauritius is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies to be removed from the

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Geotribe Ltd, 
a Domestic Company and having its registered 
office at B384 Rue de la Grande Riviere, Le Bout 
du Monde, Ebene, Mauritius is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Registrar of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with 
the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 is to be made in 
writing to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days from the date of this notice, by latest 
the 10 May 2019.

Dated this: 13 April 2019

Company Secretary
(Rec. No. 17/406093)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that Vinriya Ltd, a 
domestic company and having it registered office at 
Orchard Tower, Quatre Bornes is on this 10th April 



1876 The Mauritius Government Gazette

2019 applying to the registrar of the companies to 
be removed from the Registrar of companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributes its surplus assets in accordance of the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 
is to be made in writing to the Registrar of the 
Companies by not later than 28 days from the date 
of the notice.

10th April 2019
Director 

(Rec. No. 17/406103)

Jean Edward August, Roche-Bois, Port-Louis is to 
be removed from the Register of Companies under 
section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

“The company has never had any trading 
activities since its incorporation and has no 
intention to carry on any business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all known creditors and 
has distributed its assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.”

That any objection to the removal shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies within 
28 days from date of this notice.

Date: 05 April 2019

Billy Brent Chan Yook Fo 
Director

(Rec. No. 17/406047)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that JEANSWEST LTD, 
a Domestic Company and having its registered 
office at c/o M. TULSIDAS & CO, 31 SSR Street, 
Port Louis, Mauritius is on this 29th day of March 
2019 applying to the Registrar of Companies to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 3 09( 1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry business, has discharged in full 
its liabilities to all known creditors, and distributed 
its surplus assets in accordance with the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by not later than 28 days from the date of this 
notice.

29th March 2019
Vishal TULSIDAS

Director

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

MAURITIUS COOPERATION ENTERPRISE LTD

Notice is hereby given that Mauritius 
Cooperation Enterprise Ltd, having its registered 
office at 15th Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, 
6 President John Kennedy Street, Port-Louis, 
Mauritius is applying to the Registrar of Companies 
for removal from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with 
the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection or claim should be lodged with 
the Registrar of Companies within 28 days of the 
date of this notice.

Dated this 11th April 2019.

By Order of the Board 
(Rec. No. 17/406120) s

(Rec. No. 17/406036)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company “NB 
Innov8 Ltd”, having its registered office at 20,

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that NEW SURAJ STORE 
CO LTD, a domestic company, having its registered 
office at Royal Road, Fond du Sac, Mauritius is to 
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be removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days after the date of the notice.

Dated this 4th April 2019.

Director
(Rec. No. 17/406119) s

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

In the matter of:

SINOPSE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that SINOPSE 
HOLDINGS LIMITED (the “Company”) of Suite 
011, Grand Baie Business Park, Cnr, Air Grand 
Baie Street, Avenue Geranium and Reservoir Road, 
Grand Baie, Republic of Mauritius, is applying to 
the Registrar of Companies for removal from the 
Register of Companies, under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001 (the “Act”) on the 
grounds that:

“The Company has ceased to carry business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its Constitution and the Act.”

Objections or claims, if any should be lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies not less than 28 
days after the date of this notice.

Dated this 11 January 2019.
CROSSINVEST GLOBAL 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/406088)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Multi Dimensional Investments Limited 
(hereinafter the “Company”)

Notice is hereby given:

That the Company, a Category 2 Global Business 
Company, having its Registered Office at c/o GMG 
Trust Ltd, 19th Floor, Newton Tower, Sir William 
Newton Street, Port Louis, is to be removed from 
the Register of Companies in accordance with 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objections to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not later than 10th day 
of May 2019.

Dated this 10th day of April 2019.

GMG Trust Ltd
Registered Agent

(Rec. No. 17/406112)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Power Consulting 
and Engineering Limited holding a Category 2 
Global Business Licence and having its Registered 
Office at 4th Floor, Ebene Skies, Rue de LTnstitut, 
Ebene, Mauritius, is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies to be removed from the Register 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
Constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objections to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest on the 05 May 2019.

Date: 05 April 2019

Mauritius International Trust Company Limited
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/406116)



1878 The Mauritius Government Gazette

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001 OF 

THE REPUBLIC OF MAURITIUS

In the matter of:

“Azna Investments Limited”

Notice is hereby given:

That “Azna Investments Limited”, a Category 
2 Global Business Licence Company, having 
its registered office at c/o JTC Fiduciary 
Services (Mauritius), Suite 2004, Alexander 
House, 35 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius is to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 of 
the Republic of Mauritius;

“That the removal is on the grounds that the 
Company has ceased to carry on business has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets 
in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.”

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days from the date of this notice.

Dated this 4th day of April 2019.

JTC Fiduciary Services (Mauritius) Limited
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/406104)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Super Wan Sheng 
Fa International Co., Ltd. holding a Category 2 
Global Business Licence and having its registered 
office at Level 3, Alexander House, 35 Cybercity, 
Ebene, Mauritius is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001 to request the Registrar to 
remove the Company from the register.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 

be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest 9th May 2019.

Dated this 12th April 2019.

GenPro Consulting (Mauritius) Inc.
Registered Agent

(Rec. No 17/406097)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that SW Security 
Solutions Africa Ltd a Category 1 Global 
Business Licence and having its registered 
office at Suite 510, 5th Floor Barkly Wharf, 
Le Caudan Waterfront, Port-Louis, Mauritius, C/o 
Maitland (Mauritius) Limited is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
Constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days from date of this notice.

Dated this 20 March 2019.

Maitland (Mauritius) Limited
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/406065)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that GREEN 
INVESTMENT GROUP LTD a Category 1 Global 
Business Licence Company, having its registered 
office at c/o AAA Global Services Ltd, 1st Floor, 
The Exchange, 18 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius is 
to be removed from the Register of Companies 
under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 
2001 on the ground that the Company has ceased to 
carry on business, has discharged in full its known 
liabilities to all its creditors and has distributed its 
surplus assets in accordance with the Companies 
Act 2001.
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Any objection to the removal under Section 313 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies within 28 days as from 
the date of publication.

Date: 29 March 2019

AAA Global Services Ltd 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/406090)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Green Investment 
Group (Advisory) Ltd a Category 1 Global 
Business Licence Company, having its registered 
office at c/o AAA Global Services Ltd, 1st Floor, 
The Exchange, 18 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius is 
to be removed from the Register of Companies 
under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 
2001 on the ground that the Company has ceased to 
carry on business, has discharged in full its known 
liabilities to all its creditors and has distributed its 
surplus assets in accordance with the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 313 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies within 28 days as from 
the date of publication.

Date: 29 March 2019

AAA Global Services Ltd
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 17/406090)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(4) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that ALFACO LTD (the 
“Company”), licensed as an Authorised Company 
and having its Registered Office at c/o Trustlink 
International Limited, Suite 201/2A, 2nd floor, 
1 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius, is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001. Notice is hereby also 
given that the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 

assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001. 
The Company has no charges inscribed against it.

Objection, if any, should be made in writing to 
the Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days 
from date of this notice.

Dated this 3rd day of April 2019.

For and on behalf of
Trustlink International Limited

(Rec. No. 17/406109) as Registered Agent

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

ACM INC (Mauritius) Ltd of c/o Lemuel 
Company Secretarial Limited, Lemuel House, 
12 More Boucan Rd, Phoenix has applied to 
the Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the issue of a new licence of Dealer 
in Liquor and Alcoholic Products - Wholesale in 
respect of premises situated at IBL Complex No. 1 
Industrial Zone, Riche Terre.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Vigil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

ACM INC (Mauritius) Ltd
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406060)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Dhannapakion lyaroo of Morrisson 
Street, Souillac have applied to the Director 
General of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for 
the transfer of a licence of Retailer of Beer and 
Alcoholic Beverages in respect of premises situated 
at Morrisson Street, Souillac to Dhaivamanee 
lyaroo.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Vigil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Dhannapakion lyaroo 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406069)
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APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Somprabha Mangar of Ramnarain 
Road, Cottage have applied to the Director General 
of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the issue of 
a new licence of Retailer of Liquor and Alcoholic 
Products - Off in respect of premises situated at 
Ramnarain Road, Cottage.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Vigil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Somprabha Mangar 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406077)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

JYC Fine Wine (Mauritius) Ltd of Royal 
Road, Around the World, Grand Bay has applied 
to the Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the issue of a new licence of Retailer 
of Liquor and Alcoholic Products - Off in respect 
of premises situated at Royal Road, Around the 
World, Grand Bay.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Vigil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

JYC Fine Wine (Mauritius) Ltd
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406126) s

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

JYC Fine Wine (Mauritius) Ltd of Royal 
Road, Around the World, Grand Bay has applied 
to the Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the issue of a new licence of Dealer 
in Liquor and Alcoholic Products - Wholesale in 
respect of premises situated at Royal Road, Around 
the World, Grand Bay.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 

Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Vigil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

JYC Fine Wine (Mauritius) Ltd 
(Rec. No. 17/406126) s Applicant

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

KESAR INDIAN RESTAURANT LTD of Near 
Shell Filling Station, Royal Road, Hermitage, 
Central Flacq has applied to the Director General 
of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the transfer 
of a licence of Retailer of Liquor and Alcoholic 
Products - Restaurant in respect of premises 
situated at Flacq Shopping Mall, Boulet Rouge, 
Central Flacq to Near Shell Filling Station, Royal 
Road, Hermitage, Central Flacq.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Vigil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

KESAR INDIAN RESTAURANT LTD 
(Rec.No. i7/406i23)s Applicant

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs VID YA SINHA RAMASSAMY of Cite 
CHA, More Roy No. 2, Bel Air Riviere Seche have 
applied to the Director General of the Mauritius 
Revenue Authority for the issue of a new licence 
of Retailer of Liquor and Alcoholic Products - Off 
in respect of premises situated at Cite CHA, More 
Roy No. 2, Bel Air Riviere Seche.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Vigil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs VID YA SINHA RAMASSAMY
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 17/406122) s
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APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mr Harrychand Goondiah of SSR Lane, 
Arsenal have applied to the Director General of 
the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the issue of 
a new licence of Retailer of Liquor and Alcoholic 
Products - Restaurant in respect of premises 
situated at Balaclava Road, Arsenal.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mr Harrychand Goondiah
Applicant

(Rec. No. 17/406086)

PROJECTED CESSATION OF BUSINESS

Nature of Licence Number Situation Name of Licencee Receipt No. Date of Cessation 
of Business

Retailer of Liquor and Alcoholic 
products - (On & Off)

4400997326 1, Dumas Street 
Port-Louis

Li Pak Kwee, Yan Son Rep 
by Mr Laval Li Pak Kwee

17/406062 31.12.19
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To the Council of the

The District Council of Grand Port

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of The District Council of Grand Port which comprise 
the balance sheet as at 30 June 2017, and the income and expenditure account and the cash 
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the attached financial statements give a true and fair view of financial position 
of the District Council of Grand Port as at 30 June 2017 and of its income and expenditure for 
the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Mauritius.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit 
Institutions. My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am 
independent of the District Council of Grand Port in accordance with INTOSAI Code of 
Ethics together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial 
statements in Mauritius, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Investment - Rs 40.5 million

I draw attention to Note 3 to the financial statements. In October 2017, Council had forgone a 
sum of Rs 19.5 million on its placements with a financial institution that went into special 
administration in 2015. The amount forgone was allocated to reduce the Pension Fund. 
Passage Fund and Employee Benefit Obligation at 30 June 2017. in the ratio of the balances 
of these funds on 1 July 2016.

14,h Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius 
Tel.: 212 2096-97/2110836 Fax: (230) 2110880
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My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most 
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period . These matters were 
addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. I have 
determined that there is nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Mauritius and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the District 
Council of Grand Port’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management intends to to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the the District Council of 
Grand Port’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards of 
Supreme Audit Institutions will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions, 
I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I 
also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the the District Council of Grand Port’s internal 
control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the the District 
Council of Grand Port’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the the 
District Council of Grand Port to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that 1 have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Management's Responsibility for compliance

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, 
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financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance 
with the laws and authorities which govern them.

Auditor's Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described 
above, my responsibility includes expressing an opinion on whether the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are, in all material respects, 
in compliance with the laws and authorities which govern them. This responsibility includes 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about whether the agency’s expenditure and 
income have been applied for the purposes intended by the legislature. Such procedures also 
include the assessment of risks of material non compliance.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion.

Opinion on Compliance

Local Government Act

I have obtained all information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of my audit.

In my opinion, in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions and information 
reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the Local Government Act.

Public Procurement A ct

The District Council of Grand Port is responsible for the planning and conduct of its 
procurement. It is also responsible for defining and choosing the appropriate method of 
procurement and contract type in accordance with the provisions of the Act and relevant 
Regulations. My responsibility is to report on whether the provisions of Part V of the Act 
regarding the Bidding Process have been complied with.

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it 
appears from my examination of the relevant records.

K. C Tse Yuet Cheong (Mrs)
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
Port Louis

18 March 2019
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF GRAND PORT
Balance Sheet as at Year Ended 30 June 2017

Period Jan - Jun
2016 Note Jul 2016-Jun 2017

Rs Non-Current Assets Rs Rs Rs
693,902,843.88 Capital Outlay 2 755,820,048.87

Current Assets
2,849,390.04 Stock 2,353,583.47

40,973,637.65 Debtors 48,173,429.24
8,704,243.97 Advances 7,744,703.64

169,196.83 Prepayment 260,647.49
Work in Progress 1,158,152.02

50,000,000.00 Investment 3 40,500,000.00
63,037,279.60 Cash & Bank 75,727,617.57

165,733,748.09 175,918,133.43
Less Current Liabilities

23,315,948.1 1 Deposits 29,956,031.89
838,436.67 Advance Income 113,570.00

9,843,693.29 Creditors due less than one year 14,357,865.08
21,065,096.14 Provision for bad debts 24,112,158.64
55,063,174.21 (68,539,625.61)

110,670,573.88 107,378,507.82

(743,460.98) Less Creditors due more than one year (743,460.98)

109,927,112.90 106,635,046.84

803,829,956.78 862,455,095.70

Financed by
718,937,220.74 Capital Fund 4 786,209,517.10

60,256,719.52 General Fund 5 67,333,974.92

779,193,940.26 853,543,492.01

Provisions
••9,841,290.24 Pension Fund 6 3,085,922.57

'9,010,445.80 Passage Fund 1,030,173.62
2,275,214.12 Employees Benefit Obligation 7 1,139,374.65
3,509,066.36 Other Balances 3,656,132.85

24,636,016.52 8,911,603.69

803,829,956.78 862,455,095.70

CHAIRPERSON CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Date: 26 October 2017

1
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF GRAND PORT 
Income and Expenditure Account for the Year Ended 30 June 2017

(period Jan - Jun 
f 2016 Note Jul 2016-Jun 2017
'------- Rs Rs Rs

Income
107,509,986.00 Government Grant in aid 221,621,061.00

458,304.87 Investment Income 1,111,194.28
16,784,225.00 Trade Fees 27,025,575.00
10,234,300.00 Market fees 19,600,585.00

1,017,750.00 Bus Toll fee 2,069,975.00
6,991,791.36 Other Income 10,511,923.09

142,996,357.23 281,940,313.37

Expenditure
62,609,500.94 Staff Costs .8 131,778,246.13
31,644,271.81 Supplies and Services 71,129,185.49
3,378,277.50 Transport Costs 6,777,155.24
9,788,949.05 Administrative Costs 21,346,941.64

877,896.83 Social and Cultural Activities 2,053,613.48
1,587,226.50 Grants and Subsidies 3,816,453.00

. 100,000.00 Contribution to Associations 194,084.73
6,245,681.53 Pensions and Gratuities 13,931,475.08
1,607,503.44 Office Expenses 3,601,130.03

268,446.01 Insurance Costs 705,186.59
10,559.50 Others 15,192.49

11,798,769.04 Contribution to Funds 14,067,198.68
580,306.67 Expenditure - capital funds 1,990,590.15
115,500.00 Other balance -

Write/Off 175,000.00
2,811,028.50 Provision for bad debts 3,047,062.50

(133,423,917.32) (274,628,515.24)

9,572,439.91 Surplus / (Deficit) for the Year 7,311,798.13

Date: 26 October 2017

2
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF GRAND PORT
Cash Flow Statement For Year Ended 30 June 2017

period Jan - Jun
2016

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Jul 2016-Jun 2017

Rs Rs Rs

1 77,312,965.50 Cash received from Grant-in-aid 195,824,371.00

13,097,835.00 Cash received from Trade Fees 24,914,465.00

4,024,514.50 Cash received from BLUP fees 4,886,809.20

5,845,087.63 Cash received from other sources 10,224,333.21

8,398,360.00 Cash received from markets & fairs 17,171,510.00
1 587,275.00 Cash received from bus toll fees 1,470,290.00

' 1,367,348.05 Cash received from Admission Charge 676,987.66

(26,843,400.45) Cash payments to Suppliers/Contractors, etc (68,721,944.59)

(74,831,785.56) Cash paid to and on behalf of employees/councillors (156,946,472.66)

8,958,199.67 Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
RETURN ON INVESTMENT AND SER VICING OF 
FINANCE

29,500,348.82

453,463.71 Interest received on investment 750,000.00

210,661.03 Interest received on car loan 347,016.20

664,124.74 Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from ROI & SOF

INVESTING A CTIVITIES

1,097,016.20

10,000,000.00 Investments matured during year 20,000,000.00

(20,000,000.00) Investments made during year (30,000,000.00)

(4,944,988.04) Pension Fund at S1COM (10,438,678.00)

(7,497,996.67) Capital Outlay (50,091,571.93)

1,307,024.67 Refund of car loan and sale of vehicles 2,389,736.17

•  (1,065,750.00) Car Loan (1,626,375.00)

(22,201,710.04) Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities

FINANCING A CTIVITIES

(69,766,888.76)

9,860,395.71 Government Grants/N.D.U 51,859,861.74

9,860,395.71 Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 51,859,861.74
(2,718,989.92) INCREASEZ(DECREASE) IN CASH/BANK 12,690,338.00

Date: 26 October 2017

3
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF GRAND PORT

Notes to the Accounts For Year Ended 30 June 2017

accounting policies

I The Accounts have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

Expenses and Income have been accounted on an accrual basis (except for sick leave refund for year 2016, occasional licence, 
burial fees, scavenging fees (paid service), fees for Building & Land Use Permit, interest on car loan and other miscellaneous 
income).

|;j) No depreciation is charged in the Accounts.

1. NON-CURRENT ASSET

Capital Outlay
Additions during Disposal during

Opening Balance period Jul 2016 - period Jul 2016 - Closing Balance
01.07.2016 Jun 2017 Jun 2017 30.06.2017

Rs Rs Rs Rs

Land and Building 

Plant and Equipment 

Infrastructure
TOTAL

266,704,130.47 9,367,968.36 276,072,098.83

47,392,864.28 10,246,563.07 (668,721.00) 56,970,706.35
379,805,849.13 42,971,394.56__________________ 422,777,243.69
693,902,843.88 62,585,925.99 (668,721.00) 755,820,048.87

3. INVESTMENT Rs

General Fund 

Capital Fund 

Passage Fund 

Deposit 

Pension Fund

18,244,529.16

7,000,000.00

1,030,173.62

10,000,000.00

3,085,922.57

Employees Benefit Obligation
Total

1,139,374.65
40,500,000.00

Three investments of RslO million each were made fora period of two years at the Ex-Bramer Asset Management Ltd (Ex-BAML), 
on the Discretionary Portfolio Management Services Agreement, with maturity dates 02 Apr 2015, 21 Oct 2015, 28 Nov 2015 
respectively. The National Property Fund Ltd (NPFL) took over the responsibility for reimbursement of investment in the Ex- 
Bramer Asset Management Ltd. According to Government Policy decision, on 29 September 2017 the NPFL asked the Council to 
enter into an agreement for reimbursement of 35% as final settlement of the total amount invested in Ex-BAML, representing a 
sum of RslO.5 million, for which the Council had no alternative than to accept. Upon confirmation received from Ministry of Local 
Government, the Council accepted the reimbursement of 35% accordingly.The resulting amount foregone of Rsl9.5 million has 
been allocated to reduce the Pension Fund, Passage Fund and Employees Benefit for sick leave refund.

Transfers from/(to) other accounts (763,361.17) (763,361.17)

4. CAPITAL FUND
Applied Fund Unapplied Fund TOTAL

(Rs) (Rs) (Rs)

01.07.16 - Opening Balance 697,375,800.58 21,561,420.15 718,937,220.74

Additions to Fund 51,859,861.74 51,859,861.74

Fund applied to Capital Outlay 62,424,931.66 (45,580,414.87) 16,844,516.79

Disposal of assets (668,721.00) (668,721.00)

30.06.17 - Closing Balance  758,368,650.07 27,840,867.02 786,209,517.10

4
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GENERAL FUND
Revenue Reserve Renewal Account TOTAL

(Rs) (Rs) (Rs)
01.07.16 - Opening Balance 50,846,083.98 9,410,635.55 60,256,719.53

Projects financed under General Fund (10,531.41) (3,297,506.00) (3,308,037.41)

Adjustment - creditors, debtors, refund of overpayment, t 2,112,885.30 2,112,885.30

Car loan granted (1,626,375.00) (1,626,375.00)

Refund of car loan 2,389,736.17 2,389,736.17

Proceeds from sale of vehicle, etc 347,248.22 347,248.22

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year 7,311,798.13 7,311,798.13

30.06.17 - Closing Balance 60,260,236.00 7,223,738.94 67,483,974.95

6. PENSION LIABILITY (Full service considered for all active members)

6.1 Contribution to Pension Fund started as from July 2008 as per provision of PRB Report 2008. According to Statuory Bodies Pension 
Act as amended, the Pension Fund of the Council is being managed by the SICOM Ltd as from January 2013. In line with this, 
contributions made into Pension Fund under the management of Ex-Grand Port Savanne District Council, amounting to 
Rs79,683,870.97, forthe period July 2008 to December 2012, was transferred to SICOM Ltd accordingly. As from January 2013, 
monthly contributions are being remitted to SICOM Ltd by The District Council of Grand Port.

Following splitting of the Ex-Grand Port Savanne District Council, the pension fund figures of The District Council of Grand Port has 
been finalised this year, following which SICOM Ltd was asked to carry out an actuarial exercise to know the pension liability of the 
Council.

6.2 Actuarial exercise carried out by the SICOM Ltd has revealed the following pension liability forthe Council:

Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation at start of period
Current service cost
Interest cost
(Benefits paid)
Liability (gain)/loss
Present value of obligation at end of period

Reconciliation affair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at start of period
Expected return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Employee Contributions
Actuarial Reserves transferred in
(Benefits paid + other outgo)
(Transfer of Fund Balance)
Asset gain/(loss)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period

Distribution of plan assets at end of period
Percentage of assets at end of year
Government securities and cash
Loans
Local equities
Overseas bonds and equities
Property
Total . .

Year ending 30
June 2017

Rs
372,556,239

10,723,529
24,216,156

-56,185,509
1,781,802

353,092,217

137,499,539
8,996,418
9,635,282
4,818,640

178,222 
-1,526,798 

-45,166,209 
1,781,802 

116,216,896

June 2017

56.60%
4.40% 

15.80% 
22.60%

0.60%
100%

5
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Additional disclosure on assets issued or used by the reporting entity
Percentage of assets at end of year
Assets held in the entity's own financial instruments
Property occupied by the entity
Other assets used by the entity

History of obligations, assets and experience adjustments
Year
Currency
Fair value of plan assets
(Present value of defined benefit obligation)
Surplus/(deficit)

Asset experience gain/(loss) during the period
Liability experience gain/(loss) during the period

Year
Expected employer contributions

June 2017 (%)
0
0
0

June 2017
Rs

116,216,896 
-353,092,217 
-236,875,321

1,781,802
-1,781,802

2017/2018
10,035,143

6.3 Fund available at Council level for financing the above deficit of Rs236,875,321:

01.07.16 - Opening Balance 9,841,290.24

Contribution 2,328,061.70

Investment foregone following agreement for final settlement by NPFL

30.06.17 - Closing Balance

(9,083,429.37)

3,085,922.57

The above closing balance of Rs3,085,922.57 represents part funding for the pension liabilities of the Council.

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION

7.1 The Council's liability in terms of payment of accumulated sick leave up to a maximum of 110 days per employee has been 
estimated as at 30 June 2017. The aforesaid liability is estimated at approximately Rs32 million.

7.2 The sum provided as at 30 June 2017 is Rsl,139,374.65, representing partly the above-mentioned liability at 7.1.

8. STAFF COST

Basic Salary

Salary Compensation
Allowances
Cash in lieu of leave/Sick Leave Credits

End of Year Bonus
Travelling and Transport
Overtime

Staff Welfare
Passage Benefits
Contribution to NSF/National Pension Fund etc

Contribution to Family Protection Scheme

Contribution to Pension Fund
Total

Rs

91,649,211.80

511,827.33
5,388,571.93

4,661,094.68
7,479,528.85
9,790,592.42

5,560,815.98
165,333.80

2,763,705.34

2,172,135.00

1,635,429,00

131,778,246.13

12,766,739.70
144,544,985.83

6
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ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY PROGRAMME

1.1 Administration and Finance
1.2 Provision of statutory services and other facilities
Sub-Total

Provision for bad debts
Write/off
Adjustment for advance payment & others
Expenditure incurred by Ministry of Local Government & Outer Islands from retained Grant in Aid 
Expenditure under non-recurrent votes

TOTAL

Rs
86,066,228.00

158,356,582.05
244,422,810.05

3,047,062.50 
175,000.00

(559,323.48)
25,796,690.00

1,746,276.17
274,628,515.24

|0. PENDING LITIGATIONS

The following cases have been lodged against the Council:

Case name

(i) Dhoomun v/s DCGP

(ii) Collet v/s DCGP

(iii) Deira v/s DCGP

Court

Supreme Court

Supreme Court

Supreme Court

Claim Amount (Rs)

18,082,842

10,883,147

50,000,000

(Rec. No. 17/406108) 7
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of the Director of Audit

To the Council of

The District Council of Black River

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of The District Council of Black River, which comprise 
the balance sheet as at 30 June 2017, the statement of income and expenditure and the cash flow 
statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of The District Council of Black River as at 30 June 2017, and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in Mauritius.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions 
(ISSAIs). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent 
of the entity in accordance with the INTOSAI Code of Ethics, together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in Mauritius, and I have 
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe that 
the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance 
in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, 
and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. I have determined that there are no key 
audit matters to communicate in my report.

14,h Flnnr Air Mauritius Centre inhn Kenneriv Street Port I .nnis - Mauritius
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the District 
Council of Black River’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
intends to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the District Council of Black 
River’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAIs, will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISSAIs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District Council of Black River’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the District Council of 
Black River’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the District Council of Black River to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
I determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Management's Responsibility for Compliance

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the laws 
and authorities which govern them.

Auditor’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described 
above, my responsibility includes expressing an opinion on whether the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are, in all material respects, in 
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compliance with the laws and authorities which govern them. This responsibility includes 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about whether the District Council of Black 
River’s expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended by those charged 
with governance. Such procedures include the assessment of the risks of material non- 
compliance.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my opinion.

Opinion on Compliance

Local Government Act

The financial statements of The District Council of Black River for the year ended 30 June 2017 
were submitted to my Office on 30 October 2017. Following examination of these financial 
statements, amendments were required and the amended financial statements, duly approved by 
the Council on 21 March 2019, were received on 25 March 2019.

I have obtained all information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purpose of my audit.

In my opinion, in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions and information 
reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the Local Government Act.

Public Procurement Act

The District Council of Black River is responsible for the planning and conduct of its 
procurement. It is also responsible for defining and choosing the appropriate method of 
procurement and contract type in accordance with the provisions of the Act and relevant 
Regulations. My responsibility is to report on whether the provisions of Part V of the Act 
regarding the Bidding Process have been complied with.

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it appears 
from my examination of the relevant records.

K. C. Tse Yuet Cheong (Mrs)
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

28 March 2019
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED

30 JUNE 2017
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER 
Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2017

6-Months Period 
Ended 30 June 

2016
Year Ended 30 June 2017

Rs Note Rs Rs

474,432,556
ASSETS EMPLOYED
Capital & Other Long Term Outlay (2) 494,193,183

474,432,556 494,193,183

35,200,000
1,734,058
6,548,682

43,934,462

CURRENT ASSETS
Short Term Investments
Stock
Debtors
Cash and bank

(5)
(1)
(6)
(7)

50,294,713
1,154,894
7,056,752 

66,473,857
87,417,202

12,064,543
2,399,630

Less CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors
Deposits

(8)

124,980,216

14,908,911
2,399,630

14,464,173
72,953,029 NET CURRENT ASSETS

17,308,541
107,671,675

547,385,585 601,864,858

495,394,440
FINANCED BY
General Fund (9) 523,189,644

5,310,769
31,000,000

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Passage Fund
Pension Fund
Provision for Sick Leave

(4a)
(4b)

6,175,797
46,000,000

5,000,000

15,680,376 OTHER BALANCES (12) 21,499,417
547,385,585 601,864,858

Chairperson
MRST.D RATVIKISSOON-MUNGOOSING

Chief Executive
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

Income & Expenditure Account for the Year Ended 30 June 2017

6-Months Period 
Ended 30 June 

2016

Year Ended 30
June 2017

Rs Rs

Income

Government Grant In Aid 88,662,677 216,271,000

Investment Income 614,212 2,208,382

Rentals 45,000 96,000
Fees-8th Schedule 8,340,975 13,774,385

Publicity Fees 653,703 2,394,903

Scavenging Fees 1,484,330 3,196,400

Permits 3,765,583 13,752,312

Other Income; 553,451 996,058

Independence & other grants 225,000 225,000

104,344,931 252,914,440

Expenditure

Compensation of Employees 49,785,829 112,765,495

Goods and Services 50,690,022 100,869,737

Grants and Subsidies 1,324,000 1,942,000

Employer Social Benefits 3,007,186 7,051,203

Contribution/Provisions 13,235 20,173,764

Acquisition of non-financial assets 623,089 2,930,639

105,443,361 245,732,838

(Deficit)/ Surplus (1,098,430) 7,181,602
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2017

6-Months Period 
Ended 30 June 

2016

Year Ended 30 June
2017

Rs Rs

Operating Activities

Cash received from Grant-in-Aid 88,662,677 216,271,000

Cash received from Rates & Taxes 2,036,583 5,591,303
Cash received from Fees -8th Schedule 8,458,425 14,888,435

Cash received from other sources 18,088,720 38,687,322
Cash received from Fees - 10th Schedule 3,765,583 13,752,312

121,011,988 289,190,372

Cash payment to suppliers/contractors, etc. (46,669,265) (105,568,146)

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees (74,373,929) (154,062,696)

Net Cash Inflow from operating activities (31,206) 29,559,530

Returns on Investment and Servicing of Finance

Interest received on investment 614,212 2,208,382

Interest paid on loan / debentures/bank charges (12,016) (44,407)

Net Cash Outflow from R.O.I. andS.O.F. 602,196 2,163,975

Investing Activities

Investments 13,704,450 (15,094,713)

Payment to increase Capital Outlay (1,716,857) (20,955,864)

Net cash outflow from investing activities 11,987,593 (36,050,577)

Financing Activities

Government Grants 5,416,731 26,866,467

Net Cash Inflow from financing activities 5,416,731 26,866,467

Sub-total 17,975,314 22,539,395

Net Increase in Cash 17,975,314 22,539,395
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

Notes to the Account for the Year Ended 30 June 2017

1(a) Accounting Policies

(i) The Accounts have been prepared on a historical cost basis and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles.
(ii) In line with accounting practice applicable for Local Authorities no depreciation is charged in the Accounts.
(iv) Stock has been valued at weighted average cost.
(iii) All income have been accounted on a cash basis.
(v) Amount due in respect of Trade, Scavenging and Publicity Fees have been disclosed as notes to Accounts.

1(b) Reporting Period, Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements have been prepared for the 12-months period ended 30 June 2017. Comparative figures are 
for the 6-months period ended 30 June 2016. Therefore, figures are not comparable.

The Financial Statements are presented in Mauritian Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest rupee.

Assets Employed - Fixed Assets

Capital & Other Long Term Outlay

Balance as at 01.07.2016 Additions Disposals Balance as at 30.06.2017
Rs Rs Rs Rs

474,432,556 23,300,127 3,539,500 494,193,183

Schedule for Capital and Other Long Term Outlay

Opening Balance 
as at 01.07.16 Additions Disposal

Closing 
Balance as at 

30.06.17

Land & Building
Capital Projects in villages 
Motor Vehicles
Tools & Equipment
Sports Equipment
Furniture & Equipment
TOTAL

Rs
51,878,826

362,509,585
26,517,462

4,862,466
1,628,717

27,035,500

Rs
4,705,282 

15,070,138
1,334,000

932,185

1,258,522

Rs

3,539,500

Rs
56,584,108

377,579,723
24,311,962
5,794,651
1,628,717

28,294,022
474,432,556 23,300,127 3,539,500 494,193,183

3 Pension Fund

In accordance with the Local Government Act 2011, the Pension Fund, which represents contribution of employees and 
of the District Council (Employer) to meet pension liability as from July 2008, has been transferred to the SICOM.
An amount of Rs 35,411,983 was transferred in 2013.

The Council operates two types of Plan, a Defined Benefit Plan and a Defined Contribution Plan and total contribution to 
the fund for period July 2016 to June 2017 was Rs 11,668,892.

As per statement submitted by SICOM, the Market Value of the fund as at 30 June 2017 was Rs 88,339,644.
As per last actuarial review carried out by SICOM, the pension obligation of the Council prior to 2008 amounts to Rs 
95,879,027. An amount of Rs 46 Million had been provided as at 30 June 2017 in the Accounts to meet these pension 
liabilities.
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4 Contribution/Provisions 

(a) Provision for Pension liability prior to July 2008

An additional amount of Rs 15 Million has been provided in 2016-17 to meet pension liability prior to July 2008.

(b) Provision for Sick Leaves
A provision of Rs 5 Million has been made in the 2016-17 for the payment of accumulated sick leaves.

5 Short Term Investments

Bank Maturity Date Deposit 
Rs

ABC Banking Corporation 05.06.2018 5,300,000
ABC Banking Corporation 16.12.2017 15,000,000
ABC Banking Corporation 14.10.2017 15,000,000
SBM Ltd (Treasury Bills) 05.01.2018 14,994,713
TOTAL 50,294,713

6-Months
Period Ended 30

June 2016
Year Ended 30

June 2017

Debtors Rs Rs

Car Loan to Officers 6,548,682 7,056,752

Other Debtors

Trade fees 1,558,800 2,242,075

Scavenging Fees 483,900 766,500

Publicity Fees 1,616,837 2,226,679
3,659,537 5,235,254

Cash at Bank

Petty Cash 1,064 689

Calls and Current Accounts 34,663,907 25,820,500

Saving Accounts:
MauBank Ltd 6,799,570 36,943,025

SBM Ltd- Retention Money 84,429 594,473

SBM Ltd- Renewal 264,891 153,939

Bank One Ltd 2,120,601 2,753,022

Current Account:
ABC Banking Corporation - 208,209

43,934,462 66,473,857
S!SBBSSSSSXSSSSXX^XSZSS=SS

5
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8 Creditors

Creditors-Trade Creditors

Retention Money
Stale Cheques
Deposits- Deduction Account

9 General Fund

District Council Fund (Note 9(a))

Capital Grant (Note 9(b))

9(a) District Council Fund

Renewal Fund
Revenue Reserve (Note 10)
GRF Revenue Contributions (Note 11)

(b) Capital Grant

Opening balance

Grant Applied

Less Sale of asset

Closing balance

10 Revenue Reserve Account

Balance b/f
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period

11 GRF Revenue Contributions

Balance b/f
Additions

6-Months
Period Ended 30 Year Ended 30

June 2016 June 2017
Rs Rs

9,868,747 11,832,808
1,889,610 2,617,463

89,234 241,203
216,952 217,437

12,064,543 14,908,911

80,615,917

414,778,524

92,674,314

430,515,330
495,394,441 523,189,644

15,597,136
10,584,403
54,434,378

16,450,110
17,766,005
58,458,199

80,615,917 92,674,314

412,301,371

2,477,153

414,778,524

19,276,306

(3,539,500)

414,778,524 430,515,330

11,682,833
(1,098,430)

10,584,403
7,181,602

10,584,403 17,766,005

51,993,965
2,440,413

54,434,378
4,023,821

54,434,378 58,458,199

6
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6-Months
Period Ended 30

June 2016
Rs

Year Ended 30 
June 2017

Rs12 Other Balances

Capital Grant 228,082 470,979

Morcellement Fund 2,158,184 1,948,344

Other Projects 1,545,962 2,840,072

Local Development Fund & Other Projects 5,204,720 1,746,092

Local Development Fund 2016/2017 8,246,034

NDU-Drain projectsand maintenance 242,518 991,513

Deposit A/C Embellishment Beaux Songes Kovil 261,454 •

Grant Jeux des villages 916,266 916,266

Grant World Environment Day 442,059 16,774

Grant Urban Renovation Project 3,889,219 3,889,219

National Land Drainage Framework Committee 737,847 414,569

MLG - Street Lighting Cables 54,065 *

Cleaning,Rehabilitation & Upgrading of Drains w 19,555

TOTAL 15,680,376 21,499,417

13 Pending Litigations
Securiclean (Mauritius) Ltd has lodged a case before the court against the District Council of Black River and the 
Central Procurement Board to request the payment of an amount of Rs 105M for prejudice caused for not being 
awarded the contracts for refuse collection. As at Balance Sheet date, the case has not yet been determined.

7

(Rec. No. 17/406083)
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REPORT OF THE

DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

On the Financial Statements 
of the District Council of Savanne 
for the year ended 30 June 2017

---------- -------  NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE------------------
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To the Council of the

The District Council of Savanne

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of The District Council of Savanne which comprise 
the balance sheet as at 30 June 2017, and the income and expenditure account and the cash 
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion paragraph, the attached financial statements give a true and fair view of financial 
position of the District Council of Savanne as at 30 June 2017 and of its income and 
expenditure for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in Mauritius.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Capital Outlay - Rs 339,704,068

Valid assets vested in the District Council of Savanne following the split of the Ex Grand 
Port Savanne District Council and the redefinition of Councils’ boundaries on 1 January 
2013, were valued at Rs 451,749,180 as per the Depreciated Asset Replacement Cost basis. 
Only
Rs 229,633,536, representing assets received from the Ex Grand Port Savanne District 
Council at historical cost values, were included under Capital Outlay. The surplus value of Rs 
222,115,644 had not been recognized in accounts.

Investment - Rs 26,420,558

Included under Investment were placements of some Rs 30 million with a financial institution 
that went into Special Administration in April 2015. In September 2017, the District Council 
of Savanne entered into an agreement with the Company that had taken over the operations of 
the financial institution for the reimbursement of 35 per cent as full and final settlement of the 
total amount invested. The sum of Rs 10.5 million was paid over to Council on 7 October 
2017. Credit losses on the placements amounted to Rs 19.5 million. Allowance for credit 
losses of only Rs 9 million was made in accounts.

14*h Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius 
Tel.: 212 2096-97/2110836 Fax: (230) 2110880
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I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit 
Institutions. My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am 
independent of the District Council of Savanne in accordance with INTOSAI Code of Ethics 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements 
in Mauritius, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

K.ey audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most 
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Except for the 
matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, I have determined that there are 
no other key audit matters to communicate in my report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Mauritius and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the District 
Council of Savanne’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
intends to to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the the District Council of 
Savanne’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards of 
Supreme Audit Institutions will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions, 
I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I 
also:
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• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the the District Council of Savanne’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the the District 
Council of Savanne’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the the District 
Council of Savanne to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Management’s Responsibility for compliance

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, 
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financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance 
with the laws and authorities which govern them.

Auditor's Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described 
above, my responsibility includes expressing an opinion on whether the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are, in all material respects, 
in compliance with the laws and authorities which govern them. This responsibility includes 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about whether the agency’s expenditure and 
income have been applied for the purposes intended by the legislature. Such procedures also 
include the assessment of risks of material non compliance.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion.

Opinion on Compliance

Local Government Act

I have obtained all information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of my audit.

In my opinion, in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions and information 
reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the Local Government Act.

Public Procurement Act

The District Council of Savanne is responsible for the planning and conduct of its 
procurement. It is also responsible for defining and choosing the appropriate method of 
procurement and contract type in accordance with the provisions of the Act and relevant 
Regulations. My responsibility is to report on whether the provisions of Part V of the Act 
regarding the Bidding Process have been complied with.

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it 
appears from my examination of the relevant records.

K. C Tse Yuet Cheong (Mrs)
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
Port Louis

18 March 2019
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF SAVANNE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF SAVANNE
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30.06.17

6 Months to 30 June 
2016

Rs
Fixed Assets

Rs Rs

2016-2017

Rs
314,660,938 Capital Outlay 339,704,068

67,659,654
Other Long Term Asset
Investment Pension Fund 79,823,733

1,106,727
20,058,126
34,509,766
18,199,649

Current Assets
Stock
Debtors
Investment
Cash at Bank and in hand

1,109,761
23,822,316
26,420,558
25,517,073

73,874,268 76,869,708

17,996,826
3,677,655
7,575,980

Less Current Liabilities
Deposits
Creditors due less than one year 
Provision for bad debts

15,887,420
8,610,009
8,779,332

(29,250,462)
44,623,806 Net Current Assets

(33,276,761)
43,592,947

426,944,398 Net Assets 463,120,749

326,935,859
16,931,338

Financed by
Capital Fund
General Fund

354,374,877
11,991,685

343,867,197 366,366,562

2,124,256
Long Term Liability
Creditors due more than one year 1,793,784

68,527,995
9,585,594
2,839,357

80,952,946

Provisions
Pension Fund
Passage Fund 
Other Balances

79,823,733
11,312,873
3,823,796

94,960,403
426,944398 Capital Employed - ............. 463,120,749

K. Gajadur
Chairperson

S.Coonjan Jugroop (Mrs.)
Chief Executive

30 October 2017

Page 1
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF SAVANNE
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

JAN-JUNE 2016 Income 2016-2017
Rs Rs Rs

66,075,260 Government Grant in aid 150,872,341
- Investment Income -

9,447,700 Fees - Twelfth Schedule 14,266,650
1,216,000 Market fees 3,840,500

515,300 Bus Toll fee 919,700
2,037,427 Other Income 5,070,398

79,291,687

47,393,299
Expenditure 
Staff Costs 95,998,915

174,969,589

9,975,475 Supplies and Services 18,481,832
3,141,036 Transport Costs 5,707,904
5,228,704 Administrative Costs 13,026,854
1,812,469 Social and Cultural Activities 3,235,429
1,211,330 Grants and Subsidies 2,284,075

65,000 Contribution to Associations 150,000

4,592,510 Pensions and Gratuities 8,746,388
1,048,879 Office Expenses 3,024,844

514,700 Insurance Costs 557,500
44,425 Others 33,286

530,496 Add Opening Stock 1,106,727
(1,106,727) Less Closing Stock (1,109,761)

142,020 Car Loan Fund 643,743
22,170
69,081

MCP Capitalised
Capitalisation of recurrent expenditure 1,742,457

- Passage Fund 1,727,509
5,928,933 Pension Fund 12,114,524

591,905 Provision for bad debts 1,203,352
(81,205,704) 

(1,914,017) Revenue Surplus/(Deficit)
(168,675,578)

6,294,011

(657,830)

Tr to Deposit:
Inspection & Audit Fees
Tr to Other Balance: Provision for MCP

200,000
1,275,000 (1,475,000)

(2,571,847) Surplus c/f7(Deficit) c/f 4,819,011

30 October 2017

Page 2
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF SAVANNE
Cash Flow Statement for Year Ended 30 June 2017

’an - June 2016 2016-2017
Rs Rs Rs

OPERA TING ACTIVITIES

66,435,908 Cash received from Grants-in-aid 150,872,341

8,195,690 Cash received from fees - 12th Schedule 13,664,905

896,897 Cash received from fees - 10th Schedule 2,909,835

i 2,834,951 Cash received from other sources 5,279,520

444,400 Cash received from markets & fairs 1,681,955

463,100 Cash received from bus toll fees 962,100

(23,799,735) Cash payments to Sup/Contractors etc. (47,343,732)

(51,531,668) Cash paid to and on behalf of employees (101,525,465)

3,939,543 Net Cash inflow from operating activities 26,501,458

RETURN ON INVESTMENT

AND SERVICING OF FINANCE

(820) Interest received on investment -

24,955 Interest received on car Ioan 77,748

24,135 Net Cash inflow from ROI & SOF 77,748

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

6,080,838 Investments 13,026,680

9,329,679 Capital Outlay 25,043,131

(203,627) Refund of car loan & Sale of vehicles (709,636)

- Car Loan 1,670,000

(15,206,890) Net Cash (outflow) from investing activities (39,030,175)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

3,514,850 Government Grants/N.D.U 19,768,393

- Disinvestment -

3,514,850 Net Cash inflow from financing activities 19,768,393

(7,728,362) INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASII/BANK 7,317,424
(("?
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF SAVANNE
Notes to the Accounts for Year Ended 30 June 2017

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Accounts have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

Expenses and Income have been accounted on an accrual basis with provision made for bad debts. However, 
capital expenditure has been accounted on cash basis.
Closing Stock as at 30 June 2017 has been computed on a first in first out method and disclosed on the face 
of the financial statements.
No Depreciation has been provided on Capital Outlay in this financial statements same as in previous periods

ACCOUNTING PERIOD
The Accounts have been prepared for year ended 30 June 2017 with comparative figures being given for six 
months ending 30 June 2016.

FIXED ASSETS
Capital Outlay
Balance b/f (01.07.2016)
District Council Capital Outlay [refer to (i) & (ii) below]
Balance c/f (30.06.2017)

Rs
314,660,938
25,043,131

339,704,068

District Council Capital Outlay

Balance b/f (01.07.2016)
Capitalised recurrent Items
LIF-Capital Projects 2013
LDF 2015-16 Capital
LDF-Projects 2016-2017-Rsl0m Capital
LDP-Construction of drains in Flood Prone
Areas(Const 13-Rs509600 & Const no 14- 
Rs524160)
NDU-PROJECTS 2016-2017 (Rs5,660,303)
Capital

General Fund
MCP Previous
Accruals 2015 Capitalised
Accruals 2016 Capitalised
GENERAL FUND 2015
Deposit Capital VRS(Street Name Plates)
Total as at 30.06.17

Rs

1,742,457
28,540

7,969,151
4,044,115

865.795

4,097,391

5,330,418
149,655
320,400

21,844
290,569
182.795

Rs

314,660,938

25,043,131
339,704,068
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(ii) District Council Capital Outlay Analysis

Jan-June2016
Rs

2016/017
Rs

Land and Building 2,865,992 8,733,530
Plant and Equipment 499,747 1,006,047
Infrastructure 5,963,941 15,303,554
Total 9329,679 25,043,131

LONG TERM INVESTMENT
Rs

Pension Fund at SICOM 79,823,733

INVESTMENT
Rs

General Fund & Deposit 21,000,000
Car Loan 1,557,408
General Fund re: pension 150346
Passage Fund 3,712,904 _ 5,420,558
Total 26,420,558

Rs30,000,000 were invested in ex-Bramer Asset Management which is in receivership. Only 35% of this 
money would be paid over to this Council by NPFL. However, Council has made a request for refund of 
70% of the total sum invested. As a result 30% of that investment had been written down.

6- OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Stock
Debtors
Savings A/C & Current A/Cs
Total

7. CAPITAL FUND
consists of
Applied Fund
Unapplied Fund
Total

Rs
1,109,761

23,822316
25,517,073
50,449,150

Rs
345,149,280

9,225,597
354374,877

8. GENERAL FUND
consists of
Renewal Fund(Car Loan)
Revenue Reserve 
General Fund Pension 
Car Loan Fund
Total

Rs
1,330,575
8,085,115
1,018,586
1,557,408

11,991,685
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9. STAFF & PENSION COST

Basic Salary
Salary Adjustment/Compensation
Acting Allowances
Uniform and other protective
Other Allowances
Cash in lieu of leave/Sick Leave Credits 
End of Year Bonus
Travelling and Transport
Overtime
Staff Welfare
Local Training, Subscription & CPD
Passage Benefits
Contribution to NSF/National Pension Fund
Contr. to Family Protection Scheme
Contr. to Pension Fund
Pensions and Gratuities
Total

Rs
64,643,971

260,778
320,592

1,422,235
1,809,930
2,971,793
5,662,205
7,922,031

6,110,416.43
77,000
54,184

1,995,376
1,456,322
1,292,083

12,114,524
8,746,388

116,859,827

10- PENSION FUND
Pension Fund has been accounted as per the requirements of section 81 the Local Government Act 2011.

Statements of Fund had been submitted by SICOM and accounts adjusted accordingly. Actuarial Report is being 
awaited from SICOM on the present value of the defined benefit obligation of the Pension Plan.

Necessary Disclosures would be made in the Financial Statements upon receipt of the actuarial report from SICOM

11. ACCRUALS
Accrued sums for Year 2016/2017 had been accounted in the respective expenditure items within the Statement of 
Income and Expenditure for Year Ended 30 June 2017.

Date: 30 October 2017

Page 6
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF SAVANNE
Movement in Funds For Year Ended 30 June 2017

Description Capital 
Fund

Rs

General 
Fund

Rs

Passage 
Fund

Rs

Pension 
Fund

Rs

Balance as at 01.07.2016 326,935,859 16,931,338 9,585,594 68,527,995

Addition to fund 19,696,393 68,660 49,555

Fund applied (17,004,992) (5,963,232)

Transfers to/from Income & Exp. 1,742,457 5,462,754 1,727,509 12,114,524

Contra Entries 17,004,992

Transfers to other accounts (295,514) (6,023,897) (230) (868,340)

Transfers from other accounts 6,295,681 1,516,062

Balance as at 30.06.2017 354,374,877 11,991,685 11,312,873 79,823,733

Date: 30 October 2017

(Rec. No. 17/406115)
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|| SBM
SBM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD
REPORT OFTHE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ON THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBER 
OF SBM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD

OPINION

The summary financial statements which comprise the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the statements of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity, statements of cash flows for the year then ended, are derived from the 
audited financial statements of SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd (the Bank) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

In our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements are consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements, 
in accordance with the requirements of the Banking Act 2004 as disclosed in the summary financial statements.

Summary Financial Statements
The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2001 and the Banking Act 2004. Reading the summary financial statements and auditor’s report thereon, 
therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial statements of the Bank and the auditor's report thereon.

The summary financial statements and audited financial statements, do not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the date 
of our report on those financial statements.

The Audited Financial Statements and Our Report Thereon
We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our reports dated 31 March 2019. That report also includes

• Other Matter paragraph which describes that the report Is made solely to the Bank's member in accordance with Section 205 of the 
Companies Act 2001 and for no other purpose.

• Report on other legal and regulatory requirements includes reporting as per:

- Companies Act 2001 that no interest or relationship in the Bank other than in our capacity as auditors, all required information have been 
obtained and proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank.

- Banking Act 2004 that financial statement complies with the requirement of the Banking Act 2004 and regulation and guidelines of Bank of Mauritius.

- Financial Reporting Act 2004 that the disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report are consistent with the requirements of the Code.

• The communication of key audit matters. [Key audit matters are those matters that, inour professional judgement, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period.]

Management's Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of the summary financial statements in accordance with the requirements described in the 
Banking Act 2004.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are consistent, in all material respects, with the 
audited financial statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 
810 (Revised), "Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements."

ERNST & YOUNG
Ebene, Mauritius 

PATRICK NGTSEUNG, A.C.A
Licensed by FRC

31 March 2019
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(| SBM

SBM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD

STATEMENT OF FINANCIALPOSITION AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
________________________________________ ■_______________________________________________________________________6

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Mandatory balances with central banks

Loans to and placements with banks

Derivative financial instruments

Loans and advances to non-bank customers

Investment securities

Equity investments

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits from banks

Deposits from non-bank customers

Other borrowed funds

Derivative financial instruments

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Stated capital

Capital contribution

Retained earnings

Other reserves

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

31 December

2018

31 December

2017

31 December

2016

MUR' 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000

III®*-- ’^1
11,211,712 15,620,778 9,423,941

8,767,767 8,712,062 6,945,570

life ■ 11,764,358 8,895,860 4,645,911

1I& 762,855 1,356,774 165,997

94,296,051 100,839,231 71,158,114

50,934,309 37,150,731 34,410,974

3,411 370 4,058

2,458,814 2,631,782 2,750,051
He’

2,962,920 3,457,061 3,769,919

95,461 215,320
823,653 923,892 600,752

183,985,850 179,684,002 134,090,607

■ d|
J

796,117 739,926 2,711,364■
147,530,840 141,695,769 108,302,387

w ’ 11,773,938 13,116,593 4,540,509

■i 1 758,642 1,334,584 182,406

474,487 105,869 358,908
* 163,996 170,905 -

5,020,635 4,163,207 2,240,596

166,518,655 161,326,853 118,336,170

310,000 310,000 310,000

11,044,011 9,063,106 8,063,106

4,817,518 7,855,520 6,193,747

... 1,295,666 1,128,523 1,187,584

17,467,195 18,357,149 15,754,437

179,684,002 _ 134,090,607

Approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 31 March 2019.

Parvataneni Venkateswara Rao

Acting Chief Executive

Ishwar Anoopum Gaya 

Chairman, Audit Committee

Nayen Koomar BaLLah, G.O.S.K. 

Chairman



1924 The Mauritius Government Gazette

SBM
SBM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD

Comparatives have been restated in view of discontinued operations.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FORTHE YEAR ELIDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 .
a „ o 1 O© •

Restated Restated
31 December 31 December 31 December

2018 2017 2016

MUR' 000 MUR’000 MUR' 000

Interest income 7,156,372 6,074,890 5,396,550

Interest expense (1,665,006) (1,569,129) (1,361,267)

Net interest income 5,491,366 4,505,761 4,035,283

Fee and commission income 1,061,666 1,005,274 976,780
Fee and commission expense (23,015) (22,396) (20,725)

Net fee and commission income 1,038,651 982,878 956,055

Other income

Profit arising from dealing in foreign currencies 679,738 431,483 489,976
Net gain/(loss) from financial instruments 500,133 519,821 (24,831)
Net gain on sale of securities 173,554 430,897 423,849
Other operating income 61 4,204

1,353,425 1,382,262 893,198
Non-interest income 2,392,076 2,365,140 1,849,253

Operating income 7,883,442 6,870,901 5,884,536

Personnel expenses (1,336,294) (1,363,396) (1,275,812)
Depreciation of property and equipment (145,188) (149,163) (148,237)
Amortisation of intangible assets (549,948) (493,091) (191,254)
Other expenses (703,303) (839,940) (829,031)

Non-interest expense (2,734,733) (2,845,590) (2,444,334)

Profit before credit loss expense 5,148,709 4,025,311 3,440,202
Credit loss expense on financial assets (3,010,356) (228,024) (414,878)

Profit before income tax 2,138,353 3,797,287 3,025,324
Tax expense (676,988) (494,135) (632,160)

Profit for the year from continuing operations 1,461,365 3,303,152 2,393,164

Discontinued operations Bi
Loss after tax for the period/year from discontinued operations (221,374) (691,859) (184,552)

Loss on distribution of dividend in specie (685,838) - -

(907,212) (691,859) (184,552)
Profit for the year _______ •  2,611,793 2,208,612

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 •

31 December 
2018

Restated
31 December

2017

Restated
31 December 

2016

MUR’ 000 MUR' 000 MUR' 000

Profit for the year 554,153 2,611,293 2,208,612

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (net of deferred tax):

Increase in revaluation of property - - 1,480

Adjustment to revaluation reserve on disposal of property - (190)

Underprovision of deferred tax assets on revaluation of property in prior years - - (24,817)

Remeasurement of defined benefit pension plan (27,802) (32,881) 1,599
(27,802) (32,881) (21,928)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 564,044 (28,403) (76,609)

Available-for-sale investments

Movement in fair value of available-for-sale investments 182,180 233,005

Fair value re-cycled on disposal of available-for-sale investments - (175,477) (187,436)

Investment securities measured at FVTOCI (Debt instruments)

Movement in fair value during the year (138,912) - -

Fair value re-cycled on disposal 1,491 - -

Loss allowance relating to debt instruments held at FVTOCI 26,415 -

453,038 (21,700) (31,040)

Total other comprehensive income 425,236 (54,581) (52,968)

Total comprehensive income for the year .. ....___________979,389 2,556,712 _ 2,155,644
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|| SBM
SBM BANK (MAURITIUS) LTD

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

At 01 January 2016

Stated 
capital

Capital 
contribution

Retained 
earnings

Statutory 
reserve

Fair value 
reserve on 

financial instruments 
recognised in OCI

Property 
revaluation 

reserve

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

Total 
equity

MUR' 000

310,000

MUR' 000

8,063,106

MUR' 000

3,940,391

MUR' 000

530,390

MUR' 000

(70,984)

MUR' 000

1,284,922

MUR' 000

(459,032)

MUR' 000

13,598,793

Profit for the year - < 2,208,612 - - - - 2,208,612

Other comprehensive income /(loss) for the year - - 1,599 - 45,569 (23,527) (76,609) (52,968)

Total comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year - - 2,210,211 - 45,569 (23,527) (76,609) 2,155,644

Transfer to retained earnings - - 43,145 - - (43,145)

At 31 December 2016 310,000 8,063,106 6,193,747 530,390 (25,415) 1,218,250 (535,641) 15,754,437

At 01 January 2017 310,000 8,063,106 6,193,747 530,390 (25,415) 1,218,250 (535,641) 15,754,437

Profit for the year - - 2,611,293 - - - - 2,611,293

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year - - (32,881) - 6,703 - (28,403) (54,581)

Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year - - 2,578,412 - 6,703 (28,403) 2,556,712

Capital contribution received during the year - 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000,000

Transfer to retained earnings - - 37,361 - - (37,361) - -

Dividend (954,000) - - - (954,000)

At 31 December 2017 310,000 9,063,106 7,855,520 530,390 (18,712) 1^180,889 (564,044) 18,357,149
- ■ ■

At 01 January 2018 < 310,000 9,063,106 7,855,520 530,390 (18,712) 1,180,889 (564,044) 18,357,149

Impact of adopting IFRS 9 ■ . (250,070) - 34,993 - - (215,077)

Restated opening balance under IFRS 9 310,000 9,063,106 7,605,450 530,390 16,281 1,180,889 (564,044) 18,142,072

Profit for the year

Loss allowance relating to debt instruments
p?’■

554,153 - - - - 554,153

held at FVTOCI ' - 26,415 - - 26,415
Other comprehensive (Loss)/income for the year - (27,802) . - • (137,421) 564,044 398,821

Total comprehensive In come/(loss) for the year ds - 526,351 (111,006). ' ■ 564,044 979,389

Capital contribution received during the year 1,980,905 -■ - - 1,980,905

Transfer to retained earnings
1

... 37,690 - (37,690) . . -

Cash dividend (1,100,500) - - (1,100,500)
Distribution in specie leading to derecognition of 
foreign operations (2,251,473) (220,390) (62,808) (2,534,671)

At 31 December 2018 -1310,000 11,044,011 4,817,518 310,000 (94,725) l#080,391_ - 17,467,195

ABRIDGED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 2018 , 31 December 2017 31 December 20164MUR' 000 - MUR' 000 MUR'000

Net cash used in operating activities
• ■ J®

• (3,486,978) (1,891,999) (265,084)

Net cash from financing activities
fer-’’ 4;

1,248,015 8,622,084 2,408,011

Net cash used in investing activities (371,002) (221,473) (1,726,361)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents J' (2,609,965) 6,508,612 416,566

Net foreign exchange difference (71,792) (311,775) 28,889

Cash transfer upon distribution in specie of the Indian Operations (1,727,309) - -

Cash and cash equivalents at start of year / 15,620,778 9,423,941 8,978,486

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
k ■ 11,211,712

15,620,778 9,423,941

The financial information, including the independent auditor on the summary financial statements to the member of SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd, 
has been extracted from the full set of audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

(Rec. No. 17/406106)
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AFREXIMBANK
AFRICAN EXPORT-IMPORT BANK
ABRIDGED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY

GENERAL INFORMATION

The African Export-Import Bank (the Bank) is a multilateral trade 
finance institution, established in October 1993. It commenced 
lending operations in September 1994. The Bank’s mandate is to 
promote, finance and facilitate intra and extra-African trade, while 
operating commercially. The Bank is headquartered in Cairo, Egypt 
and is located at No. 72 (B) El Maahad El Eshteraky Street, Heliopo­
lis, Cairo 11341, Egypt. In addition, the Bank has regional offices in 
Harare (Zimbabwe), Abuja (Nigeria), Abidjan (Cote D'Ivoire) and is 
currently setting up a regional office in East Africa. The Bank has 4 
classes of shareholders, class A (African Governments and/or 
associated institutions and African Multilateral institutions e.g 
African Development Bank), class B (African financial institutions 
and private investors), class C (non-African institutions) and class D 
(any investor). Class A,B and C shares are partially paid 40% upon 
subscription while class D shares are fully paid. Class D shares were 
created in 2012 to facilitate the Bank's entry in to the equity capital 
market. In October 2017 the Bank Listed Depository Receipts on 
the Stock Exchange of Mauritius backed by class D shares.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The Bank earned total Comprehensive Income amounting to 
US$285.4 million, a solid growth of 24% compared to prior year 
performance of US$229.8 million. The achieved results were mainly 
due to higher Net Income in 2018 amounting to USS 275.9 million 
(2017: US$220.5 million), a growth of 25% compared to prior year 
performance. In addition, a revaluation gain of USS 9.5 million 
(2017: US$9.3 million) on the Headquarters building in Cairo as a 
result of the recovery in the property market boosted Other 
Comprehensive Income. The significant growth in the Net Income 
was largely driven by a substantial increase in all revenue lines 
which increased total revenues by 24%. It is to be noted that the 
first-time adoption of IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, effective 1 
January 2018, constrained the results achieved. The observed 
performance underscored high levels of operational efficiency 
which was complemented by effective risk management practices.

Net Income for the year grew by 25% principally as a result of the 
solid growth in Net Interest Income which increased from 
US$338.33 million in 2017 to US$403.83 million in 2018, a growth 
of 19%. The significant increase in Net Interest Income was 
achieved on the back of a 31% growth in gross loan portfolio over 
the period under review. Net fee and Commission income grew by 
176% from US$30.36 million in 2017 to US$83.69 million in 2018 
contributing to the Net Income growth.
During the period under review, the Bank achieved an annual return 
on average shareholders’ equity (ROAE) of 11.78% (2017: 11.76 %) 
driven by the increase in Net Income. Additionally, the increase in 
Net Income resulted in the Bank realising a return on average 
assets (R0AA) of 2.18% compared to 1.87% achieved in the 
previous year. In tandem with the substantial increase in Net 
Income, the basic earnings per equivalent of fully paid shares 
improved from USS 5,580 in 2017 to U5$ 5,620 in 2018.
As a result of the significant growth in Net Income, coupled with the 
successful equity mobilization initiatives pursued by the Bank, the 
Capital Adequacy Ratio remained at a sound level of 25% (2017: 
26%) which was well in line with the Bank’s long-term Capital 
Management Strategic and Policy targets.

A further detailed analysis of the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income is presented hereunder.

Net Interest Income and Margin
Net Interest Income amounting to US$ 403.83 million (2017: 
US$338.33 million) was mainly driven by a significant increase in 

interest and similar income. Interest and similar income rose by 
17% from US$606.07 million in 2017 to US$709.48 million in 2018 
as a result of a combination of higher interest rates, triggered by 
the rise in the Libor rate and a 31% growth in gross loan portfolio. 
In this regard, the gross loan portfolio grew from US$8.72 billion in 
2017 to US$ 11.4 billion in 2018. Interest expenses increased by 
14% to reach US$305.65 million (2017: US$267.75 million) during 
the period under review on the back of growth in interest-bearing 
liabilities by 14% and the increase in Libor rates experienced during 
the year.

Net interest margin, at 3.46% (2017: 2.64%) showed a significant 
improvement in relation to the previous period mainly due to 
relatively higher margins earned in 2018 compared to relatively 
lower margins on the cash-backed Countercyclical Trade Liquidity 
Facilities (COTRALF) that were outstanding in 2017. The efficiency 
of the treasury activities in managing cost of funds, culminated in 
an improved cost of mobilizing deposits. Such activities included, 
inter-alia, diversification of the funding mix which saw lower priced 
Africa-sourced liabilities making a significant contribution to the 
total funding pool. This outcome confirmed the wisdom of the 
creation of Africa Resource Mobilization Unit in the Treasury Depart­
ment.

Non-Interest Income
Net Fee and Commission Income increased by US$53.33 million to 
US$ 83.69 million (2017: US$ 30.36 million) in the current year 
mainly due to a 139% increase in fee and commission income which 
grew by US$ 54.47 million to US$ 93.72 million (2017: US$ 39.25 
million). This increase was largely due to an increase in advisory 
fees which grew by 272% to US$ 79.20 million (2017: US$ 21.31 
million). The growth in advisory fee income was in line with the 
strategic focus of the Bank to increase earnings from advisory and 
capital market activities, given the rising demand for these services 
in many African economies pursuing economic and trade diversifica­
tion.

Operating Income
Operating income, which is the sum of Net Interest Income, Net 
Fees and Commissions Income and Other Operating Income, 
increased by 32% in 2018 to US$ 489.84 million (2017: US$ 372.13 
million). The increase is explained mainly by higher Net Interest 
Income arising from growth in loan assets and significant growth in 
fee income.

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses increased by 32% in 2018 compared to 2017, 
to reach US$87.59 million (2017 : US$ 66.54 million), reflecting the 
significant growth in professional staff recruitment which in turn 
increased staff costs by 21%. In addition, general and administra­
tive expenses increased by 47% in support of the various strategic 
initiatives that the Bank was pursuing.

Cost Income Ratio
The cost-income ratio recorded by the Bank was 18% in line with 
prior year’s performance and which favorably compares with the 
industry average. The outcome reflected effective cost controls 
and higher operating efficiencies implemented by the Bank during 
the year.

Allowance For Impairment On Loans And Advances
The allowance for impairment on Loans and Advances increased by 
82.4% to close the period at US$ 118.9 million (2017: US$ 65.2 
million). The increase of US$ 55.4 million arose mainly from the 
impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 effective 1 January 2018. The IFRS 
9 results in the loss provisioning for financial assets on a 
forward-looking basis as opposed to provisioning on the 
occurrence of default. Additionally, further provisions arose from 
the impact of provisioning on financial assets that were previously 
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not included in the scope of IAS 39, such as off-balance sheet 
exposures and commitments to lend.

The Bank’s asset quality was within acceptable levels as reflected in 
the non-performing loans (NPL) ratio of 2.95% (2017: 2.5% and 
restated (IFRS 9 impact] 2017: 4.08%]. The sound asset quality 
reflected the high quality of collateral including highly liquid assets 
backing a preponderance of the assets. In addition, the provisions 
coverage ratio was well above the 100% minimum threshold at 
132% (2017: 141%]. Expected Credit Loss (ECL] coverage ratio was 
3.11% (2017: 3.4%]. The impact of adopting IFRS 9 resulted in a 
transitional adjustment amounting to US$ 129.9 million, reducing 
the previously reported prior year retained earnings from 
US$524.41 million to USS 394.51 million on 1st January 2018.

Dividend
On account of higher Net Income achieved during the year and 
considering the need to meet expectations of shareholders, the 
Board of Directors recommends a dividend payout amounting to 
USS 68.97 million (2017: USS 57.53 million] to shareholders, reflect­
ing a 25% (2017: 26%) payout ratio*. The proposal maintains the 
tradition of higher dividend payments to shareholders from year to 
year. As the Bank is raising capital to support business growth, 
shareholders will have an option of receiving the dividend entitle­
ment through acquiring additional ordinary shares of the Bank.

The Board, in making its recommendation on the level of ordinary 
dividend, took into consideration the objective of maintaining a 
growth trend in dividend payments amongst other considerations. 
The other factors considered included profit performance, need to 
retain earnings to support on-going business growth, capital 
adequacy, inflation, as well as the need to balance internal and 
external financing. Of the Bank's growth.

* Class D shares are fully paid and back the Depository Receipts 
issued in the Stock Exchange of Mauritius. Classes A, B and C shares 
are partially paid, that is 40% at subscription with 60% remaining 
as callable capital.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The statement of financial position shows the position of the 
Bank’s assets and liabilities as well as its net worth or shareholders’ 
funds at the reporting date. A detailed discussion of these items 
with respect to 2018 is presented hereunder.

Assets
The Bank’s total assets grew by 13% from US$11.91 billion as at 31 
December 2017 to US$13.42 billion as at 31 December 2018 
explained mainly by the solid growth in net loans and advances 
which grew by 30.3%. The Bank's liquid assets decreased by 40% 
to end the year at US$ 1.92 billion (2017: US$3.21 billion] and 
accounted for 14% (2017:27%] of total assets as the cash was 
deployed to fund the growth in loans and advances. Gross loans 
and advances at US$ 11.4 billion (2017: US$ 8.7 billion] contributed 
significantly to the total assets position of the Bank at 83% (2017: 
70%]. Loans and advances increased in 2018 compared to prior 
year in line with expectation.

Most of the loans are structured trade finance facilities, either 
funded directly by the Bank or within syndicates. An analysis of the 
loan portfolio by beneficiary as at end of 2018 shows that 
corporates' share of the portfolio including state owned enterpris­
es was 44% (2017: 40%], financial institutions' share was 50% 
(2017: 57%] of the portfolio and governments' share was 6% 
(2017: 3%) of the portfolio. The Bank also provides financial institu­
tions with credit lines to support their trade finance business with 
local counterparties who cannot access financing from the Bank 
directly. The average maturity of loans remained in line with prior 
year position at 19 months (2017:17 months] given that the typical 
loans extended by the Bank were short term, self-liquidating trade 
finance facilities. The Bank continued to achieve a wider geographi­
cal diversification of the portfolio, with the Bank operating facilities 
in 32 (2017: 31] countries.

Liabilities
Total liabilities of the Bank grew by 11% to close the year at US$ 
10.86 billion (2017: US$ 9.79 billion] as at 31 December 2018. The 
main reason for the increase in total liabilities was the borrowing 
balance which increased by 15% to US$ 8.18 billion (2017 : US$7.11 
billion ] to fund the growth in the loan book. Total borrowings (due 
to banks and debt securities] accounted for about 75% (2017: 

73%) of total liabilities while customer deposits and balances 
accounted for about 22% (2017: 22%) of total liabilities in line with 
the Bank's strategy to diversify its sources of funding to manage 
cost of funds as well as reduce concentration risk.
Major components of debt liabilities were syndicated loans and 
debt securities. In terms of geographical distribution, the outstand­
ing borrowings were spread across mainland Europe, UK, Asia, 
Middle East, Africa. North and South America.

A significant proportion of deposit accounts held with Afreximbank 
were mostly accounts used as structural elements in trade finance 
transactions. Most deposit accounts are held with Afreximbank 
until the client's debts are fully repaid. The deposits may be used to 
retire the loans. Customers who deposited funds in the Bank were 
mainly sovereigns, corporates and financial institutions.

Shareholders’ Funds
The Bank’s shareholders’ funds increased by 23% from prior year 
position of US$2.12 billion to about US$2.6 billion primarily driven 
by capital injections from the equity mobilization plan that the Bank 
embarked on to fund expected business growth in line with the 
strategic plan. It is imperative to note that the shareholders' funds 
rose considerably despite the transitional adjustment amounting to 
US$ 129.9 million against opening retained earnings balance as a 
result of the adoption of IFRS 9 accounting standard on 1 January
2018. As part of the equity raise plan, the Bank raised an amount of 
about US$ 338 million from issuance of shares mainly in classes A, 
B, C and fully paid class D. In addition, the Bank generated internal 
capital emanating from higher profitability which contributed to the 
increase in the Bank's net worth. The Bank’s callable capital as at 31 
December 2018 amounted to US$ 873 million (2017: US$ 655 
million]. The Bank maintains the callable capital as an additional 
buffer in case of need. The callable capital has been credit enhanced 
as part of the Bank's capital management initiatives.

CONCLUSIONS
The financial results of the Bank show that the Bank achieved 
better performance for the year compared to prior year as reflect­
ed in higher profitability, strong earnings growth, and solid growth 
in business volume. It also maintained a strong capital adequacy, 
liquidity position and asset quality, despite the prevailing difficult 
operating environment globally and in some parts of Africa. The 
achieved results were also generally better than strategic plan 
targets. The results of operations while strong, were somewhat 
constrained by the impact of the first-time adoption of IFRS 9, 
effective January 1, 2018. Notwithstanding, the Management and 
the Board of Directors were satisfied with the performance of the 
Bank enabling a proposal from the Board for an increase of 20% in 
the amount of dividends declared.

NET ASSET VALUE ("NAV")
The NAV per share at 31 December 2018 was US$50,558 (2017: 
US$45,114).

DIVIDENDS
The Directors proposed a dividend appropriation amounting to 
US$68,970,000 (2017: US$57,534,000), subject to approval by the 
shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting to be held in June
2019. The 2018 financial statements do not reflect the dividend 
payable, which will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation 
of retained earnings in the year ending 2019 after approval by 
shareholders. Dividend payments made during 2018 related to 
2017 financial year.
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KEY PERFORMANCE METRICS (%)

Dec 18 Dec 17
Profitability
Return on average assets (ROAA)
Return on average equity (ROAE)

2.18%
11.78%

I. 87%
II. 76%

Operating Efficiency
Cost -to -income ratio 18% 18%

Asset Quality
Non-performing loans ratio( NPL) 
Loan loss coverage ratio

2.95%
132%

2.50%
141%

Liquidity
Cash/Total assets 14% 27%

Capital Adequacy
Capital Adequacy ratio (Basel II) 25% 26%

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

31/12/2018
US$000

31/12/2017
US$000

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,918,434 3,214,573
Derivative assets held for risk management 3,684 3,574
Loans and advances to customers 11,134,424 8,545,716
Prepayments and accrued income 134,358 82,329
Financial investments at amortised cost 168,328 30,268
Other assets 13,988 2,931
Property and equipment 39,806 32,838
Intangible Assets 6,348 1,248
Total assets 13,419,370 11,913,477

LIABILITIES
Derivative liabilities held for risk management 24,840 21,467
Due to banks 5,147,944 4,231,374
Deposits and customer accounts 2,365,385 2,149,356
Debt securities in issue 3,027,717 2,881,622
Other liabilities 293,737 505,624
Total liabilities 10,859,623 9,789,443

CAPITAL FUNDS
Share capital 506,300 470,816
Share premium 764,790 562,350
Warrants 191,531 91,723
Reserves 593,365 474,733
Retained earnings 503,761 524,412
Total capital funds 2,559,747 2,124,034
Total liabilities and capital funds 13,419,370 11,913,477

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

31/12/2018
US$000

31/12/2017
US$000

Interest and similar income
Interest and similar expense

709,478
(305,654)

606,074
(267,749)

Net interest and similar income 403,824 338,325

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

93,717
(10,029)

39,245
(8,883)

Net fee and commission income 83,688 30,362

Other operating income 2,321 3,439
Operating income 489,833 372,126

Personnel expenses (46,984) (38,758)
General and administrative expenses (36,292) (24,672)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (4,315) (3,113)
Operating expense (87,591) (66,543)

Exchange adjustments (2,337) (1,641)
Fair value loss from financial instruments at FVTPL (5,126) (4,718)
Cashflow hedges - (13,476)

Operating profit before impairment 394,779 285,748
and provisions
Credit losses on financial instruments (118,877) (65,254)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 275,902 220,494

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent periods

Gains (losses) on revaluation of land and buildings 9,491 9 279
Total items that will not be reclassified 
to profit or loss in subsequent periods

9,491 9,279

Total other comprehensive income 9,491 9,279

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 285,393 229,773
FOR THE YEAR

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 
(expressed in US$000 per share) 5.62 5.58
Diluted earnings per share 
(expressed in US$000 per share) 2.44 2.25
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FIG 1: GROSS LOANS AND NPL RATIO: 5 YEARS TREND ANALYSIS
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FIG 2: COST -TO-INCOME RATIO: 5 YEARS TREND ANALYSIS
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FIG 3: TOTAL ASSETS AND NET INCOME: 5 YEARS TREND ANALYSIS
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Project

Share Capital 

US$000

Share Premium 

US$000

Warrants 

US$000

General

Reserve

US$000

Asset 

Revaluation 

Reserve 

US$000

Cashflow 

hedge 

reserve 

US$000

preparation 

facility Fund 

reserve 

US$000

Retained 

Earnings 

US$000

Total 

US$000

Balance at 31 December 2017 470,816 562,350 91,723 447,762 19,471 7,500 524,412 2,124,034
Impact of Adopting IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018
Restated Balance at 1 January 2018 470,816 562,350 91,723 447,762 19,471 7,500 394,534 1,994,156
Total comprehensive income

Profit of the year - - - - - - - 275,902 275,902

Other comprehensive income

Recycling of fair value adjustment to profit and loss - - - - - - - - -
Asset revaluation reserve - - - - 9,491 - - - 9,491

Transactions with equity owners of the Bank

Project preparation facility Fund reserve - - - - - 7,500 7,500 -
Transfer to general reserve 102,290 - - (102,290) -
Depreciation transfer: buildings - (649) - 649 -
Warrants retirement (91,723] - - - (91,723)
Issued and Paid in capital during 2018 35,484 202,440 191,531 429,455
Dividends for year 2017 (57,534) (57,534)
Balance at 31 December 2018 506.300 764,790 191,531 550,052 28,313 15,000 503,761 2,559,747

Balance at 1 January 2017

Total comprehensive income 378,488 355,310 98,716 366,282 11,600 (13,476) 429,448 1,626,368
Profit of the year - - - - - - 220,494 220,494

Other comprehensive income

Effective portion of changes in fair
value of cash flow hedge - - - - - 13,476 - - 13,476

Asset revaluation reserve - - - - 9,279 - - 9,279

Transactions with equity owners of the Bank

Transfer to general reserve 7,500 (7,500) -
Depreciation transfer: buildings - 81,480 - - (81,480) -
Paid in capital during 2017 - - - - (1,408) - 1,408 -
Warrants retirement - (198,575) - - - - (198,575)
Issued during the year 92,328 207,040 191,582 - 490,950
Dividends for year 2016 - - (37,958) (37,958)
Balance at 31 December 2017 470,816 562,350 91,723 447,762 19,471 7,500 524,412 2,124,034
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 2018 
US$000

2017 
US$000

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year 275,902 220,494

Adjustment for non-cash items:
Depreciation of property and equipment 3,818 2,641
Amortization of intangible assets 500 472
Net interest income (403,824) (338,324)
Impairment on loans and advances 117,257 63,397
Impairement loss on investment securities 1,130 598
Impairement on accrued income 123 1,259
Leave pay expense 367 206
Net loss from cash flow hedge 5,126 18,194

398 (31,064)
Changes in:
Money market placements - Maturity more than 3 months 2,244,638 (2,094,442)
Prepayments and accrued income (52,152) (54,624)
Derivatives instruments (1,863) (52)
Other assets (11,057) (460)
Other liabilities (217,342) 346,892
Deposits and customer accounts 216,029 (1,629,137)
Financial investments at amortised cost (139,190)
Loans and advances to customers (2,680,867) 1,754,862

(641,407) (1,708,025)

Interest receievd 537,860 559,979
Interest paid (279,635) (224,835)
Net cash outflows from (used in) operating activities (383,183) (1,372,880)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchases and additions to property and equipment (7,112) (2,640)
Net cash outflows used in investing activities (7,112) (2,640)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net cash from capital subscriptions and share premium 209,462 283,790
Proceeds from issue of warrants 191,531 191,582
Retirement of warrants (91,723) (198,575)
Dividends paid (33,143) (21,195)
Proceeds from borrowed funds and debt securities 3,305,466 9,339,015
Repayment of borrowed funds and debt securities (2,242,800) (8,368,045)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 1,338,793 1,226,572

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 948,498 (148,948)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 969,936 1,118,884
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 1 91R 434 969.936
Represented in:
Cash and Cash Equivalent as presented in the statement of financial position 1,918,434 3,214,573
Money market placements - Maturity more than 3 months (2,244,638)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 1,918,434 969.936
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NOTES
The Bank is required to publish financial results for the year ended 31 December 2018 as per Listing Rule 12.19 of the SEM. The abridged 
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 ["financial statements'1] have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of IFRS and the SEM Listing Rules.

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board [IASB], The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are 
consistent with those applied in the preparation of the previous financial year ended 31 December 2017, except for the amendments to IFRS 
effective as of 1 January 2018.

The abridged audited financial statements have been extracted from the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 
and approved by the Board on 23 March 2019. The Bank's joint external auditors, KPMG and PriceWaterhouse & Coopers have issued an 
unqualified audit opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Copies of the abridged audited financial statements and the Statement of direct and indirect interests of each officer of the Bank, pursuant 
to Rule8[2](m] of the Securities [Disclosure Obligations of Reporting Issuers] Rules 2007, are available free of charge, upon request to the 
Executive Secretary at the Registered Office of the Bank at No.72[B] El-Maahad El-Eshteraky Street, Heliopolis, Cairo 11341, Egypt.

This communique is issued pursuant to SEM Listing Rules 11.3 and 12.20 and section 8.8 of the Securities Act of Mauritius 2005. The Board 
accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in these financial statements. The Board of Directors is not aware of 
any matters or circumstances arising subsequent to the period ended 31 December 2018 that require any additional disclosure or 
adjustment to the financial statements.

By order of the Board

African Export Import Bank
Executive Secretary

SBM Securities Limited
SEM Authorised Representative and Sponsor

29 March 2019
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